
Village of Hampshire 
Village Board Meeting 

Thursday, November 18, 2021 - 7:00 PM 
Hampshire Village Hall – 234 S. State Street 

 
AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call to Establish Quorum 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Public Comments 

5. Approval of Minutes from November 4, 2021 

6. Village Manager’s Report  

a. A Motion to Approve the Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 
2021- Lauterbach & Amen LLP 

b. A Resolution Authorizing the Approval and Execution of a Third Amended and 
Restated Development Agreement for the Property Identified as the Southerly 
Acres of Tuscany Woods Subdivision Unit 2 in the Village 

c. A Resolution Authorizing the Approval and Execution of a Third Amended and 
Restated Development Agreement for the Property Identified as the Northerly 
Acres of Tuscany Woods Subdivision Unit 2 in the Village 

d. A Motion to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with EEI for Lead Service 
Line Replacement Inventory in the Amount of $19,606 - State Mandated 

e. A Resolution Approving a Final Development Plan and Plat of Subdivision for 
Oakstead Neighborhood School Area of the Oakstead Development in th Village 

f. An Ordinance Amending the Village Code, Chapter 6: Zoning Regulations to Add 
Regulations Governing a New Zoning District, Recreational Zoning District, in the 
Village 

g. Presentation of Village Snow and Salt Operations 

h. Presentation of the Special Service Area Levy and Pond Maintenance  

7. October Monthly Report 

a. Financial Report 

b. Police Incident Report 

c. Engineering Report 

8. Accounts Payable 

a. A Motion to Approve the November 18, 2021 Accounts Payable to Personnel 

b. A Motion to Approve the November 18, 2021 Regular Accounts Payable 

9. Village Board Committee Reports 

a. Business Development Commission 

b. Public Relations 

c. Public Works 



d. Budget 

10. New Business 

11. Announcements 

12. Executive Session – 2-(c)-21 Review of Executive Session Minutes 

13. Adjournment 

 
 
 

Attendance: By Public Act 101-0640, all public meetings and public hearings for essential governmental 
services may be held by video or tele conference during a public health disaster, provided there is an 
accommodation for the public to participate, and submit questions and comments prior to meeting. If you 
would like to attend this meeting by Video or Tele Conference, you must e-mail the Village Clerk with your 
request no later than noon (12 PM) two days prior to the meeting, and a link to participate will be sent to 
your e-mail address the day of the meeting, including all exhibits and other documents (the packet) to be 
considered at the meeting. 
 
Recording: Please note that all meetings held by videoconference will be recorded, and the recordings will 
be made public. While State Law does not required consent, by requesting an invitation, joining the 
meeting by link or streaming, all participants acknowledge and consent to their image and voice being 
recorded and made available for public viewing. 
 
Accommodations: The Village of Hampshire, in compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, 
requests that persons with disabilities, who require certain accommodations to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in the meeting(s) or have questions about the accessibility of the meeting(s) or facilities, 
contact the Village at 847-683-2181 to allow the Village to make reasonable accommodations for these 
persons. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
MINUTES 

November 4, 2021 
 

The regular meeting of the Village Board of Hampshire was called to order by Village 
President Michael J. Reid, Jr. at 7:00 p.m. in the Village of Hampshire Village Board Room, 234 
S. State Street, on Thursday, November 4, 2021. 

 
Roll Call by Village Clerk Vasquez: 

Present: Heather Fodor, Aaron Kelly, Toby Koth, Lionel Mott, Laura Pollastrini, 
and Erik Robinson.  

 
A quorum was established. 

 
In addition, present in-person were Village Manager Jay Hedges, Village Clerk Linda 
Vasquez, Finance Director Lori Lyons, Assistant to the Village Manager Josh Wray, Village 
Attorney Mark Schuster, and Police Chief Brian Thompson. Also, present electronically: Tim 
Paulson – EEI 

 
President Reid led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
MINUTES 

 
Chief Hermann from the Fire Protection District needed to be added to the list of those present. 
 
Trustee Robinson moved to approve the minutes of October 21, 2021, with the changes as stated. 
 

Seconded by Trustee Fodor  
Motion carried by roll call vote. 
 Ayes: Koth, Mott, Pollastrini, Robinson 
 Nays: None 
Abstained: Fodor, Kelly 
Absent: None 
 

PROCLAIMATION 
 
Village President Reid read the proclamation for Zion United Methodist Church’s 175th anniversary and 
congratulated them.  
 
VILLAGE MANAGER'S REPORT 

 
A Motion to approve for St. Charles of Borromeo School 

 
Village Clerk Vasquez has notified the school they need the correct surety bond, and they plan on 
getting it as soon as possible. 
 
Trustee Kelly asked if the Village Board had allowed approval for raffles subject to conditions before, 
which President Reid responded that they had recently. 
 
Trustee Robinson moved to approve Raffle License for St. Charles of Borromeo School pending 
submittal of the appropriate surety bond. 

 
Seconded by Trustee Pollastrini  
Motion carried by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Fodor, Kelly, Robinson, Koth, Mott, Pollastrini  
Nays: None 
Absent: None 

 



 
Presentation by Da’Brou Construction re: Proposed Romke Rd. Development 
President Reid noted that former President Magnussen and Village Manager Hedges met with this 
group before the last election at the beginning of this project, and the Village Board has received 
some updates on it, so this is not a new project but rather has been in the works for many months. 
 
Christina Luswick and Peter Da’Brou are partners in Da’Brou Construction. They are purchasing the 
40-acre property at the southwest corner of Romke and Route 72 the in June which is part of Tuscany 
Woods Unit 2 (TW2). The have reached near final agreements with the owners to separate this 40-
acre parcel from the TW2 so it can be developed differently. They plan on subdividing the land to 
have commercial along Route 72, thinking specifically of having three or four commercial parcels that 
could be developed individually or together if a business wanted to have more than one parcel. For 
the rear portion of the property, they are planning a nice apartment complex that will be marketed 
towards young families/individuals not yet ready for a full house as well as older folks scaling down. 
There are a few options for an interior street to separate the commercial from the residential, which 
will be worked out as they learn more about the topography once the corn is down. Approximately 6 
acres in the southwest part of the parcel is wetland, so there will just be open space and stormwater 
ponds in that area. 
 
Trustee Fodor said the different apartment complex examples/concepts looked very nice, but she’s 
wondering about how affordable this housing will really be. She and other Board members noted they 
don’t want this to be priced out of what Hampshire residents can afford. Da’Brou has not decided on 
price yet since they do not know what exactly they are building, but they said there will likely be 
opportunities for 1-bedroom and possibly studio units that will be more affordable. Da’Brou noted that 
taller apartment complexes make the units more affordable because they can spread certain fixed 
costs over more units. The Village Code currently allows for three floors, so that may be something to 
consider. 

 
An Ordinance approving a variance of the requirements for setback from alleyway in the R-2 
Single Family Residential Zoning District for the proposed garage at 304 Park Street in the 
Village 
 
Mr. Hedges introduced these three ordinances for variance all regarding one proposed 
project. The Planning and Zoning Commission took these three questions separately and 
voted in approval of the first two but against the third. 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission Chairman Bryan Mroch describe the Commission’s 
meeting where the property owner, Mr. Tully, presented a proposal to expand his current 
garage while also moving it out of the alley since it currently sits about one and one-half (1.5) 
feet in the alley. Since Mr. Tully is improving the condition and aesthetic of his garage as well 
as moving it out of the alley in this older part of town where many properties do not follow 
the current code, the Commission felt they should give Mr. Tully some wiggle room on this 
project. The Commission was in favor of allowing the variances for the setbacks, but it felt 
the request for a twenty-three-foot building height was too amorphous in that there was not 
enough justification for such a tall height. Mr. Tully did include additional drawings and 
information in the packet for the Village Board as the Planning and Zoning Commission 
suggested. 
 
The Village Board was comfortable with the setback variance requests, so Mr. Tully walked 
the Village Board through drawings and described the justification for the building height. He 
noted that (1) he restores classic cars in his garage as a hobby and uses a car lift, so a taller 
height is needed, and (2) the twenty-three-foot height is needed to keep a pitch that closely 
matches the house so that they have the same general aesthetic character. He also 
presented some shorter heights that could be built, but those would limit the use of his 
garage for general storage and other work since the loft would be very small. Additionally, a 
fifteen-foot roof on this structure would require custom framing to hold the snow load. 
 
Trustee Kelly asked if renovation actually causes the code requirements to activate on a 



grandfathered structure. Attorney Schuster responded yes in this case because this project 
is an expansion, and possibly a replacement, rather than simply a remodel/renovation of an 
existing building that will maintain the same size and use. Trustee Koth asked if the Village 
Board should require this grandfathered building to move out of the alley since a building 
inspector back when the garage was built was the person who approved the location in the 
alley. 
 
Mr. Mroch noted that he believes the questions/concerns about the twenty-three-foot 
height the Planning and Zoning Commission had have been addressed in Mr. Tully’s 
presentation before the Village Board. 
 
Trustee Pollastrini asked if Mr. Tully had any conversations with his neighbors beyond the 
required notification. Mr. Tully did speak with every neighbor except the one to the south 
because that house is currently unoccupied, and all his neighbors were in support. 
 
Trustee Pollastrini asked if anyone would be living in the loft space. Mr. Tully said no; the loft 
will be used for storage and machining work. 
 
Trustee Pollastrini expressed she still thinks twenty-three feet is just too high with all the 
other houses so close by. She said it almost looks like the garage is another house on the 
property – it won’t blend well. She said it reminds her of a farm garage a tractor might go in. 
 
Trustee Mo tt  moved to approve Ordinance 21-41: approving a variance of the 
requirements for setback from alleyway in the R-2 Single Family Residential Zoning District 
for the proposed garage at 304 Park Street in the Village. 

 
Seconded by Trustee Robinson 
Motion carried by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Fodor, Kelly, Robinson, Koth, Mott, Pollastrini  
Nays: None 
Absent: None 

 
An Ordinance approving a variance of the requirements for side yard setback from the 
southerly lot line in the R-2 Single Family Residential Zoning District for the proposed garage 
at 304 Park Street in the Village 
 
See discussion from previous ordinance. 
 
Trustee Robinson moved to approve Ordinance 21-42: approving a variance of the requirements for side 
yard setback from the southerly lot line in the R-2 Single Family Residential Zoning District for the 
proposed garage at 304 Park Street in the Village 
 

Seconded by Trustee Fodor 
Motion carried by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Fodor, Kelly, Pollastrini, Robinson, Koth, Mott 
Nays: None 
Absent: None 

 
An Ordinance approving a variance or the requirements for maximum height of an accessory 
structure, in the R-2 Single Family Residential Zoning District for the proposed garage at 304 
Park Street in the Village 
 
See discussion from previous ordinance. 
 
President Reid reminded the Board that the ordinance is currently set to allow a height of twenty-three 
(23) feet. 
 
Trustee Robinson moved to approve Ordinance 21-43; approving a variance or the 



requirements for maximum height of an accessory structure, in the R-2 Single Family 
Residential Zoning District for the proposed garage at 304 Park Street in the Village. 
 

Seconded by Trustee Mott 
Motion carried by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Fodor, Kelly, Robinson, Koth, Mott 
Nays: Pollastrini 
Absent: None 

 
A Motion to approve payment of $131,491.16 to Peter Baker & Son Co for the Julie Lane resurfacing 
project. (Payment withholds 5% or $7,078.48 retainage) 
 
Village Manager Hedges noted that this project went very smoothly and that it has come in several 
thousand dollars underbudget. 
 
Trustee Kelly asked why these project payments come before the Village Board separately rather 
than in the Accounts Payable. Mr. Hedges responded that it is just a matter of practice and not a 
specific requirement. 
 
Mr. Paulsen from EEI noted there is a typo on the agenda and that the correct payment amount is 
$134,491.16. 
 
Trustee Koth moved, to approve payment of $134,491.16 to Peter Baker & Son Co for the Julie Lane 
resurfacing project. 
 

Seconded by Trustee Kelly 
Motion carried by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Fodor, Kelly, Pollastrini, Robinson, Koth, Mott 
Nays: None 
Absent: None 

 
An Ordinance amending the Village Code, Chapter 6: Zoning Regulations to require written 
notification to certain nearby property owners regarding petitions for zoning relief 
 
The prior Zoning Board of Appeals had a working rule that petitions for special use should 
include notification to nearby property owners, but that rule was never codified like it is for 
variances. This ordinance would codify a requirement for the same notification requirements 
for petitions for any type of zoning relief and would provide standardization for staff and the 
Planning and Zoning Commission as well as clearer expectations for applicants. 
 
Trustee Pollastrini moved to approve Ordinance 21-44: amending the Village Code, Chapter 
6: Zoning Regulations to require written notification to certain nearby property owners 
regarding petitions for zoning relief.  
 

Seconded by Trustee Fodor 
Motion carried by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Fodor, Kelly, Pollastrini, Robinson, Koth, Mott 
Nays: None 
Absent: None 

 
An Ordinance amending the Village Code, Chapter 6: Zoning Regulations to add regulations 
governing a new zoning district, recreational zoning district, in the Village 
 
Mr. Hedges asked for this item to be tabled because the ordinance and supporting 
documents were omitted from the packet. 
 
Trustee Pollastrini moved to table the Ordinance amending the Village Code, Chapter 6: 
Zoning Regulations to add regulations governing a new zoning district, recreational zoning 



district, in the Village.  
 

Seconded by Trustee Fodor 
Motion carried by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Fodor, Kelly, Pollastrini, Robinson, Koth, Mott 
Nays: None 
Absent: None 

 
A Resolution determining the request of $1,210.000 to be levied for the 2021 tax year through real 
estate taxes for the Village of Hampshire, Kane County, Illinois 
 
Finance Director Lyons briefly explained this step in the process for the levy, but she will make a very 
thorough presentation at the next step during the public hearing at the Village Board’s December 2 
meeting. The purpose of this step is to announce the intended levy at least twenty (20) days ahead of 
actually setting it. 
 
Trustee Kelly wanted to note that this is not a tax increase. This is the annual levy that generally 
increases each year because more properties with higher tax value have been added to the Village. 
Every year people see this process happening and think the Village Board is raising property taxes, 
but that is not what is happening here. The average tax bill should remain about the same depending 
on how the property is valued by the Township Assessor for the new taxing year. 
 
Trustee Robinson approved Resolution 21-12; determining the request of $1,210.000 to be levied for 
the 2021 tax year through real estate taxes for the Village of Hampshire, Kane County, Illinois. 
 

Seconded by Trustee Fodor 
Motion carried by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Fodor, Kelly, Pollastrini, Robinson, Koth, Mott 
Nays: None 
Absent: None 

 
MONTHLY REPORTS 

 
Streets Report 
Village Manager Hedges walked through the report from Streets Supervisor Dave Starrett. Public 
Works is getting ready for the winter season, checking the equipment and trucks. 

 
Building Permits 
Asst. to the Village Manager Wray reported the October performance metrics for the building 
department. A few additional notes were that 7 new home permits have been pulled for Tamms Farm, 
Stanley has begun work on his property along Allen Rd. for self-storage facilities, and the Village 
received permit applications for 2 temporary COVID testing sites. 
 
Trustee Robinson appreciates access to testing but is worried about having a bunch of these container-
style buildings pop up around the Village. Village Manager Hedges said staff will investigate how the 
Village can regulate them. Trustee Robinson asked if these COVID testing sites are being funded by 
government money, and Mr. Hedges described that it seems to be a very competitive business that is 
state or federally funded. 
 
Trustee Kelly asked if these containers are allowed to be there without having their permits, and Mr. 
Wray responded that they are not to be operating until they have received their permits and passed 
their inspections. President Reid noted that they would have come to the Village and gotten their 
permits first in a perfect world, but the containers got there first, and the Village then stepped-in to 
ensure everything was done properly according to the code requirements. 
 
 
 
 



 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

 
A Motion to approve the November 4, 2021 Accounts Payable to Personnel 

 
Trustee Kelly moved to approve the Accounts Payable for John Huff and Shawna Davis in the 
sum of $218.88 paid on or before November 10, 2021. 
 

Seconded by Trustee Robinson 
Motion carried by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Fodor, Kelly, Pollastrini, Robinson, Koth, Mott 
Nays: None 
Absent: None 

 
A Motion to approve the November 4, 2021 Regular Accounts Payable 
 
Trustee Robinson asked why the Village is refunding so much for someone’s water bill. 
Finance Director Lyons explained that she moved out but had an autopayment set up that 
she did not cancel, so she paid several months beyond what she was responsible for. 
 
Trustee Robinson asked about the large payment to IDOT. Mr. Hedges explained that this is 
80% of the Village share for the Rt. 72 & State intersection project. Trustee Kelly asked why 
we are paying 80% of the share now. Ms. Lyons explained that the 80% was due upon 
contract award per the intergovernmental agreement. Several members of the Board are just 
frustrated that the Village is paying so much money when work has been set for the spring 
when we thought it would begin in the fall. The only requirement for the contractor is the 
completion date, not a start date. 
 
Trustee Pollastrini asked what the sales tax rebate for Siegel’s Cabinets is for. Ms. Lyons 
explained that this was a very vibrant company in Hampshire for many years, but now they 
only have a sales office here which still entitles Hampshire to receive all the sales tax from 
the company. The agreement for perpetuity is to rebate 50% of that sales tax to entice the 
company to keep the sales office open in Hampshire rather than move it to one of its other 
locations where Hampshire would receive none of the sales tax. 
 
Trustee Robinson moved to approve the Accounts Payable in the sum of $710,926.78 paid on 
or before November 10, 2021. 

 
Seconded by Trustee Mott  
Motion carried by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Fodor, Kelly, Pollastrini, Robinson, Koth, Mott 
Nays: None 
Absent: None 
 

COMMITTEE / COMMISSION REPORTS 
 

a) Business Development Commission – Trustee Kelly reported a meeting will be 
held on November 10 at 6:30 p.m. at Village Hall. All are welcome. 
 

b) Public Relations – Trustee Fodor reported there will be no meeting this month because 
of Thanksgiving. 

 
c) Public Works – No report 

 
d) Budget Committee – Trustee Pollastrini reported we are moving forward with the budget 

cycle. 
 



 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Trustee Koth thanked everyone who participated at our Chili Cook-Off. Utilities Supervisor Mark 
Montgomery won. 
 
This Saturday is the Holiday on State, and St. Nick will be at the Bassett rescue from 10 am to 4 pm if 
anyone has free time and would like to help.  
 
We will be putting up our sign for letters to Santa above the water bill slot on November 18. The board 
members have always written letters back from Santa, so President Reid asked all the trustees to please 
help if they can. 
 
The Holiday Fest on State Street will be on December 11 from 2:30-4:30 PM and will combine the 
formerly separate events held by the Library and the Park District along with the parade to follow. State 
Street between Jackson and Jefferson will be closed. 
 

**brief power outage** 
 
Trustee Fodor congratulated Hampshire High School cross-country team is going to the state finals. 
We wish them the best. 
 
Trustee Robinson asked again to please wear your mask and be social distancing. D300 has shown 
that they will shut down again if the numbers go up, and kids need to be in school. 
 
Trustee Fodor is collecting cooking oils for the D300 Food Pantry. Please see her if you would like to 
donate or help collect items.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Trustee Kelly moved to adjourn the Village Board meeting at 8:57 p.m. 

 
Seconded by Trustee Robinson  
Motion carried by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Fodor, Kelly, Pollastrini, Robinson, Koth, Mott, Pollastrini  
Nays: None 
Absent: None 
 

 
 

Linda Vasquez Village Clerk 



 

 

October 26, 2021 

 

The Honorable Village President 

Members of the Board of Trustees 

Village of Hampshire, Illinois 

 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 

major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Hampshire, Illinois for the 

year ended April 30, 2021. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 

responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing 

Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to the planned scope and 

timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated October 26, 2021. 

Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our 

audit. 

 

Significant Audit Findings 

 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 

accounting policies used by the Village are described in the Note 1 to the financial statements. No new 

accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year 

ended April 30, 2021. We noted no transactions entered into by the Village of Hampshire during the year 

for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been 

recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 

based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 

future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 

financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 

significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the governmental and business-

type activities’ financial statements was: 

 

Management’s estimate of the depreciation expense on capital assets is based on assumed useful 

lives of the underlying capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 

develop the depreciation expense estimate in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the 

financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 

audit. 

  



Village of Hampshire, Illinois  

October 26, 2021 
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Significant Audit Findings – Continued  

 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 

audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 

management. Any material misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures were corrected by 

management. 

 

Disagreements with Management 

 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 

auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 

statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 

course of our audit. 

 

Management Representations 

 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 

representation letter dated October 26, 2021. 

 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Auditors 

 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 

matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 

of an accounting principle to the Village’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s 

opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 

accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 

there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 

standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Village’s auditors. However, these 

discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 

condition to our retention.  

 

Other Matters 

 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements 

the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the 

methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 

responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 

audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide 

any assurance on the RSI.   
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Other Matters – Continued  

 

We were engaged to report on the other supplementary information and supplemental schedules, which 

accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we 

made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 

information to determine that the information complies with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the 

information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared 

and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the 

financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.  

 

We were not engaged to report on the introductory section, which accompanies the financial statements 

but is not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 

the basic financial statements, and accordingly, and we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 

on it.  

 

Restrictions on Use 

 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees and management of the Village 

and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

We wish to express our gratitude to the Board of Trustees and staff (in particular the Finance Department) 

of the Village of Hampshire, Illinois for their valuable cooperation throughout the audit engagement. 

 

 

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 
LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, 

ILLINOIS 
MANAGEMENT LETTER 

 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED 

APRIL 30, 2021



 

 

October 26, 2021 

 

The Honorable Village President 

Members of the Board of Trustees  

Village of Hampshire, Illinois 

 

 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Village of Hampshire 

(Village), Illinois, for the year ended April 30, 2021, we considered its internal control structure in 

order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 

statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. 

 

We do not intend to imply that our audit failed to disclose commendable aspects of your system and 

structure. For your consideration we herein submit our comments and suggestions which are designed 

to assist in effecting improvements in internal controls and procedures. Those less significant matters, 

if any, which arose during the course of the audit, were reviewed with management as the audit field 

work progressed. 

 

The accompanying comments and recommendations are intended solely for the information and use 

of the Finance Committee, Board of Trustees, management, and others within the Village of 

Hampshire, Illinois. 

 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already 

discussed many of these comments and suggestions with various Village personnel. We would be 

pleased to discuss our comments and suggestions in further detail with you at your convenience, to 

perform any additional study of these matters, or to review the procedures necessary to bring about 

desirable changes. 

 

We commend the finance department for the well-prepared audit package and we appreciate the 

courtesy and assistance given to us by the entire Village staff. 

 

 

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 
LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 



 

 

CURRENT RECOMMENDATION 
 

1.  GASB STATEMENT NO. 87 LEASES  

 

Comment 

 

In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement 

No. 87, Leases, which provides guidance regarding the information needs of financial 

statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by 

governments. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational 

principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this 

Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use 

lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of 

resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about 

governments’ leasing activities. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, 

Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which was issued 

as temporary relieve to governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 

pandemic, GASB Statement No. 87, Leases is applicable to the Village’s financial 

statements for the year ended April 30, 2023. 

 

Recommendation 

 

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP will work directly with the Village to review the new lease 

criteria in conjunction with the Village’s current leases to determine the appropriate 

financial reporting for these activities under GASB Statement No. 87. 
 

Management’s Response 
 

Management acknowledges this comment and will work to implement it by April 30, 2023, 

as required by GASB. 

 



 

 

PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1. BANK RECONCILIATIONS – NOT PERFORMING MONTHLY 
 

 Comment  
 

Previously, we found that the bank reconciliations were not being performed on a monthly 

basis. One of the most important internal control features over cash receipts and 

disbursements is the preparation of the monthly bank reconciliation. By not preparing 

monthly bank reconciliation’s, errors and omissions may occur and not be detected on a 

timely basis. 
 

Recommendation 
 

We recommended as a means of better control, that bank reconciliations be performed each 

month and any variances be investigated and adjusted immediately. 
 

Status 
 

This comment has been implemented and will not be repeated in the future. 

 

2. TIMELINESS OF AUDIT 
 

Comment 
 

Financial statements should be completed within six months of the fiscal year end to ensure 

the financial statements are not reporting stale information that provides minimal value to 

the users of the financial statements. 
 

Recommendation 
  

We recommended that the Village review financial information throughout the year and 

start preparing for the audit prior to year-end. This can be accomplished by management 

reconciling bank accounts on a monthly basis by the 15th of the next month, periodically 

reconciling general ledger accounts throughout the year, and reporting to the Board of 

Trustees on a monthly basis with financial statements detailing budget to actual amounts 

in order to ensure Village spending is in accordance with the budget ordinance. Completing 

these procedures will result in less audit preparation time after the year end and ensure 

timely financial reporting. 
 

Status 
 

This comment has been implemented and will not be repeated in the future. 
 

  



 

 

PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS – Continued 

 
3. FUNDS OVER BUDGET 

 

Comment 

 

Previously and during our year-end audit procedures, we noted that the following funds had 

an excess of actual expenditures over budget for the fiscal year: 

 

Fund April 30, 2021 April 30, 2020

Transportation Impact Fees $ 247 2,682

Road and Bridge -      27,491

Evidence -      553

Hotel/Motel Tax -      2,016

Capital Bonds -      148,884

Capital Improvement 72,691 -      

Early Warning Impace Fees -      22

Garbage 94,178 62,859

Police Pension 18,403 45

Special Service Areas #9, #14, and #16 - #19 -      87,983  
 

Recommendation 

 

We recommended the Village investigate the causes of the funds over budget and adopt 

appropriate future funding measures.  

 

Status 

  

 This comment has not been implemented and will be repeated in the future.  

 

Management Response  

 

Management understands the importance of thorough, timely monitoring of revenue and 

expenditures as well as the cause of funds being over budget, and measures will be 

undertaken to assure appropriate funding. 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS – Continued 

 
4. FUNDS WITH DEFICIT FUND BALANCE 

 

Comment 

 

Previously and during our year-end audit procedures, we noted that the below funds had a 

deficit fund balance. See the following April 30, 2020 fund balance compared to the April 30, 

2021 fund balance: 

 

Fund April 30, 2021 April 30, 2020

Tax Increment Financing $ 361,643 367,180

Evidence -      430  
 

Recommendation 

 

We recommended the Village investigate the causes of the deficit and adopt appropriate future 

funding measures. 

 

Status 

  

 This comment has not been implemented and will be repeated in the future.  

 

Management Response  

 

Management understands the importance of funds retaining a positive fund balance. It is 

expected that the infrastructure projects undertaken in the TIF, as well as the private and 

public investment through TIF and façade grants, will increase the assessed value of the 

improved properties thereby increasing the tax revenue generated within the TIF district.  

 

5. COMMINGLED CASH 

 

Comment 

 

Previously and during our current year-end audit procedures, we noted that the Village’s 

commingled cash allocations between various funds resulted in significant positive and 

negative cash balances.  

 

There are many advantages to cash commingling, such as increasing the funds available for 

investment opportunities. However, the allocation process should represent accurately each 

fund’s percentage ownership of the cash balance. 

 

  



 

 

PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS – Continued 

 
5. COMMINGLED CASH – Continued 

 

Recommendation 

 

We recommended that the Village review the process for allocation of the commingled cash 

balances and adjust the balances as appropriate.  

  

Status 

  

 This comment has not been implemented and will be repeated in the future. 

 

Management Response 

 

We are in agreement with your recommendation and are modifying our procedures to 

assure that each fund’s ownership of comingled cash is accurately represented. 

 

6. ESCROW DEPOSITS AND DEPOSITS HELD FOR REFUND 

 

Comment 

 

Previously and during our current year-end audit procedures, we noted that the Village 

does not reconcile escrow deposits or the deposits held for refund to the general ledger on 

a monthly basis. 

 

Recommendation 

 

We recommended that the Village reconcile the escrow deposits and deposits held for 

refund on a monthly basis. 

 

Status 

  

This comment has not been implemented and will be repeated in the future. 

 

Management Response  

 

We understand the importance of reconciling the escrow deposits and other deposits held. 

Active accounts are now being reconciled on a regular basis and steps have been 

undertaken to review other accounts for possible other action. 

    



 

 

PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS – Continued 

  
7. PERSONNEL MANUAL 

  

Comment 

 

Previously and during our current year-end audit procedures, we noted that the Village 

does not have a formal written personnel manual. 

 

Recommendation 

 

We recommended that the Village create and adopt a formal personnel manual, which 

outlines policies related to employment, including working hours, employee benefits, 

holidays, etc. 

 

Status 

 

This comment has not been implemented and will be repeated in the future. 

 

Management Response  

  

 We agree with your recommendation that the Village would benefit from a formal written 

personnel manual.  The Village is in the process of reviewing and updating the personnel 

manual. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

 
October 26, 2021 
 
The Honorable Village President 
Members of the Board of Trustees 
Village of Hampshire, Illinois 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Hampshire, 
Illinois, as of and for the year ended April 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
  
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Village’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Village’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Hampshire, Illinois, as of April 30, 2021, 
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.   
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Village of Hampshire, Illinois 
October 26, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 

discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents and budgetary information reported in the required 

supplementary information as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial 

statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 

for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 

management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 

consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 

knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 

or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 

sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Village of Hampshire, Illinois’ basic financial statements. The introductory section, other 
supplementary information, and supplemental schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
 

The other supplementary information and supplemental schedules are the responsibility of management 

and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 

the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 

the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 

reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 

basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 

the other supplementary information and supplemental schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, 

in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  

 

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 

financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
 

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 
LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
April 30, 2021 
 
 

 

Our discussion and analysis of the Village of Hampshire’s financial performance provides an overview of 
the Village’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2021. Please read it in conjunction with 
the Village’s financial statements, which can be found in the basic financial  statements section of this 
report.  
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• The Village’s net position increased as a result of this year’s operations. Net position of the 
governmental activities increased by $1,034,553, or 3.7 percent and net position of the 
business-type activities increased by $7,292, or 0.0 percent. 

 
• During the year, government-wide revenues for the primary government totaled $9,495,518 

while expenses totaled $8,453,673, resulting in an increase to net position of $1,041,845. 
 

• The Village’s net position totaled $75,548,642 on April 30, 2021, which includes $73,309,556 
net investment in capital assets, $2,894,177 subject to external restrictions, and ($655,091) 
unrestricted net position that may be used to meet the ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors. 

 
• The General Fund reported an increase in fund balance this year of $221,661, resulting in 

ending fund balance of $1,787,614, an increase of 14.2 percent. 
 
USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 
 
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the Village as a whole and present a 
longer-term view of the Village’s finances. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these 
services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial 
statements also report the Village’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by 
providing information about the Village’s most significant funds.  
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements provide readers with a broad overview of the Village’s 
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The government wide financial statements can 
be found in the financial section of this report.  
 
The Statement of Net Position reports information on all of the Village’s assets and deferred outflows of 
resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. 
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the Village is improving or deteriorating. Consideration of other nonfinancial factors, such as 
changes in the Village’s property tax base and the condition of the Village’s capital assets, is needed to 
assess the overall health of the Village. 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
April 30, 2021 
 
 

 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT – Continued 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements – Continued  
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that 
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The governmental activities of the Village include general government, highways and 
streets, police protection, and economic development. The business-type activities of the Village include 
water, sewer, and garbage operations. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village, like other local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds 
of the Village can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds.  
 
Governmental Funds 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, governmental fund financial statements 
focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable 
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the Village’s 
near-term financing requirements.  
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. 
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities.  
 
The Village maintains fifteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the General, Tax Increment Financing, Transportation Impact Fees, and 
Public Use Funds, all of which are considered major funds. Data from the other eleven governmental 
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
April 30, 2021 
 
 

 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT – Continued 
 
Fund Financial Statements – Continued 
 
Governmental Funds – Continued  
 
The Village adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds except the TIF Revenue 
Bonds of 2009A/Tuscany Woods Line of Credit Fund, the Evidence Fund, Capital Bonds Fund, and the 
Early Warning Impact Fees Fund. A budgetary comparison schedule for the budgeted funds has been 
provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget.   
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
The Village maintains one proprietary fund type: enterprise funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the 
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government–wide financial statements. The 
Village utilizes enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer and garbage operations.  
 
Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide 
financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the Water and Sewer Fund and the Garbage Fund, which are considered to be major funds 
of the Village.   
 
Fiduciary Funds 
 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. 
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of 
those funds are not available to support the Village of Hampshire’s own programs. The accounting use 
for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.  
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements.  
 
Other Information 
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information concerning the Village’s General Fund budgetary comparison 
schedule and disclosures regarding the Village’s Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund and Police Pension 
Fund. Required supplementary information can be found in the financial section of this report. The 
combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are presented 
immediately following the required supplementary information.  
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
April 30, 2021 
 
 

 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The following 
tables show that in the case of the Village, assets/deferred outflows exceeded liabilities/deferred inflows 
by $75,548,642. 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Current and Other Assets $ 7,034,885 6,358,698 3,010,124 2,517,525 10,045,009 8,876,223
Capital Assets 30,545,090 30,153,668 45,146,161 46,128,227 75,691,251 76,281,895

Total Assets 37,579,975 36,512,366 48,156,285 48,645,752 85,736,260 85,158,118
Deferred Outflows 1,081,738 1,129,482 347,065 14,780 1,428,803 1,144,262

Total Assets/Deferred Outflows 38,661,713 37,641,848 48,503,350 48,660,532 87,165,063 86,302,380

Long-Term Debt 5,973,682 6,430,327 988,057 979,304 6,961,739 7,409,631
Other Liabilities 1,016,676 1,325,087 625,165 839,328 1,641,841 2,164,415

Total Liabilities  6,990,358 7,755,414 1,613,222 1,818,632 8,603,580 9,574,046
Deferred Inflows 2,925,205 2,174,837 87,636 46,700 3,012,841 2,221,537

Total Liabilities/Deferred Inflows 9,915,563 9,930,251 1,700,858 1,865,332 11,616,421 11,795,583

Net Position
Net Investment in

Capital Assets 29,142,699 28,476,351 44,166,857 44,650,887 73,309,556 73,127,238
Restricted 2,894,177 2,550,137 -     -     2,894,177 2,550,137
Unrestricted (Deficit) (3,290,726) (3,314,891) 2,635,635 2,144,313 (655,091) (1,170,578)

Total Net Position 28,746,150 27,711,597 46,802,492 46,795,200 75,548,642 74,506,797

Net Position
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Totals

 
 
A large portion of the Village’s net position, $73,309,556 or 97.0 percent, reflects its investment in capital 
assets (for example, land, construction in progress, buildings and improvements, vehicles, machinery and 
equipment, and infrastructure and underground water and sewer lines), less any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Village uses these capital assets to provide services to 
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Village’s 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed 
to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used 
to liquidate these liabilities.  
 
An additional portion, $2,894,177 or 3.8 percent, of the Village’s net position represents resources that 
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used, specifically for debt service requirements. 
The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is ($655,091) or (0.9) percent. 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
April 30, 2021 
 
 

 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS – Continued 
 

    

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for Services $ 763,345 866,606 3,338,374 3,305,204 4,101,719 4,171,810
Operating Grants/Contrib. 776,545 207,974 79,300 -     855,845 207,974
Capital Grants/Contrib. 495,127 -     220,060 -     715,187 -     

General Revenues
Taxes

Property Taxes 1,290,073 1,206,985 -     -     1,290,073 1,206,985
Sales and Use Taxes 974,800 867,993 -     -     974,800 867,993
Income Taxes 886,173 801,773 -     -     886,173 801,773
Utility Taxes 388,327 385,774 -     -     388,327 385,774
Cannabis Excise Taxes 5,459 1,375 -     -     5,459 1,375
Hotel/Motel Taxes 14,093 22,988 -     -     14,093 22,988

Intergovernmental - Unrestricted
Replacement Taxes 24,883 26,560 24,883 26,560

Investment Income 6,963 68,640 19 44 6,982 68,684
Miscellaneous 231,511 225,683 466 881 231,977 226,564

Total Revenues 5,857,299 4,682,351 3,638,219 3,306,129 9,495,518 7,988,480

Expenses
General Government 986,930 1,103,974 -     -     986,930 1,103,974
Highways and Streets 1,852,677 1,575,388 -     -     1,852,677 1,575,388
Police Protection 2,010,272 4,745,681 -     -     2,010,272 4,745,681
Planning and Zoning 1,103 732 -     -     1,103 732
Interest on Long-Term Debt 56,228 54,532 -     -     56,228 54,532
Water and Sewer -     -     2,848,264 2,886,665 2,848,264 2,886,665
Garbage -     -     698,199 653,034 698,199 653,034

Total Expenses 4,907,210 7,480,307 3,546,463 3,539,699 8,453,673 11,020,006

Change in Net Position Before Transfers 950,089 (2,797,956) 91,756 (233,570) 1,041,845 (3,031,526)

Transfers 84,464 -     (84,464) -     -     -     

Change in Net Position 1,034,553 (2,797,956) 7,292 (233,570) 1,041,845 (3,031,526)

Net Position - Beginning 27,711,597 30,509,553 46,795,200 47,028,770 74,506,797 77,538,323

Net Position-Ending 28,746,150 27,711,597 46,802,492 46,795,200 75,548,642 74,506,797

2021

Changes in Net Position
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Totals

 
 
Net position of the Village’s governmental activities increased by 3.7 percent ($28,746,150 in 2021 
compared to $27,711,597 in 2020). Unrestricted net position, the part of net position that can be used to 
finance day-to-day operations without constraints, was a deficit of $3,290,726 at April 30, 2021. 
 
Net position of business-type activities increased by less than one percent ($46,802,492 in 2021 compared 
to $46,795,200 in 2020).  
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS – Continued 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
Revenues for governmental activities totaled $5,857,299, while the cost of all governmental functions 
totaled $4,907,210. This results in an increase of $950,089 before a transfer in of $84,464 from the Water 
and Sewer Fund. In 2020, revenues of $4,682,351 were less than expenses of $7,480,307 resulting in a 
decrease of $2,797,956. During 2021, the Village continued to see increases in some of its state shared 
revenues; revenues for the governmental activities increased $1,174,948, while expenses decreased 
$2,573,097. 
 
The following table graphically depicts the major revenue sources of the Village. It depicts very clearly 
the reliance of property taxes and state shared revenues to fund governmental activities. It also clearly 
identifies the less significant percentage the Village receives from utility taxes and telecommunication 
taxes.  
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
April 30, 2021 
 
 

 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS – Continued 
 
Governmental Activities – Continued 
 
The ‘Expenses and Program Revenues’ Table identifies those governmental functions where program 
expenses greatly exceed revenues.  

 

 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 
Business-Type activities reported total revenues of $3,638,219, while the cost of all business-type 
activities totaled $3,546,463. This results in an increase to net position of $91,756, before transfers out of 
$84,464. In 2020, revenues of $3,306,129 were less than expenses of $3,539,699, resulting in a decrease 
in net position of $233,570. The increase in the current year is a result of a capital contribution.   
 

 
 

The above graph compares program revenues to expenses for utility operations. 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
April 30, 2021 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the Village uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Village’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, 
and balances of spendable resources. In particular, unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure 
of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The Village’s governmental funds reported combining ending fund balances of $4,204,542, which is 
$558,391 higher than last year’s total of $3,646,151. Of the $4,204,542 total, the Village has an unassigned 
fund balance of $1,228,678. 

The General Fund reported fund balance for the year of $1,787,614. Total revenues in the General Fund 
were $498,123 higher than the amount budgeted due primarily to the number of building permits issued, 
tax collections coming in higher than budgeted, conservative budgeting for State shared revenues, and 
grant revenue of $367,910. In addition, expenditures were $46,545 lower than budgeted. These factors 
resulted in an overall increase in fund balance of $221,661 or 14.2%. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. At April 30, 2021, unassigned fund balance 
in the General Fund was $1,590,321 which represents 89.0 percent of the total fund balance of the General 
Fund. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance 
to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund represents approximately 36.7 
percent of total General Fund expenditures. 

The Village reports one special revenue fund as a major fund: The Tax Increment Financing Fund.  The 
Tax Increment Financing Fund reported an increase in fund balance of $5,537. This is due to the annual 
payment of the 2016 General Obligation Bond offset by the transfer in from the Public Use Fund. 

The Village reports two capital projects funds as major funds: Transportation Impact Fees Fund and Public 
Use Fund.  The Transportation Impact Fees Fund reported an increase in fund balance of $102,821 due to 
the Village spending less on various projects during the current year. The Public Use Fund reported an 
increase of $14,981. 

All other governmental funds of the Village are reported as nonmajor funds, including the Motor Fuel Tax 
Fund, Road and Bridge Fund, Special Service Areas Fund, Evidence Fund, Hotel/Motel Tax Fund, Capital 
Bonds Fund, Capital Improvements Fund, TIF Revenue Bonds of 2009A/Tuscany Woods Line of Credit 
Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund, and Early Warning Impact Fee Fund. 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
April 30, 2021 
 
 

 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS – Continued  
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
The Village’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
The Village reports the Water and Sewer Fund as a major proprietary fund that account for the provision 
of water and sewer services to the residents of the Village. In the current year, the Water and Sewer Fund 
reported a decrease in net position of $111 due mainly to depreciation costs and a transfer out of $84,464 
a nonmajor governmental fund. 
 
The Village also reports the Garbage Fund as a major proprietary fund, which accounts for the provision 
of garbage service to the residents of the Village. In the current year, the Garbage Fund reported an 
increase in net position of $7,403 due to collections exceeding garbage expenses.  
 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
It has been the practice of the Village to not adopt budget amendments during or after the fiscal year. This 
year was no exception and no General Fund budget amendments occurred during the fiscal year. General 
Fund actual revenues for the year totaled $4,551,822 compared to budgeted revenues of $4,053,699. All 
revenue categories, except for charges for services, fines and forfeitures, and miscellaneous income, were 
greater than what was budgeted. Additionally, CARES Act funding for COVID relief was received. 
 
The General Fund actual expenditures for the year were $4,336,331 with budgeted expenditures of 
$4,382,876. Police protection and planning and zoning expenditures came in $207,175 and $1,056 under 
budget, respectively. 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The Village’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of April 30, 
2021 was $75,691,251 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, 
construction in progress, buildings and improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment, and 
infrastructure and underground water and sewer lines. 
 

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Land $ 20,962,535 20,962,535 1,201,448 1,201,448 22,163,983 22,163,983
Construction in Progress 76,234 -     144,798 69,128 221,032 69,128
Buildings and Improvements 32,474 5,300 19,742,391 20,326,926 19,774,865 20,332,226
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 725,822 736,362 634,700 629,299 1,360,522 1,365,661
Infrastructure and Underground

Water and Sewer Lines 8,748,025 8,449,471 23,422,824 23,901,426 32,170,849 32,350,897

Total 30,545,090 30,153,668 45,146,161 46,128,227 75,691,251 76,281,895

2021

 Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Totals
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
April 30, 2021 
 
 

 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION – Continued 
 
Capital Assets – Continued 

 
Construction in Progress $ 151,904       
Buildings and Improvements 28,423         
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 269,208       
Infrastructure and Underground

Water and Sewer Lines 849,829       

1,299,364    
 

 
Additional information on the Village’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 of this report. 
 
Debt Administration 
 
At year-end, the Village had total outstanding debt of $2,381,695 as compared to $3,154,657 the previous 
year, a decrease of 24.5 percent. The following is a comparative statement of outstanding debt: 
 

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Installment Contracts $ 179,524 271,650 -     -     179,524 271,650
General Obligations/

Alternate Revenue Bonds 1,222,867 1,405,667 237,133 500,638 1,460,000 1,906,305
IEPA Loans -     -     742,171 976,702 742,171 976,702

Totals 1,402,391 1,677,317 979,304 1,477,340 2,381,695 3,154,657

2021

Long-Term Debt Outstanding
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Totals

 
 
During the year, the Village did not issue new debt. State statutes limit the amount of general obligation 
debt a non-home rule governmental entity may issue to 8.625 percent of its total assessed valuation. The 
current debt limit for the Village is $20,248,011. 
 
Additional information on the Village’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3 of this report.  
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
April 30, 2021 
 
 

 

ECOMONIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES 
 
The Village considered many factors when developing and setting the subsequent fiscal year’s budget. 
The FY2021-2021 budget process was completed when State of Illinois was experiencing a second wave 
of Coronavirus and duration of the COVID-19 crisis was uncertain. After consideration, the Village Board 
elected to adopt the budget, as presented, and monitor the situation, maintaining governmental fund 
staffing levels and evaluating all expenditures as the emergency continues to evolve. 
 
Prior to the pandemic, the national and state economies had shown improvement which was having a 
positive impact on the local economic picture as well. The Village has continued to see modest residential 
growth, as well as interest in commercial and industrial property development particularly in the area near 
the Interstate 90 interchange at US Highway 20. 
 
Property taxes continue to provide a stable revenue source. The Village also receives revenues from other 
sources including state shared revenues, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues, grants, fines and fees for 
services. Upon certification of the 2020 census, the Village expects to benefit from increases in per capital 
State Shared Revenues due to the increase in population, but the Village continues to monitoring the 
potential impact on these State Shared revenues resulting from the state’s continued financial woes as well 
as the impact of COVID-19. 
 
Public Act-101-0627 which went into effect on January 24, 2020 changed the benefits of nine members 
of the Hampshire Police Pension Fund. This legislative change has resulted in a significant increase in the 
required annual employer contribution to the Fund beginning in fiscal year 2022-2023. 
 
The Village’s primary goal continues to be maintaining current service levels while being more efficient 
in providing them. Great focus in recent years have been maintaining and improving fund balances for 
future economic downturns. This focus has and will continue to help the Village weather COVID-19 crisis. 
Management will continue to monitor the situation for this and the following years’ budgetary position as 
the situation continues to develop. 
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village’s finances for all those with 
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional information should be directed to Lori Lyons, Finance Director, Village 
of Hampshire, 234 S. State Street, PO Box 457, Hampshire, IL 60140.
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• Government-Wide Financial Statements

• Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Fiduciary Funds

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial Statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required by the GASB. The sets

of statements include:

In addition, the notes to the financial statements are included to provide information that is essential to a user’s

understanding of the basic financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Position

April 30, 2021

Business-

Type

Activities Totals

Current Assets

Cash and Investments $ 4,583,561 2,134,657 6,718,218

Receivables - Net of Allowances 1,761,931 651,492 2,413,423

Prepaids 64,493 57,918 122,411

Internal Balances 27,554 (27,554) -      

Total Current Assets 6,437,539 2,816,513 9,254,052

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets 

Nondepreciable Capital Assets 21,038,769 1,346,246 22,385,015

Depreciable Capital Assets 14,242,491 65,696,300 79,938,791

Accumulated Depreciation (4,736,170) (21,896,385) (26,632,555)

Total Capital Assets 30,545,090 45,146,161 75,691,251

Other Assets

Net Pension Asset - IMRF 597,346 193,611 790,957

Total Noncurrent Assets 31,142,436 45,339,772 76,482,208

Total Assets 37,579,975 48,156,285 85,736,260

Deferred Items - IMRF 68,076 22,065 90,141

Deferred Items - Police Pension 1,013,662 -      1,013,662

Deferred Items - ARO -      325,000 325,000

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,081,738 347,065 1,428,803

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 38,661,713 48,503,350 87,165,063

Governmental

Activities

ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-

Type

Activities Totals

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 190,025 268,082 458,107

Accrued Payroll 81,810 10,864 92,674

Accrued Interest Payable 17,194 11,364 28,558

Deposits Payable 381,052 -      381,052

Other Liabilities 85,090 -      85,090

Current Portion of Long-term Debt 261,505 334,855 596,360

Total Current Liabilities 1,016,676 625,165 1,641,841

Noncurrent Liabilities

Net Pension Liability - Police Pension 4,698,482 -      4,698,482

Installment Contracts 136,933 -      136,933

General Obligation Alternate Revenue Source Bonds 1,138,267 161,733 1,300,000

IEPA Loan -      501,324 501,324

Asset Retirement Obligation -      325,000 325,000

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,973,682 988,057 6,961,739

Total Liabilities 6,990,358 1,613,222 8,603,580

Deferred Items - IMRF 270,383 87,636 358,019

Deferred Items - Police Pension 1,294,116 -      1,294,116

Property Taxes 1,360,706 -      1,360,706

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,925,205 87,636 3,012,841

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 9,915,563 1,700,858 11,616,421

Net Investment in Capital Assets 29,142,699 44,166,857 73,309,556

Restricted

Police Impound Fees 72,065 -      72,065

E-Citation 691 -      691

Tree Replacement 60,044 -      60,044

Highways and Streets 2,225,166 -      2,225,166

Subdivision Maintenance 29,136 -      29,136

Tourism 58,942 -      58,942

Public Use 351,602 -      351,602

Debt Service 96,531 -      96,531

Unrestricted (Deficit) (3,290,726) 2,635,635 (655,091)

Total Net Position 28,746,150 46,802,492 75,548,642

NET POSITION

LIABILITIES

Governmental

Activities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

 

Charges Operating Capital

for Grants/ Grants/

Services Contributions Contributions

Primary Government

Governmental Activities

General Government $ 986,930 587,561 367,910 -      

Highways and Streets 1,852,677 103,068 408,635 495,127

Police Protection 2,010,272 72,716 -      -      

Planning and Zoning 1,103 -      -      -      

Interest on Long-Term Debt 56,228 -      -      -      

Total Governmental Activities 4,907,210 763,345 776,545 495,127

Business-Type Activities

Water and Sewer 2,848,264 2,632,772 79,300 220,060

Garbage 698,199 705,602 -      -      

Total Business-Type Activities 3,546,463 3,338,374 79,300 220,060

Total Primary Government 8,453,673 4,101,719 855,845 715,187

General Revenues

Taxes

     Property Taxes

     Sales and Use Taxes

     Income Taxes

     Utility Taxes

     Cannabis Excise Taxes

     Hotel/Motel Taxes

Intergovernmental - Unrestricted

     Replacement Taxes

    Investment Income

    Miscellaneous

    Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

Program Revenues

Expenses

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Totals

(31,459) -      (31,459)

(845,847) -      (845,847)

(1,937,556) -      (1,937,556)

(1,103) -      (1,103)

(56,228) -      (56,228)

(2,872,193) -      (2,872,193)

-      83,868 83,868

-      7,403 7,403

-      91,271 91,271

(2,872,193) 91,271 (2,780,922)

1,290,073 -      1,290,073

974,800 -      974,800

886,173 -      886,173

388,327 -      388,327

5,459 -      5,459

14,093 -      14,093

24,883 -      24,883

6,963 19 6,982

231,511 466 231,977

84,464 (84,464) -      

3,906,746 (83,979) 3,822,767

1,034,553 7,292 1,041,845

27,711,597 46,795,200 74,506,797

28,746,150 46,802,492 75,548,642

Net (Expenses)/Revenues

Primary Government

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet 

April 30, 2021

Cash and Investments $ 2,154,779

Receivables - Net of Allowances

Property Taxes 1,130,841

Other Taxes 382,899

Due from Other Funds -      

Prepaids 64,493

Total Assets 3,733,012

Accounts Payable 133,202

Accrued Payroll 80,899

Deposits Payable 381,052

Other Liabilities 85,090

Due to Other Funds -      

Compensated Absences Payable 134,314

Total Liabilities 814,557

Property Taxes 1,130,841

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,945,398

Nonspendable 64,493

Restricted 132,800

Unassigned 1,590,321

Total Fund Balances 1,787,614

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources  and Fund Balances 3,733,012

FUND BALANCES

General

ASSETS

LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Special Revenue

Tax  Transportation

Increment Impact Public 

Financing Fees Use Nonmajor Totals

8,051 1,038,509 -      1,382,222 4,583,561

54,181 -      -      175,684 1,360,706

-      -      -      18,326 401,225

-      18,226 351,602 39,952 409,780

-      -      -      -      64,493

62,232 1,056,735 351,602 1,616,184 6,819,765

126 -      -      56,697 190,025

-      -      -      911 81,810

-      -      -      -      381,052

-      -      -      -      85,090

369,568 -      -      12,658 382,226

-      -      -      -      134,314

369,694 -      -      70,266 1,254,517

54,181 -      -      175,684 1,360,706

423,875 -      -      245,950 2,615,223

-      -      -      -      64,493

-      1,056,735 351,602 1,370,234 2,911,371

(361,643) -      -      -      1,228,678

(361,643) 1,056,735 351,602 1,370,234 4,204,542

62,232 1,056,735 351,602 1,616,184 6,819,765

Capital Projects

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balance to the

Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities

April 30, 2021

 

Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 4,204,542

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position

are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 30,545,090

A net pension asset is not considered to represent a financial resource and 

therefore is not reported in the funds.

Net Pension Asset - IMRF 597,346

Deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to the pensions not 

reported in the funds.

Deferred Items - IMRF (202,307)

Deferred Items - Police Pension (280,454)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current

period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Net Pension Liability - Police Pension (4,698,482)

Installment Contracts (179,524)

General Obligation Alternate Revenue Source Bonds (1,222,867)

Accrued Interest Payable (17,194)

Net Position of Governmental Activities 28,746,150

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Revenues

Taxes $ 3,308,593

Intergovernmental 391,134

Charges for Services 297,185

Licenses and Permits 245,520

Fines and Forfeitures 72,716

Investment Income 5,163

Miscellaneous 231,511

Total Revenues 4,551,822

Expenditures

Current

General Government 1,186,767

Highways and Streets 988,361

Police Protection 1,982,316

Planning and Zoning 1,103

Debt Service  

Principal Retirement 163,575

Interest and Fiscal Charges 14,209

    Total Expenditures 4,336,331

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 215,491

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Disposal of Capital Assets 6,600

Transfers In -      

Transfers Out (430)

(430)

Net Change in Fund Balances 221,661

Fund Balances - Beginning 1,565,953

Fund Balances - Ending 1,787,614

General

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Special Revenue

Tax  Transportation

Increment Impact Public 

Financing Fees Use Nonmajor Totals

47,434 -      -      202,898 3,558,925

-      -      -      410,294 801,428

-      103,068 44,856 -      445,109

-      -      -      -      245,520

-      -      -      -      72,716

11 -      125 1,664 6,963

-      -      -      -      231,511

47,445 103,068 44,981 614,856 5,362,172

786 -      -      26,000 1,213,553

-      247 -      375,895 1,364,503

-      -      -      -      1,982,316

-      -      -      -      1,103

 

34,400 -      -      76,951 274,926

36,722 -      -      7,513 58,444

71,908 247 -      486,359 4,894,845

(24,463) 102,821 44,981 128,497 467,327

-      -      -      -      6,600

30,000 -      -      84,894 114,894

-      -      (30,000) -      (30,430)

30,000 -      (30,000) 84,894 84,464

5,537 102,821 14,981 213,391 558,391

(367,180) 953,914 336,621 1,156,843 3,646,151

(361,643) 1,056,735 351,602 1,370,234 4,204,542

Capital Projects

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

to the Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 558,391

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities

are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital Outlays 356,308

Capital Contribution 495,127

Depreciation Expense (460,013)

An addition to a net pension asset is not considered to be an increase in a

financial asset in the governmental funds.

Change in Net Pension Asset - IMRF 204,334

The net effect of deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to the

pensions not reported in the funds. 

Change in Deferred Items - IMRF (115,945)

Change in Deferred Items - Police Pension (614,364)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to

governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal on long-term

debt consumes the current financial resources of the governmental funds.

Change in Net Pension Liability - Police Pension 333,573

Retirement of Debt 274,926

Changes to accrued interest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities

does not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not

reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 2,216

Changes in Net Position of Governmental Activities 1,034,553

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds 

April 30, 2021
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds

April 30, 2021

Garbage Totals

Current Assets

Cash and Investments $ 2,134,657     -             2,134,657     

Receivables - Net of Allowances

Accounts 505,259        146,233     651,492        

Due from Other Funds 28,020          353            28,373          

Prepaids 57,918          -             57,918          

Total Current Assets 2,725,854     146,586     2,872,440     

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets

Nondepreciable Capital Assets 1,346,246     -             1,346,246     

Depreciable Capital Assets 65,696,300   -             65,696,300   

Accumulated Depreciation (21,896,385) -             (21,896,385) 

Total Capital Assets 45,146,161   -             45,146,161   

Other Assets

Net Pension Asset - IMRF 193,611        -             193,611        

Total Noncurrent Assets 45,339,772   -             45,339,772   

Total Assets 48,065,626   146,586     48,212,212   

Deferred Items - IMRF 22,065          -             22,065          

Deferred Items - ARO 325,000        -             325,000        

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 347,065        -             347,065        

Total Assets and Deferred Outlows of Resources 48,412,691   146,586     48,559,277   

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise 

ASSETS

Water and

Sewer

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Garbage Totals

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 209,393        58,689       268,082        

Accrued Payroll 10,864          -             10,864          

Accrued Interest Payable 11,364          -             11,364          

Due to Other Funds 27,907          28,020       55,927          

Compensated Absences Payable 18,608          -             18,608          

General Obligation Alternate Revenue Source Bonds 75,400          -             75,400          

IEPA Loan 240,847        -             240,847        

Total Current Liabilities 594,383        86,709       681,092        

Noncurrent Liabilities

General Obligation Alternate Revenue Source Bonds 161,733        -             161,733        

IEPA Loan 501,324        -             501,324        

Asset Retirement Obligation 325,000        -             325,000        

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 988,057        -             988,057        

Total Liabilities 1,582,440     86,709       1,669,149     

Deferred Items - IMRF 87,636          -             87,636          

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,670,076     86,709       1,756,785     

Net Investment in Capital Assets 44,166,857   -             44,166,857   

Unrestricted 2,575,758     59,877       2,635,635     

Total Net Position 46,742,615   59,877       46,802,492   

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise 

LIABILITIES

NET POSITION

Water and

Sewer

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Garbage Totals

Operating Revenues

Charges for Services $ 2,625,122   705,602   3,330,724   

Operating Expenses

Operations

Water Department 761,187      -           761,187      

Sewer Department 572,260      -           572,260      

Garbage Department -              698,199   698,199      

System Improvements 53,105        -           53,105        

Depreciation 1,429,995   -           1,429,995   

Total Operating Expenses 2,816,547   698,199   3,514,746   

Operating Income (Loss) (191,425)     7,403       (184,022)     

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Tap On Fees 7,650          -           7,650          

Investment Income 19               -           19               

Grants 79,300        -           79,300        

Other Income 466             -           466             

Interest and Fiscal Charges (31,717)       -           (31,717)       

55,718        -           55,718        

Income (Loss) Before Transfers and Contributions (135,707)     7,403       (128,304)     

-              

Contributions 220,060      -           220,060      

Transfers Out (84,464)       -           (84,464)       

135,596      -           135,596      

Change in Net Position (111)            7,403       7,292          

Net Position - Beginning 46,742,726 52,474     46,795,200 

Net Position - Ending 46,742,615 59,877     46,802,492 

Water and

Sewer

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Garbage Totals

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from Customers and Users $ 2,607,363  696,973   3,304,336   

Payments to Employees (252,210)    -           (252,210)    

Payments to Suppliers (1,100,657) (696,973)  (1,797,630) 

1,254,496  -           1,254,496   

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Transfers Out (84,464) -      (84,464)      

Cash Flows from Capital and Related

Financing Activities

Purchase of Capital Assets (227,869)    -           (227,869)    

Principal on Capital Debt (498,036)    -           (498,036)    

Interest on Capital Debt (31,717)      -           (31,717)      

(757,622)    -           (757,622)    

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest Received 19              -           19               

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 412,429     -           412,429      

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 1,722,228  -           1,722,228   

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending 2,134,657  -           2,134,657   

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss)  (191,425)    7,403       (184,022)    

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating 

Income to Net Income to Net Cash

Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities:

Depreciation Expense 1,429,995  -           1,429,995   

Other Income (Expenses) 87,416       -           87,416        

(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets (105,175)    (8,629)      (113,804)    

Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities 33,685       1,226       34,911        

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,254,496  -           1,254,496   

Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities

Capital Contributions 220,060 -      220,060

Water and

Sewer

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

April 30, 2021

Custodial

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,523,208  1,646,409  

Accounts Receivable -             45              

2,523,208  1,646,454  

Accounts Payable -             -             

Restricted

Pensions 2,523,208  -             

Individuals, Organizations, and Other Governments -             1,646,454  

Total Net Position 2,523,208  1,646,454  

NET POSITION

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

    Pension    

Trust

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Custodial

Additions

Contributions - Employer $ 300,000 -      

Contributions - Plan Members 100,347 -      

Total Contributions 400,347 -      

Investment Income

Interest Earned 3,344 1,013

Net Change in Fair Value -      -      

3,344 1,013

Less Investment Expenses -      -      

Net Investment Income 3,344 1,013

Property Taxes -      1,329,889

Total Additions 403,691 1,330,902

Deductions

Administration 11,670 -      

Benefits and Refunds 144,794 -      

Professional Services -      65,653

Debt Service

Principal Retirement -      1,610,381

Total Deductions 156,464 1,676,034

Change in Fiduciary Net Position 247,227 (345,132)

Net Position Restricted for Pensions, Individuals, Organizations, 

and Other Governments

Beginning 2,275,981 1,991,586

Ending 2,523,208 1,646,454

Pension

Trust

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
April 30, 2021  
 
 

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
The Village of Hampshire (Village), Illinois, is a municipal corporation governed by an elected president 
and six-member Board of Trustees. The Village’s major operations include police protection, highway 
and street maintenance and reconstruction, planning and zoning, economic development, water, sewer 
and garbage services and general administrative services. 

 
The government-wide financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP), except as described in the Basis of Presentation below. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local 
governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). The more significant of the 
Village’s accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the Village are described below. 

 
REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The Village’s financial reporting entity comprises the primary government, the Village of Hampshire. 
 
In determining the financial reporting entity, the Village complies with the provisions of GASB Statement 
No. 61, “The Financial Reporting Omnibus – an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34,” 
and includes all component units that have a significant operational or financial relationship with the 
Village. Based upon the criteria set forth in the GASB Statement No. 61, there are no component units 
included in the reporting entity. 
 
Police Pension Employees Retirement System 
 
The Village’s sworn police employees participate in the Police Pension Employees Retirement System 
(PPERS). PPERS functions for the benefit of these employees and is governed by a five-member pension 
board. Two members appointed by the Village’s President and three elected police employees constitute 
the pension board. Although there are 3 retirees in fiscal year-end April 30, 2021, there are no elected 
pension beneficiaries. The participants are required to contribute a percentage of salary as established by 
state statute and the Village is obligated to fund all remaining PPERS costs based upon actuarial 
valuations. The State of Illinois is authorized to establish benefit levels and the Village is authorized to 
approve the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of contribution levels. 
 
Although it is legally separate from the Village, the PPERS is reported as if it were part of the primary 
government because its sole purpose is to provide retirement benefits for the Village’s police employees. 
The PPERS is reported as a fiduciary fund, and specifically a pension trust fund, due to the fiduciary 
responsibility exercised over the PPERS. 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
April 30, 2021  
 
 

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
Government-Wide Statements 
 
The Village’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Village as a whole) 
and fund financial statements (reporting the Village’s major funds). Both the government-wide and fund 
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type. The Village’s 
police protection, highway and street maintenance and reconstruction, planning and zoning, economic 
development and general administrative services are classified as governmental activities. The Village’s 
water, sewer and garbage services are classified as business-type activities. 
 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities 
columns are: (a) presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) reported on a full accrual, economic 
resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets/deferred outflows and receivables as well as long-
term debt/deferred inflows and obligations.  
 
The Village’s net position is reported in three parts: net investment in capital assets; restricted; and 
unrestricted. The Village first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities. 
 
The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the Village’s 
functions and business-type activities (general government, police protection, highways and streets, etc.). 
The functions are supported by general government revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain 
intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross 
expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, which include 1) changes to customers 
or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given 
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. 
 
The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue (property 
tax, sales tax, interest income, etc.). The Village allocates indirect costs to the proprietary funds for 
personnel who perform administrative services for those funds, along with other indirect costs deemed 
necessary for their operations, but are paid through the General Fund. This government-wide focus 
concentrates on the sustainability of the Village as an entity and the change in the Village’s net position 
resulting from the current year’s activities. 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
April 30, 2021  
 
 

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION – Continued 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The financial transactions of the Village are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. 
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its 
assets/deferred outflows, liabilities/deferred inflows, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. 
Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. The emphasis 
in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type activities 
categories. Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASB Statement No. 34 
sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets/deferred outflows, liabilities/deferred inflows, 
revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) 
for the determination of major funds. The Village electively added funds, as major funds, which either 
had debt outstanding or specific community focus. The nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the 
fund financial statements. 
 
A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the Village or meets the following criteria: 
 

Total assets/deferred outflows, liabilities/deferred inflows, revenues, or 
expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund 
are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that 
category or type; and 
 
Total assets/deferred outflows, liabilities/deferred inflows, revenues, or 
expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or enterprise 
fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental 
and enterprise funds combined. 

 
The various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements. The following 
fund types are used by the Village: 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of 
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) 
rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the Village: 
 
General fund is the general operating fund of the Village. It is used to account for all financial resources 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is a major fund. 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION – Continued 
 
Fund Financial Statements – Continued 
 
Governmental Funds – Continued  
 
Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The Village maintains one major and five non-major 
special revenue funds.  
 
Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general 
long-term debt principal and interest. The Village maintains one nonmajor debt service fund. 
 
Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by business-type/proprietary funds). 
The Village maintains two major capital projects funds, Transportation Impact Fees Fund and Public Use 
Fund. The Transportation Impact Fees Fund is used to account for the proceeds of transportation impact 
fees and the improvements funded by the fees. The Public Use Fund is used to account for the proceeds 
of public use impact fees and the improvements funded by the fees. The Village also maintains four non-
major capital projects funds. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net 
position, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are 
those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary funds 
of the Village: 
 
Enterprise funds are required to account for operations for which a fee is charged to external users for 
goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of the net 
revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing services, including capital costs, be 
recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to 
recover similar costs. The Village maintains two major enterprise funds, the Water and Sewer Fund and 
the Garbage Fund. The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for the provision of potable water and 
sewer services to the residents and businesses of the Village. The Garbage Fund is used to account for 
the provision of solid waste services to the residents and businesses of the Village financed by user fees. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION – Continued 
 
Fund Financial Statements – Continued 
 
Fiduciary Funds 
 
Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or custodial capacity for others and therefore 
are not available to support Village programs. The reporting focus is on net position and changes in net 
position and is reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. 
 
Pension trust funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for pension benefit payments. 
The Police Pension Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for disability 
and retirement annuity payments to employees covered by the plan. Financing is provided by employee 
contributions, the Village’s contribution and investment income. 
 
Custodial funds are used to account for assets held by the Village in a purely custodial capacity. The 
Special Service Areas #9, #14, and #16 - #19 Fund is used to account for the collection of taxes from 
special service areas #9, #14 and #16 - #19 and remittance to bondholders. 
 
The Village’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type (pension 
trust and custodial). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (other 
local governments, private parties, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the 
Village, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements. 
 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within the various 
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the 
measurement focus applied. 
 
Measurement Focus 
 
On the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, both governmental 
and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined 
below. In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the 
“economic resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - Continued 
 
Measurement Focus – Continued  
 
All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus. Only current financial 
assets/deferred outflows and liabilities/deferred inflows are generally included on their balance sheets. 
Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a 
given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at 
the end of the period. 
 
All proprietary and fiduciary funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting 
objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net position 
(or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets/deferred outflows and liabilities/deferred 
inflows (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary, pension 
trust, and custodial fund equity is classified as net position. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, both governmental and 
business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability/deferred 
inflow is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets/deferred outflows, 
and liabilities/deferred inflows resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized 
when the exchange takes place.  
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when “measurable 
and available.” Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available 
means collectible within the current period or within sixty days after year-end. The Village recognizes 
property taxes when they become both measurable and available in accordance with GASB Codification 
Section P70. A sixty-day availability period is used for revenue recognition for all other governmental 
fund revenues. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is 
incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are recognized when due. 
 
In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, those revenues 
susceptible to accrual are property taxes, sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest revenue 
and charges for services. All other revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not 
measurable until received in cash. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING – Continued  
 
Basis of Accounting – Continued  
 
All proprietary, pension trust and custodial funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability 
is incurred or economic asset used. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of 
the Village’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The Village also recognizes 
as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to 
the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET 
POSITION OR EQUITY  
 
Cash and Investments 
 
Cash and cash equivalents on the Statement of Net Position are considered to be cash on hand, demand 
deposits, cash with fiscal agent. For the purpose of the proprietary funds “Statement of Cash Flows,” cash 
and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, cash with fiscal agent, and all 
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.  
 
Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates 
fair value. For investments, the Village categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value 
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation 
inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs. All of the Village’s investments are in 2a7-like investment pools that are measured 
at the net asset value per share determined by the pool. 
 
Prepaids 
 
Prepaids are valued at cost, which approximates market. The cost of governmental fund-type prepaids 
are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. Certain payments to vendors 
reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaids in both the government-
wide and fund financial statements. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET 
POSITION OR EQUITY – Continued  
 
Interfund Receivables, Payables and Activity 
 
Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported 
as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. 
Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and 
expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate 
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are 
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the 
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $10,000 or more, depending on asset class, 
are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at acquisition 
value as of the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend 
the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed 
as incurred. 
 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement 
focus. General capital assets are long-lived assets of the Village as a whole. Infrastructure, such as streets, 
traffic signals and signs are capitalized. The valuation basis for general capital assets is historical cost, or 
where historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement costs. Capital assets 
in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized. The valuation basis for 
proprietary fund capital assets are the same as those used for the general capital assets. Donated capital 
assets are capitalized at estimated fair market value on the date donated. 
 
Depreciation on all assets is computed and recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation over 
the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Buildings and Improvements 10 - 50 Years 
 
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 5 - 20 Years 
 
Underground Water and Sewer Lines 25 - 50 Years 
 
Infrastructure 25 - 50 Years 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET 
POSITION OR EQUITY – Continued  
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
Deferred outflow/inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period and therefore will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense)/inflow of resources 
(revenue) until that future time. 
 
Long-Term Obligations 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums 
and discounts, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. 
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are 
reported as expenses at the time of issuance. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditure. 
 
Net Position 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three 
components: 
 

Net Investment in Capital Assets – Consists of capital assets 
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, 
notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 
 
Restricted – Consists of net position with constraints placed on the 
use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislations. 
 
Unrestricted – All other net position that do not meet the definition 
of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.” 
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NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
BUDGETARY INFORMATION 
 
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. All departments 
of the Village submit requests for budgets so that a budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by 
fund, function, and activity, and includes information on the past year, current year estimates, and 
requested budgets for the next fiscal year.  
 
The proposed budget is presented to the Village Board for review. The Village Board holds public 
hearings and may add to, subtract from, or change budgeted amounts, but may not change the form of the 
budget. 
 
The Finance Director is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within any fund; however, the Board of 
Trustees must approve any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund. State statues establish 
that expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. Appropriations lapse 
at the end of the fiscal year. No supplemental appropriations were made during the year.  
 
Budgets are prepared for all funds except the TIF Revenue Bonds of 2009A/Tuscany Woods Line of 
Credit Fund, the Evidence Fund, Capital Bonds Fund, and the Early Warning Impact Fees Fund. 
 
EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES OVER BUDGET IN INDIVIDUAL 
FUNDS 
 
The following funds had an excess of actual expenditures/expenses, exclusive of depreciation, over 
budget for the fiscal year: 

 
Fund

Transportation Impact Fees $ 247
Capital Improvement 72,691

Garbage 94,178
Police Pension 18,403

Excess

 
 

DEFICIT FUND BALANCE 
 
The following fund reported deficit fund balance at year-end: 

 
Fund

Tax Increment Financing $ 361,643

Deficit
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The Village maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's 
portion of this pool is displayed on the financial statements as "cash and investments." In addition, 
investments are separately held by several of the Village's funds. The deposits and investments of the 
pension trust funds are held separately from those of other funds. 
 
Permitted Deposits and Investments – Statutes authorize the Village to make deposits/invest in 
commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, 
obligations of States and their political subdivisions, credit union shares, repurchase agreements, 
commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services, 
and Illinois Funds.  
 
The deposits and investments of the Pension Fund are held separately from those of other Village funds. 
Statutes authorize the Pension Fund to make deposits/invest in interest bearing direct obligations of the 
United States of America; obligations that are fully guaranteed or insured as to the payment of principal 
and interest by the United States of America; bonds, notes, debentures, or similar obligations of agencies 
of the United States of America; savings accounts or certificates of deposit issued by banks or savings and 
loan associations chartered by the United States of America or by the State of Illinois, to the extent that the 
deposits are insured by the agencies or instrumentalities of the federal government; credit unions, to the 
extent that the deposits are insured by the agencies or instrumentalities of the federal government; State of 
Illinois bonds; pooled accounts managed by the Illinois Funds Market Fund (Formerly known as IPTIP, 
Illinois Public Treasurer’s Investment Pool), or by banks, their subsidiaries or holding companies, in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois; bonds or tax anticipation warrants of any county, township, 
or municipal corporation of the State of Illinois; direct obligations of the State of Israel; money market 
mutual funds managed by investment companies that are registered under the Federal Investment Company 
Act of 1940 and the Illinois Securities Law of 1953 and are diversified, open-ended management 
investment companies, provided the portfolio is limited to specified restrictions; general accounts of life 
insurance companies; and separate accounts of life insurance companies and mutual funds, the mutual 
funds must meet specific restrictions, provided the investment in separate accounts and mutual funds does 
not exceed ten percent of the Pension Fund’s plan net position; and corporate bonds managed through an 
investment advisor, rated as investment grade by one of the two largest rating services at the time of 
purchase. Pension Funds with plan net position of $2.5 million or more may invest up to forty-five percent 
of plan net position in separate accounts of life insurance companies and mutual funds. Pension Funds 
with plan net position of at least $5 million that have appointed an investment advisor, may through that 
investment advisor invest up to forty-five percent of the plan net position in common and preferred stocks 
that meet specific restrictions. In addition, pension funds with plan net position of at least $10 million 
that have appointed an investment advisor, may invest up to fifty percent of its net position in common 
and preferred stocks and mutual funds that meet specific restrictions effective July 1, 2011 and up to fifty-
five percent effective July 1, 2012. 
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued  
 
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – Continued  
 
The Illinois Funds is an investment pool managed by the Illinois Public Treasurer’s Office which allows 
governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. The Illinois Funds is not 
registered with the SEC as an investment company. Investments in Illinois Funds are valued at the share 
price, the price for which the investment could be sold. 
 
Village Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration Risk 
 
Deposits. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Village’s deposits for governmental and business-type 
activities totaled $4,697,889 and the bank balances totaled $4,785,776. The Village also has $2,020,329 
invested in the Illinois Funds at year-end, which are measured by net asset value per share determined by 
the pool. 
 
Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. The Village’s investment policy states that the portfolio should be structured to 
provide liquidity for short and long-term cash flow needs while providing a reasonable rate of return 
based on the current market and limiting investments to a maximum maturity of three years from 
purchase, unless designated for a specific purpose. The Village’s investment in the Illinois Funds has an 
average maturity of less than one year. 
 
Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. The Village limits its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing in external investment 
pools. The Village’s investment in the Illinois Funds was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
Village’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Village’s investment policy requires all security 
transactions that are exposed to custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment basis 
with the underlying investments held by an independent third-party custodian designated by the treasurer 
and evidenced by safekeeping receipts and a custodial agreement. At year-end, the entire amount of the 
bank balance of deposits was covered by collateral, federal depository or equivalent insurance. The 
Village’s investment in the Illinois Funds is not subject to custodial credit risk. 
 
Concentration Risk. This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Village’s investment in a 
single issuer. The Village’s investment policy states that investments shall be diversified to the best of 
the Village’s ability based on the type of funds invested and the cash flow needs of those funds. At year-
end, the Village does not have any investments over 5 percent of the total cash and investment portfolio 
(other than investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in mutual 
funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments). 
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued  
 
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – Continued  
 
Police Pension Fund Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration 
Risk 
 
Deposits. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Fund’s deposits totaled $2,523,208 and the bank 
balances totaled $2,523,208. 
 
Interest Rate Risk. The Fund’s investment policy states assets shall be sufficiently liquid to enable the 
Fund to pay all necessary benefits and meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably 
anticipated.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure, 
the Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. The Fund’s investment policy states that investment contracts and 
agreements of life insurance companies licensed to do business in the state of Illinois shall be rated at 
least A+ by Moody’s and AA+ by Standard and Poor’s, and securities issued by the state of Illinois, or 
any county, township, or municipal corporation within the state of Illinois should not be rated less than 
Aa by Moody’s or AA+ by Standard and Poor’s. At year-end, the Fund does not have any investments. 
 
Credit Risk. The Fund’s investment policy limits credit risk by restricting investments to those allowed 
by the Illinois Pension Code, Illinois Compiled Statutes Chapter 40 Act 5 Articles 1 and 3, and the Public 
Funds Investment Act.  
 
Concentration Risk. This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Fund’s investment in a single 
issuer. The Fund’s investment policy states that investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks 
to ensure the preservation of capital. As such, the Board has consciously diversified the aggregate fund 
to ensure that adverse or unexpected results will not have an excessively detrimental impact on the entire 
portfolio when possible. Diversification is to be interpreted to include diversification by asset type, 
characteristics, number of investments, and in the case of investment money managers, by investment 
style. At year-end, the Fund does not have any investments (other than investments issued or explicitly 
guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other 
pooled investments) in any one organization that represent 5 percent or more of net position available for 
benefits. At year-end, the Fund does not have any investments. 
 
The Fund’s investment policy in accordance with Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) establishes the 
following target allocation across asset classes:  

 
Long-Term

Expected Real
Asset Class Target Rate of Return

Cash and Cash Equivalents 100% 0.0%   
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued  
 
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – Continued  
 
Police Pension Fund Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration 
Risk – Continued 
 
Concentration Risk – Continued. Securities in any one company should not exceed 5% of the total fund.  
 
The long-term expected rate of return on the Fund’s investments was determined using an asset allocation 
study conducted by the Fund’s investment management consultant in May 2020 in which best-estimate 
ranges of expected future real rates of return (net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) were 
developed for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected 
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adding the expected inflation. Best estimates or arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset 
class included in the Fund’s target asset allocation as of April 30, 2021 are listed in the table on the 
previous page.  
 
Rate of Return 
 
For the year ended April 30, 2021, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments, 
net of pension plan investment expense, was 0.03%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses 
investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 
 
PROPERTY TAXES 
 
Property taxes for 2020 attach as an enforceable lien on January 1, on property values assessed as of the 
same date. Taxes are levied by December of the subsequent fiscal year (by passage of a Tax Levy 
Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by County Collector and are payable in two installments, on or about 
June 1 and September 1. The County collects such taxes and remits them periodically. 
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued  
 
CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
Governmental capital asset activity for the year was as follows: 

 
Ending 

Increases Decreases Balances

Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Land $ 20,962,535 -      -      20,962,535
Contruction in Progress -      76,234 76,234

20,962,535 76,234 -      21,038,769

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements 58,800  28,423 -      87,223
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 1,967,898 170,121 -      2,138,019
Infrastructure 11,440,592 576,657 -      12,017,249

13,467,290 775,201 -      14,242,491

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements 53,500 1,249 -      54,749
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 1,231,536 180,661 -      1,412,197
Infrastructure 2,991,121 278,103 -      3,269,224

4,276,157 460,013 -      4,736,170

Total Net Depreciable Capital Assets 9,191,133 315,188 -      9,506,321

Total Net Capital Assets 30,153,668 391,422 -      30,545,090

Beginning
Balances

 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 
 

General Government $ 3,222
Highways and Streets 403,633
Police Protection 53,158
 
 460,013
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS – Continued 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 
Business-type capital asset activity for the year was as follows: 
 

Ending 
Increases Decreases Balances

Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Land $ 1,201,448 -      -      1,201,448
Construction in Progress 69,128 75,670 -      144,798

1,270,576 75,670 -      1,346,246

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements 28,847,129 -      -      28,847,129
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 1,254,907 99,087 41,348 1,312,646
Underground Water and Sewer Lines 35,263,353 273,172 -      35,536,525

65,365,389 372,259 41,348 65,696,300

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements 8,520,203 584,535 -      9,104,738
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 625,608 93,686 41,348 677,946
Underground Water and Sewer Lines 11,361,927 751,774 -      12,113,701

20,507,738 1,429,995 41,348 21,896,385

Total Net Depreciable Capital Assets 44,857,651 (1,057,736) -      43,799,915

Total Net Capital Assets 46,128,227 (982,066) -      45,146,161

Beginning
Balances

 
 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows: 
 

Water and Sewer $ 1,429,995
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 
 
Interfund Balances 
 
Interfund balances are advances in anticipation of receipts to cover temporary cash shortages and result 
from the time lag between when transactions are recorded in the accounting system and payments 
between funds are made. The composition of interfund balances as of the date of this report is as follows: 

 
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Public Use Nonmajor Governmental 351,602
Transportation Impact Fees Nonmajor Governmental 17,966

Nonmajor Governmental Nonmajor Governmental 12,658
Transportation Impact Fees Water and Sewer 260
Nonmajor Governmental Water and Sewer 27,294

Garbage Water and Sewer 353
Water and Sewer Garbage 28,020

438,153
 

 
Interfund Transfers 
 
Interfund transfers for the year consisted of the following: 
 

Transfer In Transfer Out Amount

Tax Increment Financing Public Use $ 30,000
Nonmajor Governmental General 430
Nonmajor Governmental Water and Sewer 84,464

114,894
 

 
Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the 
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them. 
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
Noncommitment Debt – Special Service Area Bonds 
 
Special service area bonds outstanding as of the date of this report totaled $14,630,000. These bonds are 
not an obligation of the government and are secured by the levy of an annual tax on the real property 
within the special service area. The government is in no way liable for repayment but is only acting as 
agent for the property owners in levying and collecting the tax, and forwarding the collections to 
bondholders. 
 
Installment Contracts 
 
The Village enters into installment contracts to provide funds for the acquisition of capital assets. 
Installment contracts currently outstanding are as follows: 
 

Fund Debt Ending
Issue Retired by Issuances Retirements Balances

General $ 25,000 -      25,000 -      

General 11,400 -      11,400 -      

General 15,250 -      15,250 -      

General 220,000 -      40,476 179,524

271,650 -      92,126 179,524

Snow Plow Installment Contract of 2017 -
Due in annual installments of $25,920 to
$27,089 including interest at 2.75%
through July 6, 2020. 

Equipment Installment Contract of 2017 -
Due in annual installments of $11,400
interest free through July 10, 2020. 

Beginning
Balances

Installment Contract of 2020 - Due in
monthly installments of $3,984 including
interest at 3.26% through March 20,
2025. 

Installment Contract of 2019 - Due in
annual installments of $14,742 to 30,008
including interest at 3.42% through
October 15, 2020. 
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT – Continued 
 
General Obligation Alternate Revenue Source Bonds  
 
The Village issues bonds for which the Village pledges income derived from specific revenue sources to 
pay debt service. Alternate revenue source bonds further pledge the full faith and credit of the Village 
should the alternate revenue source be insufficient. Alternate revenue source bonds currently outstanding 
are as follows: 
 

Fund Debt Ending
Issue Retired by Issuances Retirements Balances

Water and
Sewer $ 66,305 -      66,305 -      

General/
Capital
Bonds 305,667 -      142,800 162,867

Water and
Sewer 434,333 -      197,200 237,133

General 131,300 -      5,600 125,700

Tax
Increment
Financing 968,700 -      34,400 934,300

1,906,305 -      446,305 1,460,000

Balances

Taxable General Obligation Alternate
Bonds of 2010 - Due in annual
installments of $51,564 to $66,305 plus
interest of 1.15% - 4.80% through
December 15, 2020.

Beginning

General Obligation (Alternate Revenue
Source) Refunding Bonds of 2012 - Due
in annual installments of $95,000 to
$340,000 plus interest of 2.00% - 2.75%
through December 15, 2023.

General Obligation (Alternate Revenue
Source) Refunding Bonds of 2016 - Due
in annual installments of $5,000 to
$205,000 plus interest of 3.00% - 4.00%
through December 15, 2028.

 
 
IEPA Loan 
 
The Village has entered into loan agreements with the IEPA to provide low interest financing for water 
and sewer improvements. IEPA loans currently outstanding are as follows: 
 

Fund Debt Ending
Issue Retired by Issuances Retirements Balances

Water and
Sewer $ 976,702 -      234,531 742,171

Balances

IEPA Loan of 2002 - Due in semi-annual
installments of $129,550 including
interest at 2.675% through November 15,
2023.

Beginning
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT – Continued 
 
Asset Retirement Obligation 
 
The Village has recognized an asset retirement obligation (ARO) and related deferred outflow of 
resources in connection with its obligation to seal and abandon various water wells at the end of their 
estimated useful lives in accordance with federal, state, and/or local requirements. The ARO was 
measured using actual historical costs for similar abandonments, adjusted for inflation through the end of 
the year. The estimated remaining useful lives of the water wells are 4-88 years. 
 
Long-Term Liability Activity 
 
Changes in long-term liabilities during the fiscal year were as follows: 

 
Amounts

Ending Due within
Additions Deductions Balances One Year

Governmental Activities
Compensated Absences $ 132,457 3,714 1,857 134,314 134,314
Net Pension Liability - Police Pension 5,032,055 -      333,573 4,698,482 -      
Installment Contracts 271,650 -      92,126 179,524 42,591
General Obligation Alternate

Revenue Source Bonds 1,405,667 -      182,800 1,222,867 84,600

6,841,829 3,714 610,356 6,235,187 261,505

Business-Type Activities
Compensated Absences 19,191 583 1,166 18,608 18,608
General Obligation Alternate

Revenue Source Bonds 500,638 -      263,505 237,133 75,400
IEPA Loan 976,702 -      234,531 742,171 240,847
Asset Retirement Obligation -      325,000 -      325,000 -      

1,496,531 325,583 499,202 1,322,912 334,855

Beginning
Type of Debt Balances

 
 

For governmental activities, payments on the compensated absences, the net pension liability, and the 
installment contracts are being made by the General Fund. The General Fund, the Capital Bonds Fund 
and the Tax Increment Financing Fund make payments on the general obligation alternate revenue source 
bonds.  
 
For business-type activities, the Water and Sewer Fund makes payments on the compensated absences, 
the general obligation alternate revenue bonds source and the IEPA loan. The asset retirement obligation 
is liquidated by the Water Fund.  
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT – Continued 
 
Debt Service Requirements to Maturity  
 

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

    
$ 42,591 5,217 84,600 45,421 75,400 -     240,847 18,253

44,000 3,808 86,700 43,184 78,300 -     247,333 11,767
45,456 2,352 81,567 40,809 83,433 -     253,991 5,109
47,477 858 185,000 35,100 -     -     -     -     

-     -     190,000 27,600 -     -     -     -     
-     -     190,000 20,000 -     -     -     -     
-     -     200,000 12,200 -     -     -     -     
-     -     205,000 4,100 -     -     -     -     

179,524 12,235 1,222,867 228,414 237,133 -     742,171 35,129

General Obligation Alternate
Revenue Source Bonds IEPA Loan

Business-Type Activities

Totals

Governmental Activities

2026

2028

Contracts Revenue Source Bonds
Installment General Obligation Alternate

2029

2027

2022
2023
2024
2025

 
 
Legal Debt Margin 
 
Chapter 65, Section 5/8-5-1 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes provides, “…no municipality having a 
population of less than 500,000 shall become indebted in any manner or for any purpose, to an amount, 
including existing indebtedness in the aggregate exceeding 8.625% on the value of the taxable property 
therein, to be ascertained by the last assessment for state and county purposes, previous to the incurring 
of the indebtedness or, until January 1, 1983, if greater, the sum that is produced by multiplying the 
municipality’s 1978 equalized assessed valuation by the debt limitation percentage in effect on January 
1, 1979.” 
 

Assessed Valuation - 2020 $ 234,759,552

Legal Debt Limit - 8.625% of Assessed Value 20,248,011

Amount of Debt Applicable to Limit -      

Legal Debt Margin 20,248,011
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 

FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS 
 
In the governmental fund financial statements, the Village considers restricted amounts to have been 
spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance 
is available. The Village first utilizes committed, then assigned and then unassigned fund balance when 
an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which all three unrestricted fund balances are available. 
 
Minimum Fund Balance Policy. The Village’s policy manual states that the General Fund should maintain 
a minimum fund balance equal to no less than 10% and no more than 20% of the subsequent year’s 
budgeted operating expenditures.   
 
Nonspendable Fund Balance. Consists of resources that cannot be spent because they are either: a) not 
in a spendable form; or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
Restricted Fund Balance. Consists of resources that are restricted to specific purposes, that is, when 
constraints placed on the use of resources are either: a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through 
debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or b) imposed by 
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Committed Fund Balance. Consists of resources constrained (issuance of an ordinance) to specific 
purposes by the government itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority, the Board of 
Trustees; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the 
government takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the constraint. 
 
Assigned Fund Balance. Consists of amounts that are constrained by the Board of Trustees’ intent to be 
used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by a) the Board of 
Trustees itself or b) a body or official to which the Board of Trustees has delegated the authority to assign 
amounts to be used for specific purposes. The Village’s highest level of decision-making authority is the 
Board of Trustees, who is authorized to assign amounts to a specific purpose. 
 
Unassigned Fund Balance. Consists of residual net resources of a fund that has not been restricted, 
committed, or assigned within the General Fund and deficit fund balances of other governmental funds. 
 
Minimum Fund Balance Policy. The Village’s policy manual states that the General Fund should maintain 
a minimum fund balance equal to 10% of budgeted operating expenditures.  
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS – Continued 
 
The following is a schedule of fund balance classifications for the governmental funds as of the date of 
this report: 
 

Special Revenue
Tax  Transportation

Increment Impact Public 
Financing Fees Use Nonmajor Totals

Fund Balances
Nonspendable $ 64,493 -      -      -      -      64,493

Restricted
Police Impound Fees 72,065 -      -      -      -      72,065
E-Citation 691 -      -      -      -      691
Tree Replacement 60,044 -      -      -      -      60,044
Highways and Streets -      -      1,056,735 -      1,168,431 2,225,166
Subdivision Maintenance -      -      -      -      29,136 29,136
Tourism -      -      -      -      58,942 58,942
Public Use -      -      -      351,602 -      351,602
Debt Service -      -      -      -      113,725 113,725

132,800 -      1,056,735 351,602 1,370,234 2,911,371

Unassigned 1,590,321 (361,643) -      -      -      1,228,678

Total Fund Balances 1,787,614 (361,643) 1,056,735 351,602 1,370,234 4,204,542

Capital Projects

General

 
 
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 30,545,090

Less Capital Related Debt:
Installment Contracts Payable (179,524)
General Obligation (ARS) Bonds of 2012 (162,867)
General Obligation (ARS) Bonds of 2016 (1,060,000)

Net Investment in Capital Assets 29,142,699
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NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued 
 

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 45,146,161

Less Capital Related Debt:
General Obligation (ARS) Bonds of 2012 (237,133)
IEPA Loan of 2002 (742,171)

Net Investment in Capital Assets 44,166,857
 

 
NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and injuries to the Village’s employees. The Village has 
purchased insurance from private insurance companies. Risks covered included certain types of liabilities 
and bonds. Premiums have been displayed as expenditures/expenses in appropriate funds. There were no 
significant changes in insurance coverages from the prior year and settlements did not exceed insurance 
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  
 
Litigation 
 
The Village is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently 
determinable, in the opinion of the Village’s attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a 
material, adverse effect on the financial condition of the Village. 
 
Sales Tax Rebates 
 
The Village has a sales tax rebate agreement which was designed to induce a vendor to locate and retain 
their business within the Village. The first agreement originating in 2000, covered point-of-sale 
transactions within the Village. The agreement has been amended from time to time with the latest 
amendment occurring in 2010. The 2010 amendment calls for a rebate of 50% of the sales tax receipts 
received by the Village starting with the first dollar. The sales tax rebate is payable to the vendor each 
year once the August sales tax remittance has been received by the Village from the State of Illinois. The 
Village has recorded $69,315 in sales tax rebate expenses in the General Fund in the current year. As of 
April 30, 2021, the amount due to the vendor is $94,890, recorded as a liability in the General Fund.  
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NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES – Continued 
 
Grants 
 
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which 
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Village expects such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
Financial Impact due to COVID-19 
 
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the COVID-19 virus a public health emergency. 
As of the date of this report, the extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the Village’s operations and 
financial position cannot be determined. 
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS  
 
The Village contributes to two defined benefit pension plans, the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 
(IMRF), a defined benefit agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system, and the Police 
Pension Plan which is a single-employer pension plan. A separate report is issued for the Police Pension 
Plan and may be obtained by writing to the Village at 234 South State Street, PO Box 457, Hampshire, 
Illinois 60140. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not by individual employer. That report 
may be obtained online at www.imrf.org. The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions, and 
employer contributions are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) and can only be amended by 
the Illinois General Assembly. 
 
The aggregate amounts recognized for the two pension plans are:  
 

Net Pension Pension
Liability/ Deferred Deferred Expense/
(Asset) Outflows Inflows (Revenue)

IMRF $ (790,957)     90,141      358,019    (67,062)     
Police Pension 4,698,482   1,013,662 1,294,116 580,791    

3,907,525   1,103,803 1,652,135 513,729    
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NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS – Continued 
 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) 
 
Plan Descriptions 
 
Plan Administration. All employees (other than those covered by the Police Pension Plan) hired in 
positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled in IMRF as 
participating members. The plan is accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized when earned in the 
year that the contributions are required, benefits and refunds are recognized as an expense and liability 
when due and payable.   
 
Benefits Provided. IMRF has three benefit plans. The vast majority of IMRF members participate in the 
Regular Plan (RP). The Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) plan is for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, 
and selected police chiefs. Counties could adopt the Elected County Official (ECO) plan for officials elected 
prior to August 8, 2011 (the ECO plan was closed to new participants after that date). 
 
IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired before January 1, 2011, are eligible for 
Tier 1 benefits. Tier 1 employees are vested for pension benefits when they have at least eight years of 
qualifying service credit. Tier 1 employees who retire at age 55 (at reduced benefits) or after age 60 (at 
full benefits) with eight years of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly 
for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, 
plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings. 
Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any consecutive 48 months within the last 10 
years of service, divided by 48. Under Tier 1, the pension is increased by 3% of the original amount on 
January 1 every year after retirement. 
 
Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees, 
pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating employees who retire at age 62 (at reduced 
benefits) or after age 67 (at full benefits) with ten years of service are entitled to an annual retirement 
benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the 
first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 
75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any 96 
consecutive months within the last 10 years of service, divided by 96. Under Tier 2, the pension is 
increased on January 1 every year after retirement, upon reaching age 67, by the lesser of: 
 

• 3% of the original pension amount, or  
 

• 1/2 of the increase in the Consumer Price Index of the original pension amount.  
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NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS – Continued 
 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) – Continued 
 
Plan Descriptions – Continued 
 
Plan Membership. As of December 31, 2020, the measurement date, the following employees were 
covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Inactive Plan Members Currently Receiving Benefits 14

Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but not yet Receiving Benefits 13

Active Plan Members 17

Total 44  
 
Contributions. As set by statute, the Village’s Regular Plan Members are required to contribute 4.50% 
of their annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in 
addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. For the 
year-ended April 30, 2021, the Village’s contribution was 3.53% of covered payroll. 
 
Net Pension (Asset). The Village’s net pension (asset) was measured as of December 31, 2020. The total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
that date. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed, 
as of December 31, 2020, using the following actuarial methods and assumptions: 
 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age
Normal

Asset Valuation Method Fair Value

Actuarial Assumptions
Interest Rate 5.00%

Salary Increases 3.75% - 9.75%

Cost of Living Adjustments 2.25%

Inflation 2.25%  
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NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued  
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS – Continued  
 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) – Continued  
 
Plan Descriptions – Continued 
 
Actuarial Assumptions – Continued. For nondisabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-
median income, General, Retiree, Male (adjusted 106%) and Female (adjusted 105%) tables, and future 
mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2020. For disabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-
Weighted, below-median income, General, Disabled Retiree, Male and Female (both unadjusted) tables, 
and future mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2020. For active members, the Pub-2010, 
Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Employee, Male and Female (both unadjusted) 
tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2020. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return to the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. The target allocation and 
best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following 
table: 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return to the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. The target allocation and 
best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following 
table: 
 

Long-Term
Expected Real

Target Rate of Return

Fixed Income 28.00% 1.30%
Domestic Equities 37.00% 5.00%
International Equities 18.00% 6.00%
Real Estate 9.00% 6.20%
Blended 7.00% 2.85% - 6.95%
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.00% 0.70%

Asset Class

  

58



VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
April 30, 2021  
 
 

 

NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued  
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS – Continued  
 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) – Continued  
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%, the same as in the prior valuation. 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will 
be made at the current contribution rate and that Village contributions will be made at rates equal to the 
difference between the actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those 
assumptions, the Fund’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all project future 
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all period of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability.  
 
Discount Rate Sensitivity 
 
The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension (asset) to changes in the discount rate. The table 
below presents the net pension (asset) of the Village calculated using the discount rate as well as what 
the Village’s net pension (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage 
point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate:  
 

Current 
 Discount Rate 1% Increase

(7.25%) (8.25%)

Net Pension (Asset) $ (330,009) (790,957) (1,165,959)

1% Decrease
(6.25%)
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NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued  
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS – Continued  
 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) – Continued  

 
Changes in the Net Pension (Asset) 
 

Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Net Position (Asset)

  (B)    (A) - (B)  

Balances at December 31, 2019 $ 3,459,305 3,997,584 (538,279)

Changes for the Year:
Service Cost 88,545 -     88,545
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 248,194 -     248,194
Difference Between Expected and Actual
    Experience of the Total Pension Liability 105,373 -     105,373
Changes of Assumptions (28,354) -     (28,354)
Contributions - Employer -     33,653 (33,653)
Contributions - Employees -     45,476 (45,476)
Net Investment Income -     557,730 (557,730)
Benefit Payments, including Refunds
    of Employee Contributions (160,437) (160,437) -     
Other (Net Transfer) -     29,577 (29,577)

Net Changes 253,321 505,999 (252,678)

Balances at December 31, 2020 3,712,626 4,503,583 (790,957)

Pension
Liability

Total

  (A)  
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NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued  
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS – Continued  
 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) – Continued  
 
Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions  

 
For the year ended April 30, 2021, the Village recognized pension revenue of $67,062. At April 30, 
2021, the Village reported deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources Totals

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 77,254 (604) 76,650
Change in Assumptions -     (20,788) (20,788)
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
    Earnings on Pension Plan Investments -     (336,627) (336,627)

Total Pension Expense to be 
    Recognized in Future Periods 77,254 (358,019) (280,765)
Pension Contributions Made Subsequent
    to the Measurement Date 12,887 -     12,887

Total Deferred Amounts Related to IMRF 90,141 (358,019) (267,878)

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

 
 

$12,887 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from employer 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the reporting year ended April 30, 2022. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future 
periods as follows: 
 

Net Deferred
Fiscal (Inflows)
Year of Resources  

2022 $ (88,101)
2023 (18,474)
2024 (120,234)
2025 (53,956)
2026 -     

Thereafter -     

Total (280,765)   
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NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS – Continued 
 
Police Pension Plan  
 
Plan Descriptions  
 
Plan Administration. The Police Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that 
covers all sworn police personnel. The defined benefits and employee and minimum employer 
contribution levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 5/3-1) and may be amended only 
by the Illinois legislature. The Village accounts for the Fund as a pension trust fund. The Fund is governed 
by a five-member pension board. Two members of the Board are appointed by the Village President, one 
member is elected by pension beneficiaries and two members are elected by active police employees.  
 
Plan Membership. At April 30, 2021, the measurement date, membership consisted of the following: 
 

Inactive Plan Members Currently Receiving Benefits 1
Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but not yet Receiving Benefits 4
Active Plan Members 13

Total 18  
 
Benefits Provided. The following is a summary of the Police Pension Plan as provided for in Illinois State 
Statutes. 
 
The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits through two tiers of benefits as well as death and 
disability benefits. Covered employees hired before January 1, 2011 (Tier 1), attaining the age of 50 or 
older with 20 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of ½ 
of the salary attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for one year prior to the last day, 
whichever is greater. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5 percent of such salary for each 
additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years, to a maximum of 75 percent of such salary. 
Employees with at least eight years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 
and receive a reduced benefit. The monthly benefit of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years 
of service after January 1, 1977 shall be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of 
retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3 percent of the original pension and 
3 percent compounded annually thereafter. 
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NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued  
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS – Continued 
 
Police Pension Plan – Continued 
 
Plan Descriptions – Continued 
 
Benefits Provided – Continued. Covered employees hired on or after January 1, 2011 (Tier 2), attaining 
the age of 55 or older with 10 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual 
retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total salary of the police 
officer during the 48 consecutive months of service within the last 60 months of service in which the total 
salary was the highest by the number of months of service in that period. Police officer salary for the 
pension purposes is capped at $106,800, plus the lesser of ½ of the annual change in the Consumer Price 
Index or 3 percent compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5 percent of such a salary for 
each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75 percent of such salary. 
Employees with at least 10 years may retire at or after age 50 and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., ½ percent 
for each month under 55). The monthly benefit of a Tier 2 police officer shall be increased annually at 
age 60 on the January 1st after the police officer retires, or the first anniversary of the pension starting 
date, whichever is later. Noncompounding increases occur annually, each January thereafter. The increase 
is the lesser of 3 percent of ½ of the change in the Consumer Price Index for the proceeding calendar 
year.   
  
Contributions. Covered employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police 
Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated 
employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute 
the remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan and the administrative costs as actuarially determined 
by an enrolled actuary. However, effective January 1, 2011, ILCS requires the Village to contribute a 
minimum amount annually calculated using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method that will result 
in the funding of 90% of the past service cost by the year 2040. For the year-ended April 30, 2021, the 
Village’s contribution was 28.60% of covered payroll. 
 
Concentrations. At year-end, the Pension Plan does not have any investments over 5 percent of the total 
net position restricted for benefits (other than investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. 
government and investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments). 
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NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS – Continued  
 
Police Pension Plan – Continued  
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed, as of April 30, 2021, 
using the following actuarial methods and assumptions: 
 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age
Normal

Asset Valuation Method Fair Value

Actuarial Assumptions
Interest Rate 5.00%

Salary Increases 3.75% - 9.75%

Cost of Living Adjustments 2.25%

Inflation 2.25%  
 
Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 adjusted for plan status, demographics, and Illinois public 
pension data, as described. 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.00%, the same as in the prior 
valuation. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that Village contributions will be made 
at rates equal to the difference between the actuarially determined contribution rates and the member 
rate. Based on those assumptions, the Fund’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make 
all project future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all period of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 
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NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS – Continued  
 
Police Pension Plan – Continued  
 
Discount Rate Sensitivity 
 
The following is a sensitive analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The table 
below presents the pension liability of the Village calculated using the discount rate as well as what the 
Village’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage 
point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate:  
 

Current 
 Discount Rate 1% Increase

(5.00%) (6.00%)

Net Pension Liability $ 6,268,538 4,698,482 3,482,788

(4.00%)
1% Decrease

 
 
Changes in the Net Pension Liability 
 

Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Net Position Liability

  (B)    (A) - (B)  

Balances at April 30, 2020 $ 7,308,036 2,275,981 5,032,055

Changes for the Year:
Service Cost 437,092 -     437,092
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 325,280 -     325,280
Changes of Benefit Terms -     -     -     
Difference Between Expected and Actual
    Experience of the Total Pension Liability (703,924) -     (703,924)
Changes of Assumptions -     -     -     
Contributions - Employer -     300,000 (300,000)
Contributions - Employees -     100,347 (100,347)
Net Investment Income -     3,344 (3,344)
Benefit Payments, including Refunds
    of Employee Contributions (144,794) (144,794) -     
Administrative Expense -     (11,670) 11,670

Net Changes (86,346) 247,227 (333,573)

Balances at April 30, 2021 7,221,690 2,523,208 4,698,482

  (A)  

Pension
Liability

Total
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NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS – Continued  
 
Police Pension Plan – Continued  
 
Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions  

 
For the year ended April 30, 2021, the Village recognized pension expense of $580,791. At April 30, 
2021, the Village reported deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources Totals

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 244,828 (1,197,014) (952,186)

Change in Assumptions 591,525 (97,102) 494,423

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
    Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 177,309 -     177,309

Total Deferred Amounts Related to Police Pension 1,013,662 (1,294,116) (280,454)

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows: 
 

Net Deferred
Fiscal Outflows
Year of Resources  

2022 $ 16,594
2023 675
2024 (11,015)
2025 (25,941)
2026 (49,022)

Thereafter (211,745)

Total (280,454)
  

66



VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
April 30, 2021  
 
 

 

NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 

 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 

The Village has evaluated its potential other post-employment benefits liability. Former employees who 
choose to retain their rights to health insurance through the Village are required to pay 100% of the current 
premium. However, there is no participation. As the Village provides no explicit benefit, and there is no 
participation, there is no material implicit subsidy to calculate in accordance with GASB Statement No. 
45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions. Therefore, the Village has not recorded a liability as of April 30, 2021. 
 
SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 
American Rescue Plan Act 
 
On March 11, 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 was signed into law. This act provides $350 
billion in funding for local governments. The Village has been allocated $848,787 to be received in two 
installments. On August 13, 2021 the Village received their first installment of $424,894. 
 
Debt Issuances 
 
On July 15, 2021, the Village executed Debt Certificates with Heartland Bank in the amount of $182,500. 
Interest is payable at 2.25% semi-annually and principal is due in equal annual installments maturing on 
June 1, 2028. 
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• Schedule of Employer Contributions

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Police Pension Fund

• Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Police Pension Fund

• Schedule of Investment Returns

Police Pension Fund

• Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund

Tax Increment Financing - Special Revenue Fund

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are required by the

GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such information includes:

Budgetary Information – Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting

principles.



VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

April 30, 2021

Contributions as

Fiscal a Percentage of

Year Covered Payroll

2016 $ 22,680          $ 22,680               $ -     $ 533,645 4.25%

2017 17,491          17,491               -     586,761 2.98%

2018 21,539          21,539               -     632,999 3.40%

2019 17,892          17,892               -     701,731 2.55%

2020 15,763          15,763               -     847,182 1.86%

2021 36,020          36,020               -     1,019,918 3.53%

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level % Pay (Closed)

Remaining Amortization Period 23 Years

Asset Valuation Method 5-Year Smoothed Fair Value

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases 3.35% - 14.25%

Investment Rate of Return 7.25%

Retirement Age See the Notes to the Financial Statements

Mortality

Note:

This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Information for additional years will be displayed

as it becomes available.

Determined Determined Excess/ Covered

Contribution Contribution (Deficiency) Payroll

IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully genereational projection

scale MP-2017 (base year 2015).

Contributions

in Relation to

Actuarially the Actuarially Contribution 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Police Pension Fund

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Employer Contributions

April 30, 2021

Contributions as

Fiscal a Percentage of

Year Covered Payroll

2015 $ 208,600        $ 208,600           $ -     $ 855,320 24.39%

2016 186,085        187,000           915 802,621 23.30%

2017 198,691        200,000           1,309 856,700 23.35%

2018 190,291        200,000           9,709 884,543 22.61%

2019 200,658        215,000           14,342 868,836 24.75%

2020 276,739        277,000           261 955,972 28.98%

2021 295,328        300,000           4,672 1,048,820 28.60%

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level % Pay (Closed)

Remaining Amortization Period 19 Years

Asset Valuation Method 5-Year Smoothed Fair Value

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases 3.25%

Investment Rate of Return 5.00%

Retirement Age See the Notes to the Financial Statements

Mortality

Note:

This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Information for additional years will be displayed

as it becomes available.

Contribution

Determined

Actuarially 

Contribution

Determined

the Actuarially

RP-2014 Adjusted for Plan Status, Collar, and Illinois Public

Pension Data, as Appropriate

in Relation to

Contributions

Payroll

Covered

(Deficiency)

Excess/

Contribution 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the Employer's Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

April 30, 2021

Total Pension Liability

Service Cost $ 60,074       

Interest 191,432     

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 30,658       

Changes of Assumptions -            

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (118,436)   

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 163,728     

Total Pension Liability - Beginning 2,581,605  

Total Pension Liability - Ending 2,745,333  

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - Employer $ 22,680       

Contributions - Members 29,559       

Net Investment Income 15,942       

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (118,436)   

Administrative Expense (88,769)     

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (139,024)   

Plan Net Position - Beginning 3,221,505  

Plan Net Position - Ending 3,082,481  

Employer's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ (337,148)   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 112.28%

Covered Payroll $ 533,645     

Employer's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of Covered Payroll (63.18%)

Note:

12/31/2015

This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Information for additional years will be displayed

as it becomes available.
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12/31/2016 12/31/2017 12/31/2018 12/31/2019 12/31/2020

60,047       63,618       62,490       73,182       88,545       

203,596     216,673     220,027     235,821     248,194     

32,613       (12,862)     67,112       (1,658)       105,373     

-            (93,507)     93,870       -            (28,354)     

(121,474)   (125,892)   (131,391)   (128,293)   (160,437)   

174,782     48,030       312,108     179,052     253,321     

2,745,333  2,920,115  2,968,145  3,280,253  3,459,305  

2,920,115  2,968,145  3,280,253  3,459,305  3,712,626  

16,007       19,465       25,167       5,993         33,653       

25,365       27,034       30,865       34,574       45,476       

213,592     584,171     (206,886)   654,781     557,730     

(121,474)   (125,892)   (131,391)   (128,293)   (160,437)   

18,983       (36,712)     38,708       (28,954)     29,577       

152,473     468,066     (243,537)   538,101     505,999     

3,082,481  3,234,954  3,703,020  3,459,483  3,997,584  

3,234,954  3,703,020  3,459,483  3,997,584  4,503,583  

(314,839)   (734,875)   (179,230)   (538,279)   (790,957)   

110.78% 124.76% 105.46% 115.56% 121.30%

563,656     600,766     684,914     768,308     1,010,582  

(55.86%) (122.32%) (26.17%) (70.06%) (78.27%)

71



VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Police Pension Fund

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the Employer's Net Pension Liability 

April 30, 2021

Total Pension Liability

Service Cost $ 154,285       

Interest 143,727       

Change in Benefit Terms -               

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience (176,846)      

Change of Assumptions 117,723       

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (35,131)        

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 203,758       

Total Pension Liability - Beginning 2,413,011    

Total Pension Liability - Ending 2,616,769    

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - Employer $ 208,600       

Contributions - Members 83,662         

Contributions - Other 50                

Net Investment Income 215              

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (35,131)        

Administrative Expense (5,449)          

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 251,947       

Plan Net Position - Beginning 600,880       

Plan Net Position - Ending 852,827       

Employer's Net Pension Liability $ 1,763,942    

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 

Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 32.59%

Covered Payroll $ 855,320       

Employer's Net Pension Liability as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll 206.23%

Note:

4/30/2015

This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Information for additional years will be displayed

as it becomes available.
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4/30/2016 4/30/2017 4/30/2018 4/30/2019 4/30/2020 4/30/2021

183,590       173,052       193,433       254,642       269,484        437,092        

157,006       170,016       189,057       171,357       203,716        325,280        

-               -               -               -               2,738,836     -                

(303,520)      91,838         (761,677)      268,220       (68,997)         (703,924)       

186,769       (94,941)        746,010       (70,522)        117,801        -                

-               (14,029)        (31,202)        (24,408)        (54,264)         (144,794)       

223,845       325,936       335,621       599,289       3,206,576     (86,346)         

2,616,769    2,840,614    3,166,550    3,502,171    4,101,460     7,308,036     

2,840,614    3,166,550    3,502,171    4,101,460    7,308,036     7,221,690     

187,000       200,000       200,000       215,000       277,000        300,000        

82,415         83,612         86,757         90,191         92,505          100,347        

-               -               -               -               -                -                

299              385              10,624         30,293         29,950          3,344            

-               (14,029)        (31,202)        (24,408)        (54,264)         (144,794)       

(7,555)          (5,882)          (6,352)          (8,993)          (10,192)         (11,670)         

262,159       264,086       259,827       302,083       334,999        247,227        

852,827       1,114,986    1,379,072    1,638,899    1,940,982     2,275,981     

1,114,986    1,379,072    1,638,899    1,940,982    2,275,981     2,523,208     

1,725,628    1,787,478    1,863,272    2,160,478    5,032,055     4,698,482     

39.25% 43.55% 46.80% 47.32% 31.14% 34.94%

802,621       856,700       884,543       868,836       955,975        1,048,820     

215.00% 208.65% 210.65% 248.66% 526.38% 447.98%
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Police Pension Fund

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Investment Returns

April 30, 2021

Annual Money-

Weighted Rate

of Return, Net

Fiscal of Investment

Year Expense

2015 0.03%

2016 0.03%

2017 0.03%

2018 0.03%

2019 0.03%

2020 0.03%

2021 0.03%

Note:

This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Information for additional years will be displayed

as it becomes available.
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Final Actual

Revenues

Taxes $ 3,214,585 3,214,585 3,308,593

Intergovernmental 22,500 22,500 391,134

Charges for Services 314,211 314,211 297,185

Licenses and Permits 154,375 154,375 245,520

Fines and Forfeitures 110,000 110,000 72,716

Investment Income 36,215 36,215 5,163

Miscellaneous Income 201,813 201,813 231,511

Total Revenues 4,053,699 4,053,699  4,551,822

Expenditures

General Government 1,049,107 1,049,107 1,186,767

Highways and Streets 945,001 945,001 988,361

Police Protection 2,189,491 2,189,491 1,982,316

Planning and Zoning 2,159 2,159 1,103

Debt Service

Principal Retirement 163,575 163,575 163,575

Interest and Fiscal Charges 33,543 33,543 14,209

Total Expenditures 4,382,876 4,382,876 4,336,331

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures (329,177) (329,177) 215,491

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Disposal of Capital Assets 6,000 6,000 6,600

Transfers In 343,200 343,200 -      

Transfers Out -      -      (430)

349,200 349,200 6,170

Net Change in Fund Balance 20,023 20,023 221,661

Fund Balance - Beginning 1,565,953

Fund Balance - Ending 1,787,614

Original

Budget
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Tax Increment Financing - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

 

Final Actual

Revenues

Taxes

Property Taxes $ 46,623 46,623 47,434

Investment Income 10 10 11

Total Revenues 46,633 46,633 47,445

Expenditures

General Government

Professional Services 2,500 2,500 786

Debt Service

Principal Retirement 34,400 34,400 34,400

Interest and Fiscal Charges 36,206 36,206 36,722

Total Expenditures 73,106 73,106 71,908

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures (26,473) (26,473) (24,463)

Other Financing Sources

Transfers In 30,000 30,000 30,000

Net Change in Fund Balance 3,527 3,527 5,537

Fund Balance - Beginning (367,180)

Fund Balance - Ending (361,643)

Original

Budget
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Such statements and schedules include: 

• Budgetary Comparison Schedules – Major Governmental Funds 

• Combining Statements – Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

• Budgetary Comparison Schedules – Nonmajor Governmental Funds

• Budgetary Comparison Schedules – Enterprise Funds

• Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Fiduciary Funds

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the GASB, nor a

part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.



Tax Increment Financing Fund

The Tax Increment Financing Fund is used to account for expenditures of incremental property taxes and sales

tax generated in the designated downtown Tax Increment Financing area.

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund

The Hotel/Motel Tax Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures associated with the collection

of the hotel/motel tax within the Village.

The Special Service Areas Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures used in the maintenance of

various special service areas in the Village.

Evidence Fund

The Evidence Fund is used to account for the resources provided by the seizure of assets through application of

the local and state laws.

Road and Bridge Fund

Special Service Areas Fund

INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund, a major fund, accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for

in another fund.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are created to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than fiduciary

funds or capital project funds) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

The Road and Bridge Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures associated with the

maintenance of local roads. Revenue is provided through a tax levy.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund

The Motor Fuel Tax Fund is used to account for the maintenance and construction of streets and roads as

approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation.



The Transportation Impact Fees Fund is used to account for the proceeds of transportation impact fees charged

by the Village and the improvements funded by the fees.

INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES

TIF Revenue Bonds of 2009A/Tuscany Woods Line of Credit Fund

The TIF Revenue Bonds of 2009A/Tuscany Woods Line of Credit Fund is used for servicing projects related to

the TIF Revenue Bonds of 2009A and the Tuscany Woods line of credit.

The Equipment Replacement Fund is used to account for the purchase of replacement vehicles for the Village

fleet. Revenue is provided through excess funds.

Early Warning Impact Fees Fund

The Early Warning Impact Fees Fund is used to account for proceeds of early warning impact fees charged by

the Village and the improvements funded by the fees. 

Equipment Replacement Fund

The Capital Improvements Fund is used to account for transfers from other funds for various construction

projects. 

The Public Use Fund is used to account for the proceeds of public use impact fees charged by the Village and

the improvements funded by the fees.

DEBT SERVICE FUND

Debt Service Fund are created to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general

long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Bonds Fund

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are created to account for all resources used for the acquisition of capital facilities by a

governmental unit except those financed by Proprietary Funds.

The Capital Bonds Fund is used to account for the proceeds of the 2006 Alternate Revenue Source Bonds to

construct various Village improvements.

Public Use Fund

Transportation Impact Fees Fund

Capital Improvements Fund



The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for the provision of water and sewer services to the residents and

businesses of the Village financed by user fees.

Garbage Fund

The Spoecial Service Areas #9, #14, and #16 - #19 Fund is used to account for the for the collection of taxes

from special service areas #9, #14, and #16 through #19 and related remittance to the bondholders.

TRUST AND CUSTODIAL FUNDS

PENSION TRUST FUND

Police Pension Fund

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private

business enterprises where the intent is that costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a

continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where it has been decided that

periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capital

maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purpose. 

Water and Sewer Fund

Special Service Areas #9, #14, and #16 - #19 Fund

The Garbage Fund is used to account for the provision of solid waste services to the residents and businesses of

the Village financed by user fees.

INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES

The Police Pension Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for retirement annuity

payments to employees on the police force at appropriate amounts and times in the future. Resources are

contributed by employees at rates fixed by law and by the Village at amounts determined by an annual actuarial

study.

CUSTODIAL FUND



VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

 

Final Actual

Taxes

Property Taxes $ 1,055,215 1,055,215 1,053,834

Sales and Use Taxes 1,009,000 1,009,000 974,800

State Income Taxes 765,970 765,970 886,173

Utility Taxes 384,400 384,400 388,327

Cannabis Excise Taxes -      -      5,459

3,214,585 3,214,585 3,308,593

Intergovernmental

Replacement Taxes 22,500 22,500 23,224

Grants -      -      367,910

22,500 22,500 391,134

Charges for Services 314,211 314,211 297,185

Licenses and Permits 154,375 154,375 245,520

Fines and Forfeitures 110,000 110,000 72,716

Investment Income 36,215 36,215 5,163

Miscellaneous Income 201,813 201,813 231,511

Total Revenues 4,053,699 4,053,699 4,551,822

Budget

Original
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

 

Final Actual

General Government

Personal Services $ 492,875 492,875 521,028

Contractual Services 439,764 439,764 535,392

Commodities 21,080 21,080 30,504

Other Expenditures 84,888 84,888 81,243

Capital Outlay 10,500 10,500 18,600

1,049,107 1,049,107 1,186,767

Highways and Streets   

Personal Services 584,711 584,711 480,029

Contractual Services 254,000 254,000 197,450

Commodities 56,500 56,500 58,815

Other Expenditures 500 500 1,241

Capital Outlay 49,290 49,290 250,826

945,001 945,001 988,361

Police Protection   

Personal Services 1,844,060 1,844,060 1,685,654

Contractual Services 238,293 238,293 238,895

Commodities 59,750 59,750 45,686

Capital Outlay 47,388 47,388 12,081

2,189,491 2,189,491 1,982,316

Planning and Zoning   

Personal Services 2,159 2,159 1,103

Debt Service

Principal Retirement 163,575 163,575 163,575

Interest and Fiscal Charges 33,543 33,543 14,209

197,118 197,118 177,784

Total Expenditures 4,382,876 4,382,876 4,336,331

Budget

Original
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Transportation Impact Fees - Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Final Actual

Revenues

Charges for Services $ 65,440 65,440 103,068

Expenditures

Highways and Streets -      -      247

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 65,440 65,440 102,821

Other Financing (Uses)

Transfers Out (151,200) (151,200) -      

Net Change in Fund Balance (85,760) (85,760) 102,821

Fund Balance - Beginning 953,914

Fund Balance - Ending 1,056,735

Budget

Original
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Public Use - Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Final Actual

Revenues

Charges for Services $ -      -      44,856

Investment Income 350 350 125

Total Revenues 350 350 44,981

Expenditures

General Government 160,000 160,000 -      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures (159,650) (159,650) 44,981

Other Financing (Uses)

Transfers Out (30,000) (30,000) (30,000)

Net Change in Fund Balance (189,650) (189,650) 14,981

Fund Balance - Beginning 336,621

Fund Balance - Ending 351,602

Budget

Original
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet 

April 30, 2021

Special Hotel/

Road and Service Motel

Bridge Areas Evidence Tax

Cash and Investments $ 763,033 130,029 43,233 -      61,942

Receivables - Net of Allowances

Property Taxes -      118,869 56,815 -      -      

Other Taxes 18,326 -      -      -      -      

Due from Other Funds -      14,952 -      -      -      

Total Assets 781,359 263,850 100,048 -      61,942

Accounts Payable -      -      528 -      3,000

Accrued Payroll -      -      911 -      -      

Due to Other Funds -      -      12,658 -      -      

Total Liabilities -      -      14,097 -      3,000

Property Taxes -      118,869 56,815 -      -      

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources -      118,869 70,912 -      3,000

Restricted 781,359 144,981 29,136 -      58,942

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources and Fund Balances 781,359 263,850 100,048 -      61,942

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES

Motor

Fuel Tax

ASSETS

LIABILITIES 

Special Revenue
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Debt TIF  Revenue

Service Bonds of 2009A/ Early

Capital Capital Tuscany Woods Equipment Warning

 Bonds Improvements Line of Credit Replacement Impact Fees Totals

113,725 93,434 79,613 90,328 6,885 1,382,222

-      -      -      -      -      175,684

-      -      -      -      -      18,326

-      -      -      25,000 -      39,952

113,725 93,434 79,613 115,328 6,885 1,616,184

-      53,169 -      -      -      56,697

-      -      -      -      -      911

-      -      -      -      -      12,658

-      53,169 -      -      -      70,266

-      -      -      -      -      175,684

-      53,169 -      -      -      245,950

113,725 40,265 79,613 115,328 6,885 1,370,234

113,725 93,434 79,613 115,328 6,885 1,616,184

Capital Projects
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Special Hotel/

Road and Service Motel

Bridge Areas Evidence Tax

Revenues

Taxes $ -      112,504 76,301 -      14,093

Intergovernmental 408,635 1,659 -      -      -      

Investment Income 1,449 5 116 -      36

Total Revenues 410,084 114,168 76,417 -      14,129

Expenditures

General Government -      -      -      -      26,000

Highways and Streets 247,496 -      55,708 -      -      

Debt Service

Principal Retirement -      -      -      -      -      

Interest and Fiscal Charges -      -      -      -      -      

Total Expenditures 247,496 -      55,708 -      26,000

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 162,588 114,168 20,709 -      (11,871)

Other Financing Sources

Transfers In -      -      -      430 -      

Net Change in Fund Balances 162,588 114,168 20,709 430 (11,871)

Fund Balances - Beginning 618,771 30,813 8,427 (430) 70,813

Fund Balances - Ending 781,359 144,981 29,136 -      58,942

Motor

Fuel Tax

Special Revenue
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Debt TIF  Revenue

Service Bonds of 2009A/ Early

Capital Capital Tuscany Woods Equipment Warning

 Bonds Improvements Line of Credit Replacement Impact Fees Totals

-      -      -      -      -      202,898

-      -      -      -      -      410,294

4 25 -      29 -      1,664

4 25 -      29 -      614,856

-      -      -      -      -      26,000

-      72,691 -      -      -      375,895

76,951 -      -      -      -      76,951

7,513 -      -      -      -      7,513

84,464 72,691 -      -      -      486,359

(84,460) (72,666) -      29 -      128,497

84,464 -      -      -      -      84,894

4 (72,666) -      29 -      213,391

113,721 112,931 79,613 115,299 6,885 1,156,843

113,725 40,265 79,613 115,328 6,885 1,370,234

Capital Projects
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Motor Fuel Tax - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

 

Final Actual

Revenues

Intergovernmental

Motor Fuel Tax Allotments $ 238,947 238,947 408,635

Investment Income -      -      1,449

Total Revenues 238,947 238,947 410,084

Expenditures

Highways and Streets 435,782 435,782 247,496

Net Change in Fund Balance (196,835) (196,835) 162,588

Fund Balance - Beginning 618,771

Fund Balance - Ending 781,359

Original

Budget
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Road and Bridge - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

 

Final Actual

Revenues

Taxes

Property Taxes $ 109,043 109,043 112,504

Intergovernmental

Replacement Taxes -      -      1,659

Investment Income 55 55 5

Total Revenues 109,098 109,098 114,168

Expenditures

Highways and Streets 100,000 100,000 -      

Net Change in Fund Balance 9,098 9,098 114,168

Fund Balance - Beginning 30,813

Fund Balance - Ending 144,981

Budget

Original
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Special Service Areas - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

 

Final Actual

Revenues

Taxes

Property Taxes $ 75,065 75,065 76,301

Investment Income -      -      116

Total Revenues 75,065 75,065 76,417

Expenditures

Highways and Streets 86,029 86,029 55,708

Net Change in Fund Balance (10,964) (10,964) 20,709

Fund Balance - Beginning 8,427

Fund Balance - Ending 29,136

Budget

Original
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Hotel/Motel Tax - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

 

Final Actual

Revenues

Taxes

Hotel/Motel Tax $ 12,000 12,000 14,093

Investment Income 250 250 36

Total Revenues 12,250 12,250 14,129

Expenditures

General Government 26,000 26,000 26,000

Net Change in Fund Balance (13,750) (13,750) (11,871)

Fund Balance - Beginning 70,813

Fund Balance - Ending 58,942

Original

Budget
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Capital Improvement - Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

 

Final Actual

Revenues

Investment Income $ 20 20 25

Expenditures

Highways and Streets -      -      72,691

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 20 20 (72,666)

Other Financing (Uses)

Transfers Out (77,000) (77,000) -      

Net Change in Fund Balance (76,980) (76,980) (72,666)

Fund Balance - Beginning 112,931

Fund Balance - Ending 40,265

Budget

Original
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Equipment Replacement - Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Final Actual

Revenues

Investment Income $ 15 15 29

Expenditures

Highways and Streets 140,000 140,000 -      

Net Change in Fund Balance (139,985) (139,985) 29

Fund Balance - Beginning 115,299

Fund Balance - Ending 115,328

Original

Budget
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Water and Sewer  - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Final Actual

Operating Revenues

Charges for Services $ 2,617,326 2,617,326 2,625,122

Operating Expenses 

Operations

Water Department 840,440 840,440 761,187

Sewer Department 796,938 796,938 572,260

System Improvements 106,060 106,060 53,105

Depreciation -      -      1,429,995

Total Operating Expenses 1,743,438 1,743,438 2,816,547

Operating Income (Loss) 873,888 873,888 (191,425)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Tap On Fees -      -      7,650

Investment Income 30 30 19

Grants 30 30 79,300

Other Income 500 500 466

Interest and Fiscal Charges (536,163) (536,163) (31,717)

(535,603) (535,603) 55,718

Income (Loss) Before Transfers and Contributions 338,285 338,285 (135,707)

Contributions -      -      220,060

Transfers Out (324,569) (324,569) (84,464)

(324,569) (324,569) 135,596

Change in Net Position 13,716 13,716 (111)

Net Position - Beginning 46,742,726

Net Position - Ending 46,742,615

Original

Budget
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Water and Sewer - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Final Actual

Operations

Water Department

Personal Services $ 227,795         227,795     213,665     

Contractual Services 470,585         470,585     384,728     

Commodities 106,290         106,290     126,941     

Miscellaneous 35,770           35,770       35,853       

840,440         840,440     761,187     

Sewer Department

Personal Services 156,951         156,951     144,238     

Contractual Services 470,140         470,140     295,283     

Commodities 115,077         115,077     78,303       

Miscellaneous 54,770           54,770       54,436       

796,938         796,938     572,260     

Total Operations 1,637,378      1,637,378  1,333,447  

System Improvements

Water Department 106,060         106,060     53,105       

Depreciation

Water Department -                 -            501,890     

Sewer Department -                 -            928,105     

Total Depreciation -                 -            1,429,995  

Total Operating Expenses 1,743,438 1,743,438 2,816,547

Original

Budget
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Garbage  - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Final Actual

Operating Revenues

Charges for Services $ 604,555 604,555 705,602

Operating Expenses 

Operations

Garbage Department 604,021 604,021 698,199

Change in Net Position 534 534 7,403

Net Position - Beginning 52,474

Net Position - Ending 59,877

Budget

Original
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Police Pension - Pension Trust Fund

Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Final Actual

Additions

Contributions - Employer $ 300,000 300,000 300,000

Contributions - Plan Members 103,500 103,500 100,347

Total Contributions 403,500 403,500 400,347

Investment Income

Interest Earned 29,000 29,000 3,344

Net Change in Fair Value -      -      -      

29,000 29,000 3,344

Less Investment Expenses -      -      -      

Net Investment Income 29,000 29,000 3,344

Total Additions 432,500 432,500 403,691

Deductions

Administration 15,600 15,600 11,670

Benefits and Refunds 122,461 122,461 144,794

Total Deductions 138,061 138,061 156,464

Change in Fiduciary Net Position 294,439 294,439 247,227

Net Position Restricted for Pensions

Beginning 2,275,981

Ending 2,523,208

Budget

Original
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Special Service Areas #9, #14, and #16 - #19  - Custodial Fund

Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2021

Final Actual

Additions

Property Taxes $ 1,322,140 1,322,140 1,329,889

Investment Income 23,035 23,035 1,013

Total Additions 1,345,175 1,345,175 1,330,902

Deductions

Professional Services 576,579 576,579 65,653

Debt Service

Principal Retirement 1,116,181 1,116,181 1,610,381

Total Deductions 1,692,760 1,692,760 1,676,034

Change in Fiduciary Net Position (347,585) (347,585) (345,132)

Net Position Restricted for Individuals, Organizations, and Other Governments

Beginning 1,991,586

Ending 1,646,454

Budget

Original
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Consolidated Year-End Financial Report

April 30, 2021

CSFA # Program Name Federal Other Totals

494-00-0967 High-Growth Cities $ 26,145    -         -              26,145         

494-00-1488 Motor Fuel Tax 221,351  -         -              221,351       

494-42-0495 Local Surface Transportation -         191        -              191              

Other Grant Programs and Activities

All Other Costs Not Allocated 367,910 5,128           373,038       

-         -         7,832,948    7,832,948    

    Totals 247,496  368,101 7,838,076    8,453,673    

State
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

 
October 26, 2021 
 
The Honorable Village President 
Members of the Board of Trustees 
Village of Hampshire, Illinois 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the Village of Hampshire, Illinois, as of and for the year ended April 30, 2021, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated October 26, 2021. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Village’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal control. According, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Village’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
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Village of Hampshire, Illinois 

October 26, 2021 

Page 2 

 

 

Compliance and Other Matters 
 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village’s financial statements are free from 

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 

contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 

determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 

provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 

under Government Auditing Standards.  
 

Purpose of this Report 
 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 

and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal 

control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards in considering the Village’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 

this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 
LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Tax Data - Last Ten Tax Levy Years

April 30, 2021

2011 2012 2013 2014

 

Assessed Valuation $ 168,805,218  154,913,352  142,583,995  138,815,939  

Tax Rates by Fund

General 0.2627           0.2945           0.3462           0.3626           

Police Protection 0.0727           0.0816           0.0920           0.1037           

Special Revenue Funds

Audit 0.0245           0.0276           0.0173           0.0144           

Liability 0.0380           0.0480           0.0541           0.0588           

Illinois Municipal Retirement 0.0208           0.0188           0.0212           0.0284           

Social Security 0.0129           0.0137           0.0154           0.0203           

Total Tax Rates 0.4316           0.4842           0.5463           0.5883           

Tax Extension by Fund

General $ 442,682         456,162         493,570         503,366         

Police Protection 122,485         126,482         131,202         143,948         

Special Revenue Funds

Audit 41,344           42,694           24,710           20,058           

Liability 64,093           74,391           77,166           81,639           

Illinois Municipal Retirement 34,976           29,172           30,261           39,400           

Social Security 21,783           21,236           22,028           28,230           

Total Tax Extensions 727,363         750,137         778,936         816,640         

Total Collections - All Funds

Levy Collections through April 30 $ 715,525         735,499         764,121         806,718         

Percent Collected 98.37% 98.05% 98.10% 98.78%

Note: The 2020 levy is not collected until fiscal year 2022.
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

146,693,736  170,980,247  186,537,007  200,118,875  218,284,064  234,759,552  

0.3454           0.2943           0.2803           0.2769           0.2727           0.2923           

0.1571           0.1757           0.1750           0.1778           0.1720           0.1709           

0.0130           0.0114           0.0127           0.0099           0.0096           0.0103           

0.0326           0.0286           0.0211           0.0209           0.0189           0.0085           

0.0130           0.0014           0.0071           0.0067           0.0019           0.0019           

0.0137           0.0120           0.0111           0.0102           0.0099           0.0062           

0.5748           0.5234           0.5072           0.5024           0.4850           0.4901           

506,663         503,226         522,776         554,175         595,261         686,120         

230,388         300,383         326,490         355,843         375,449         401,129         

19,120           19,545           23,603           19,770           20,955           24,220           

47,799           48,859           39,337           41,813           41,256           20,058           

19,120           2,445             13,278           13,344           4,147             4,564             

20,077           20,521           20,652           20,412           21,610           14,522           

843,166         894,979         946,134         1,005,357      1,058,678      1,150,613      

831,279         875,235         934,533         997,044         1,053,834      -                

98.59% 97.79% 98.77% 99.17% 99.54% 0.00%
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Water/Sewer Data

April 30, 2021

Number of Water Users 2,897  

Water Rate per 1,000 Gallons $ 5.00    

Number of Sewer Users 2,917  

Sewer Rate per 1,000 Gallons $ 6.24    

Sewer User Billings Charge per Billing $ 1.00    

Capital Improvements per Billing $ 20.00  
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements

Installment Contract of 2020

April 30, 2021

Date of Issue March 18, 2020

Date of Maturity March 20, 2025

Authorized Issue $220,000

Interest Rate 3.26%

Principal Maturity and Interest Dates Monthly

Payable at Resource Bank

Fiscal

Year Interest Totals

2022 $ 42,591 5,217         47,808

2023 44,000 3,808         47,808

2024 45,456 2,352         47,808

2025 47,477 858            48,335

179,524 12,235 191,759

CURRENT AND LONG-TERM PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Principal
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation (Alternate Revenue Source) Refunding Bonds of 2012

April 30, 2021

Date of Issue December 20, 2012

Date of Maturity December 15, 2023

Authorized Issue $2,555,000

Denomination of Bonds $5,000

Interest Rates 2.00% to 2.75%

Interest Dates June 15 and December 15

Principal Maturity Date December 15

Payable at Bank of New York Mellon

Fiscal

Year Interest Totals

2022 $ 130,000 10,408 140,408

2023 135,000 7,223 142,223

2024 135,000 3,712 138,712

400,000 21,343 421,343

CURRENT AND LONG-TERM PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Principal
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation (Alternate Revenue Source) Refunding Bonds of 2016 

April 30, 2021

Date of Issue April 7, 2016

Date of Maturity December 15, 2028

Authorized Issue $1,175,000

Denomination of Bonds $5,000

Interest Rates 3.00% to 4.00%

Interest Dates June 15 and December 15

Principal Maturity Date December 15

Payable at Bank of New York Mellon

Fiscal

Year Interest Totals

2022 $ 30,000 41,050 71,050

2023 30,000 40,150 70,150

2024 30,000 39,250 69,250

2025 185,000 35,100 220,100

2026 190,000 27,600 217,600

2027 190,000 20,000 210,000

2028 200,000 12,200 212,200

2029 205,000 4,100 209,100

1,060,000 219,450 1,279,450

CURRENT AND LONG-TERM PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Principal
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, ILLINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements

IEPA Loan of 2002

April 30, 2021

Date of Issue April 18, 2002

Date of Maturity November 15, 2023

Authorized Issue $3,993,045

Interest Rate 2.675%

Interest Dates May 15 and November 15

Principal Maturity Date May 15 and November 15

Payable at Illinois Environmental Protection Agency

Fiscal

Year Interest Totals

2022 $ 240,847 18,253 259,100

2023 247,333 11,767 259,100

2024 253,991 5,109 259,100

742,171 35,129 777,300

CURRENT AND LONG-TERM PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Principal
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Engineering Enterprises, Inc. 
 

Memo 

To: Village of Hampshire 
 
From: Engineering Enterprises, Inc.  
 
Date: November 15, 2021 
 
Re: Lead Service Line Replacement (LSLR) Program – Lead Service Line (LSL) Inventory 
 Agenda Supplement 
 
EEI Job #: HA2114-V
  
Background 
 
On August 27, 2021, Governor Pritzker signed the Lead Service Line Replacement and Notification Act. The 
Act becomes effective January 1, 2022.  This Act has specific requirements and timelines for fully identifying all 
water service line materials in a communities’ water system with the end goal of identifying all lead service 
lines (between the water main and water meter) and all galvanized service lines that are/were downstream of 
lead service line components.  There are subsequent future requirements for the replacement of all lead 
services and galvanized services downstream of lead.   
 
Proposed Lead Service Line Inventory 
 
The attached Professional Services Agreement (PSA) project scope includes an efficient and effective 
methodology for the Village to identify lead/galvanized services in preparation for future replacement work. 
 
The EEI team will work with the Village to develop a Lead Service Line Replacement (LSLR) Program – LSL 
Inventory. This will be accomplished through the following tasks: 

(1) Set Up Survey Monkey or ESRI/GIS Questionnaire For Resident Data Request 
(2) Assist With Postcard to Residents (Includes QR Code Directing Residents to Online Survey). This step 

may require 3-4 rounds of postcards to elicit optimal response rate to the survey. After the first round, 
subsequent rounds of postcards may include a modified statement that the resident can contact Village 
personnel to perform the inspection. The goal is to have 80% of the residents complete the online 
survey prior to Village inspections.  

(3) Setup and Manage Database for Accumulating the Survey Responses 
(4) Setup and Manage Surveys and Databases for Village Staff to Complete During Exterior & Interior 

Inspections 
 

The project team will also provide status updates via email to Village Staff throughout the project – one status 
update per month for a maximum of four months.  Four months is the estimated timeline for the project, but is 



 
 

 

 

Engineering Enterprises, Inc. 
 

Memo 

highly dependent of a number of variables, including Village resident response rate/speed, number of 
lead/galvanized services identified, as well as scheduling and timing of Village Staff exterior/interior home 
inspections.  The total contract amount for the PSA is $19,606. 



Agreement for Professional Services 
Village of Hampshire, IL 

LEAD SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT (LSLR) PROGRAM – LSL 
INVENTORY 

 
  
THIS AGREEMENT, by and between the Village of Hampshire, hereinafter referred to 
as the "Village" or “OWNER” and Engineering Enterprises, Inc. hereinafter referred to as 
the "Contractor" or “ENGINEER” agrees as follows: 
 
A. Services:  
 
The Engineer shall furnish the necessary personnel, materials, equipment and expertise to 
make the necessary investigations, analysis and calculations along with exhibits, cost 
estimates and narrative, to complete all necessary engineering services to the Village as 
indicated on the included Attachment B.  Services to be provided include engineering 
services for the Lead Service Line Replacement Program – Lead Service Line Inventory 
indicated on Attachment C. 
 
B. Term:   
 
Services will be provided beginning on the date of execution of this agreement and 
continuing, until terminated by either party upon 7 days written notice to the non-
terminating party or upon completion of the Services.  Upon termination the Contractor 
shall be compensated for all work performed for the Village prior to termination.  
 
C. Compensation and maximum amounts due to Contractor: 
 
Contractor shall receive as compensation for all work and services to be performed herein 
an amount based on the Estimate of Level of Effort and Associated Cost included in 
Attachment C.  The total contract amount is $19,606.00 (Fixed Fee), including 
Subcontractor’s expenses.  The hourly rates for this project are shown in the attached 
2020 Standard Schedule of Charges (Attachment E).  All payments will be made 
according to the Illinois State Prompt Payment Act and not less than once every thirty 
days.   
 
D. Changes in Rates of Compensation: 
 
In the event that this contract is designated in Section B hereof as an Ongoing Contract, 
Contractor, on or before February 1st of any given year, shall provide written notice of 
any change in the rates specified in Attachment C hereof (or on any attachments hereto) 
and said changes shall only be effective on and after May 1st of that same year. 
 
E. Ownership of Records and Documents: 
 



Contractor agrees that all books and records and other recorded information developed 
specifically in connection with this agreement shall remain the property of the Village. 
Contractor agrees to keep such information confidential and not to disclose or 
disseminate the information to third parties without the consent of the Village.  This 
confidentiality shall not apply to material or information, which would otherwise be 
subject to public disclosure through the freedom of information act or if already 
previously disclosed by a third party. Upon termination of this agreement, Contractor 
agrees to return all such materials to the Village. The Village agrees not to modify any 
original documents produced by Contractor without contractors’ consent.  Modifications 
of any signed duplicate original document not authorized by ENGINEER will be at 
OWNER’s sole risk and without legal liability to the ENGINEER. Use of any 
incomplete, unsigned document will, likewise, be at the OWNER’s sole risk and without 
legal liability to the ENGINEER.   
 
F. Governing Law:  
 
This contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Illinois.  Venue shall be in Kane County, Illinois.  
 
G. Independent Contractor:   
 
Contractor shall have sole control over the manner and means of providing the work and 
services performed under this agreement. The Village’s relationship to the Contractor 
under this agreement shall be that of an independent contractor.  Contractor will not be 
considered an employee to the Village for any purpose.    
 
H. Certifications:   
 
Employment Status: The Contractor certifies that if any of its personnel are an employee 
of the State of Illinois, they have permission from their employer to perform the service.   
 
Anti-Bribery: The Contractor certifies it is not barred under 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes  
500/50-5(a) - (d) from contracting as a result of a conviction for or admission of bribery 
or attempted bribery of an officer or employee of the State of Illinois or any other state.   
 
Loan Default: If the Contractor is an individual, the Contractor certifies that he/she is not 
in default for a period of six months or more in an amount of $600 or more on the 
repayment of any educational loan guaranteed by the Illinois State Scholarship 
Commission made by an Illinois institution of higher education or any other loan made 
from public funds for the purpose of financing higher education (5 ILCS 385/3).  
 
Felony Certification: The Contractor certifies that it is not barred pursuant to 30 Illinois 
Compiled Statutes 500/50-10 from conducting business with the State of Illinois or any 
agency as a result of being convicted of a felony.   
 



Barred from Contracting:  The Contractor certifies that it has not been barred from 
contracting as a result of a conviction for bid-rigging or bid rotating under 720 Illinois 
Compiled Statutes 5/33E or similar law of another state.   
 
Drug Free Workplace:  The Contractor certifies that it is in compliance with the Drug 
Free Workplace Act (30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 580) as of the effective date of this 
contract.  The Drug Free Workplace Act requires, in part, that Contractors, with 25 or 
more employees  certify and agree to take steps to ensure a drug free workplace by 
informing employees of the  dangers of drug abuse, of the availability of any treatment or 
assistance program, of  prohibited activities and of sanctions that will be imposed for 
violations; and that individuals  with contracts certify that they will not engage in the 
manufacture, distribution, dispensation,  possession, or use of a controlled substance in 
the performance of the contract.   
 
Non-Discrimination, Certification, and Equal Employment Opportunity: The Contractor  
agrees to comply with applicable provisions of the Illinois Human Rights Act (775 
Illinois  Compiled Statutes 5), the U.S. Civil Rights Act, the Americans with Disabilities 
Act, Section  504 of the U.S. Rehabilitation Act and the rules applicable to each. The 
equal opportunity clause of Section 750.10 of the Illinois Department of Human Rights 
Rules is specifically incorporated herein.  The Contractor shall comply with Executive 
Order 11246, entitled Equal Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Order 
11375, and as supplemented by U.S.  Department of Labor regulations (41 C.F.R. 
Chapter 60).  The Contractor agrees to incorporate this clause into all subcontracts under 
this Contract.  
 
International Boycott:  The Contractor certifies that neither it nor any substantially owned 
affiliated company is participating or shall participate in an international boycott in 
violation of the provisions of the U.S. Export Administration Act of 1979 or the 
regulations of the U.S.  Department of Commerce promulgated under that Act (30 ILCS 
582).   
 
Record Retention and Audits:  If 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 500/20-65 requires the 
Contractor (and any subcontractors) to maintain, for a period of 3 years after the later of 
the date of completion of this Contract or the date of final payment under the Contract, all 
books and records relating to the performance of the Contract and necessary to support 
amounts charged to the Village under the Contract. The Contract and all books and 
records related to the Contract shall be available for review and audit by the Village and 
the Illinois Auditor General. If this Contract is funded from contract/grant funds provided 
by the U.S.  Government, the Contract, books, and records shall be available for review 
and audit by the Comptroller General of the U.S. and/or the Inspector General of the 
federal sponsoring agency. The Contractor agrees to cooperate fully with any audit and to 
provide full access to all relevant materials.  
 
United States Resident Certification: (This certification must be included in all contracts 
involving personal services by non-resident aliens and foreign entities in accordance with 
requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Services for withholding and reporting 



federal income taxes.) The Contractor certifies that he/she is a:   x  United States Citizen  
___ Resident Alien  ___ Non-Resident Alien  The Internal Revenue Service requires that 
taxes be withheld on payments made to non-resident aliens for the performance of 
personal services at the rate of 30%.   
Tax Payer Certification: Under penalties of perjury, the Contractor certifies that its 
Federal Tax Payer Identification Number or Social Security Number is (provided 
separately)  and is  doing business as a (check one):  ___ Individual  ___ Real  Estate  
Agent  ___ Sole  Proprietorship  ___ Government  Entity     ___ Partnership  ___ Tax 
Exempt Organization (IRC 501(a) only)   x   Corporation  ___ Not for Profit Corporation  
___ Trust or Estate  ___ Medical and Health Care Services Provider Corp.   
 
I. Indemnification:   
 
Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Village and Village’s agents, servants, 
and employees against all loss, damage, and expense which it  may sustain or for which it 
will become liable on account of injury to or death of persons, or  on account of damage 
to or destruction of property resulting from the performance of work  under this 
agreement by Contractor or its Subcontractors, or due to or arising in any manner  from 
the wrongful act or negligence of Contractor or its Subcontractors of any employee of  
any of them. In the event that the either party shall bring any suit, cause of action or 
counterclaim against the other party, the non-prevailing party shall pay to the prevailing 
party the cost and expenses incurred to answer and/or defend such action, including 
reasonable attorney fees and court costs.  In no event shall the either party indemnify any 
other party for the consequences of that party’s negligence, including failure to follow the 
ENGINEER’s recommendations. 
 
 J. Insurance:   
 
The contractor agrees that it has either attached a copy of all required insurance 
certificates or that said insurance is not required due to the nature and extent of the types 
of services rendered hereunder.  (Not applicable as having been previously supplied) 
 
K. Additional Terms or Modification: 
 
The terms of this agreement shall be further modified as provided on the attached 
Exhibits. Except for those terms included on the Exhibits, no additional terms are 
included as a part of this agreement. All prior understandings and agreements between 
the parties are merged into this agreement, and this agreement may not be modified orally 
or in any manner other than by an agreement in writing signed by both parties.  In the 
event that any provisions of this agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, 
the remaining provisions shall be valid and binding on the parties.  The list of 
Attachments are as follows: 

             
Attachment A: Standard Terms and Conditions 

 Attachment B: Scope of Services  
Attachment C: Estimate of Level of Effort and Associated Cost 



 Attachment D: Anticipated Project Schedule  
Attachment E: 2020 Standard Schedule of Charges 

 
 
L. Notices: 
 
All notices required to be given under the terms of this agreement shall be given by mail, 
addressed to the parties as follows: 
 
For the Village:                                                  For the Contractor: 
 
Village Manager                    Stephen T. Dennison 
Village of Hampshire           Engineering Enterprises, Inc. 
P.O. Box 157, 234 S. State Street              52 Wheeler Road                                                          
Hampshire, IL  60140     Sugar Grove, IL  60554 
 
 
Either of the parties may designate in writing from time to time substitute addresses or 
persons in connection with required notices. 
 
Agreed to this ___day of _________, 2021. 
  
 
Village of Hampshire                                         Engineering Enterprises, Inc.: 
  
 
_________________________________              ________________________________        
                  Jay Hedges                                        Stephen T. Dennison, P.E. 
               Village Manager                                          Senior Project Manager / Principal 
 
 
_________________________________             ________________________________                      
                 Linda Vasquez                              Brad P. Sanderson, P.E. 
                Village Clerk                                                   President 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Attachment A: 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Agreement: These Standard Terms and Conditions, together with the Professional Services 
Agreement, constitute the entire integrated agreement between the OWNER and Engineering 
Enterprises, Inc. (EEI) (hereinafter “Agreement”), and take precedence over any other provisions 
between the Parties. These terms may be amended, but only if both parties consent in writing. 

Standard of Care: In providing services under this Agreement, the ENGINEER will 
endeavor to perform in a matter consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised 
by members of the same profession currently practicing under same circumstances in the same 
locality.  ENGINEER makes no other warranties, express or implied, written or oral under this 
Agreement or otherwise, in connection with ENGINEER’S service. 

Construction Engineering and Inspection:  The ENGINEER shall not supervise, direct, 
control, or have authority over any contractor work, nor have authority over or be responsible for 
the means, methods, techniques sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any 
contractor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety of the 
site, nor for any failure of a contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to such 
contractor’s furnishing and performing of its work. 

The ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance of any contractor nor assumes 
responsibility for contractor’s failure to furnish and perform the work in accordance with the 
contract documents. 

The ENGINEER is not responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor, subcontractor, or 
supplies, or any of their agents or employees or any other person at the site or otherwise 
furnishing or performing any work. 

Shop drawing and submittal review by the ENGINEER shall apply to only the items in the 
submissions and only for the purpose of assessing if upon installation or incorporation in the 
project work they are generally consistent with the construction documents.  OWNER agrees that 
the contractor is solely responsible for the submissions and for compliance with the construction 
documents.  OWNER further agrees that the ENGINEER’S review and action in relation to these 
submissions shall not constitute the provision of means, methods, techniques, sequencing or 
procedures of construction or extend or safety programs or precautions.  The ENGINEER’S 
consideration of a component does not constitute acceptance of the assembled items. 

The ENGINEER’S site observation during construction shall be at the times agreed upon in the 
Project Scope.  Through standard, reasonable means the ENGINEER will become generally 
familiar with observable completed work.  If the ENGINEER observes completed work that is 
inconsistent with the construction documents, that information shall be communicated to the 
contractor and OWNER for them to address. 

 



 

 

 

Opinion of Probable Construction Costs: ENGINEER’S opinion of probable construction 
costs represents ENGINEER’S best and reasonable judgment as a professional engineer. 
OWNER acknowledges that ENGINEER has no control over construction costs of contractor’s 
methods of determining pricing, or over competitive bidding by contractors, or of market 
conditions or changes thereto. ENGINEER cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or 
actual construction costs will not vary from ENGINEER’S opinion of probable construction 
costs. 

Copies of Documents & Electronic Compatibility: Copies of Documents that may be 
relied upon by OWNER are limited to the printed copies (also known as hard copies) that are 
signed or sealed by the ENGINEER. Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or of 
other types that are furnished by ENGINEER to OWNER are only for convenience of OWNER. 
Any conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the user's 
sole risk. When transferring documents in electronic media format, ENGINEER makes no 
representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of documents resulting 
from the use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware 
differing from those used by ENGINEER at the beginning of the project. 

Changed Conditions: If, during the term of this Agreement, circumstances or conditions 
that were not originally contemplated by or known to the ENGINEER are revealed, to the extent 
that they affect the scope of services, compensation, schedule, allocation of risks, or other 
material terms of this Agreement, the ENGINEER may call for renegotiation of appropriate 
portions of this Agreement. The ENGINEER shall notify the OWNER of the changed conditions 
necessitating renegotiation, and the ENGINEER and the OWNER shall promptly and in good 
faith enter into renegotiation of this Agreement to address the changed conditions. If terms 
cannot be agreed to, the parties agree that either party has the absolute right to terminate this 
Agreement, in accordance with the termination provision hereof. 

Hazardous Conditions: OWNER represents to ENGINEER that to the best of its 
knowledge no Hazardous Conditions (environmental or otherwise) exist on the project site. If a 
Hazardous Condition is encountered or alleged, ENGINEER shall have the obligation to notify 
OWNER and, to the extent of applicable Laws and Regulations, appropriate governmental 
officials. It is acknowledged by both parties that ENGINEER's scope of services does not include 
any services related to a Hazardous Condition. In the event ENGINEER or any other party 
encounters a Hazardous Condition, ENGINEER may, at its option and without liability for 
consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of services on the portion of the 
project affected thereby until OWNER: (i) retains appropriate specialist consultant(s) or 
contractor(s) to identify and, as appropriate, abate, remediate, or remove the Hazardous 
Condition; and (ii) warrants that the project site is in full compliance with applicable Laws and 
Regulations.  

Consequential Damages: Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, neither the OWNER nor the ENGINEER, their respective 



 

 

officers, directors, partners, employees, contractors, or subcontractors shall be liable to the other 
or shall make any claim for any incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of or 
connected in any way to the Project or to this Agreement. This mutual waiver of consequential 
damages shall include, but is not limited to, loss of use, loss of profit, loss of business, loss of 
income, loss of reputation, or any other consequential damages that either party may have 
incurred from any cause of action including negligence, strict liability, breach of contract, and 
breach of strict or implied warranty. Both the OWNER and the ENGINEER shall require similar 
waivers of consequential damages protecting all the entities or persons named herein in all 
contracts and subcontracts with others involved in this project. 

Termination:  This Agreement may be terminated for convenience, without cause, upon 
fourteen (14) days written notice of either party.  In the event of termination, the ENGINEER 
shall prepare a final invoice and be due compensation as set forth in the Professional Services 
Agreement for all costs incurred through the date of termination. 

Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause upon giving the other party not less than 
seven (7) calendar days’ written notice for the following reasons: 

(a) Substantial failure by the other party to comply with or perform in accordance 
with the terms of the Agreement and through no fault of the terminating party; 

(b) Assignment of the Agreement or transfer of the project without the prior written 
consent of the other party; 

(c) Suspension of the project or the ENGINEER’S services by the OWNER for a 
period of greater than ninety (90) calendar days, consecutive or in the aggregate. 

(d) Material changes in the conditions under which this Agreement was entered into, 
the scope of services or the nature of the project, and the failure of the parties to 
reach agreement on the compensation and schedule adjustments necessitated by 
such changes. 

Payment of Invoices:  Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt unless 
otherwise agreed to in writing. 
 
Third Party Beneficiaries: Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual 
relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the OWNER or the 
ENGINEER. The ENGINEER’S services under this Agreement are being performed solely and 
exclusively for the OWNER’S benefit, and no other party or entity shall have any claim against 
the ENGINEER because of this Agreement or the performance or nonperformance of services 
hereunder. The OWNER and ENGINEER agree to require a similar provision in all contracts 
with contractors, subcontractors, vendors and other entities involved in this Project to carry out 
the intent of this provision. 

Force Majeure: Each Party shall be excused from the performance of its obligations under 
this Agreement to the extent that such performance is prevented by force majeure (defined 
below) and the nonperforming party promptly provides notice of such prevention to the other 



 

 

party. Such excuse shall be continued so long as the condition constituting force majeure 
continues. The party affected by such force majeure also shall notify the other party of the 
anticipated duration of such force majeure, any actions being taken to avoid or minimize its 
effect after such occurrence, and shall take reasonable efforts to remove the condition 
constituting such force majeure. For purposes of this Agreement, “force majeure” shall include 
conditions beyond the control of the parties, including an act of God, acts of terrorism, voluntary 
or involuntary compliance with any regulation, law or order of any government, war, acts of war 
(whether war be declared or not), labor strike or lock-out, civil commotion, epidemic, failure or 
default of public utilities or common carriers, destruction of production facilities or materials by 
fire, earthquake, storm or like catastrophe. The payment of invoices due and owing hereunder 
shall in no event be delayed by the payer because of a force majeure affecting the payer. 

Additional Terms or Modification:  All prior understandings and agreements between 
the parties are merged into this Agreement, and this Agreement may not be modified orally or in 
any manner other than by an Agreement in writing signed by both parties.  In the event that any 
provisions of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions shall be valid and binding on the parties. 

Assignment: Neither party to this Agreement shall transfer or assign any rights or duties under 
or interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. Subcontracting 
normally contemplated by the ENGINEER shall not be considered an assignment for purposes of 
this Agreement. 

Waiver: A party’s waiver of, or the failure or delay in enforcing any provision of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of 
that provision or of the remainder of this Agreement. 

Attorney’s Fees: In the event of any action or proceeding brought by either party against the 
other under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other all 
costs and expenses including without limitation the reasonable fees of its attorneys in such action 
or proceeding, including costs of appeal, if any, in such amount as the Court may adjudge 
reasonable. 

Headings: The headings used in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience 
only, and in no way define, limit, enlarge, modify, explain or define the text thereof nor affect 
the construction or interpretation of this Agreement. 
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ATTACHMENT B: SCOPE OF SERVICES 
EXHIBIT 1 

 
 

SECTION A - PROFESSIONAL DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
 
For purposes of this Exhibit 1 and all attachments hereto, the term “contractor” shall not refer to 

Engineering Enterprises, Inc., but shall instead refer to individuals or companies contracted with, to 

construct or otherwise manage the project described herein. The ENGINEER shall furnish professional 

design engineering services as follows: 

 
1. The ENGINEER will attend conferences with the OWNER, or other interested parties as may be 

reasonably necessary. 

 
2. The ENGINEER will perform the necessary design surveys, accomplish the detailed design of the 

project, prepare construction drawings, specifications and contract documents, and prepare a final 

cost estimate based on final design for the entire system. It is also understood that if subsurface 

explorations (such as borings, soil tests, rock soundings and the like) are required, the ENGINEER 

will furnish coordination of said explorations without additional charge, but the costs incident to 

such explorations shall be paid for by the OWNER as set out in Section C hereof. 

 
3. The contract documents furnished by the ENGINEER under Section A-2 shall utilize IEPA 

endorsed construction contract documents, including Supplemental General Conditions, Contract 

Change Orders, and partial payment estimates. 

 
4. Prior to the advertisement for bids, the ENGINEER will provide for each construction contract, 

not to exceed 10 copies of detailed drawings, specifications, and contract documents for use by the 

OWNER, appropriate Federal, State, and local agencies from whom approval of the project must 

be obtained. The cost of such drawings, specifications, and contract documents shall be included 

in the basic compensation paid to the ENGINEER. 

 
5. The ENGINEER will furnish additional copies of the drawings, specifications and contract 

documents as required by prospective bidders, material suppliers, and other interested parties, 
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but may charge them for the reasonable cost of such copies. Upon award of each contract, the 

ENGINEER will furnish to the OWNER five sets of the drawings, specifications and contract 

documents for execution. The cost of these sets shall be included in the basic compensation paid 

to the ENGINEER. Original documents, survey notes, tracings, and the like, except those furnished 

to the ENGINEER by the OWNER, are and shall remain the property of the ENGINEER. 

 
6. The drawings prepared by the ENGINEER under the provisions of Section A-2 above shall be in 

sufficient detail to permit the actual location of the proposed improvements on the ground. The 

ENGINEER shall prepare and furnish to the OWNER without any additional compensation, three 

copies of map(s) showing the general location of needed construction easements and permanent 

easements and the land to be acquired. Property surveys, property plats, property descriptions, 

abstracting and negotiations for land rights shall be accomplished by the OWNER, unless the 

OWNER requests, and the ENGINEER agrees to provide those services. In the event the 

ENGINEER is requested to provide such services, the ENGINEER shall be additionally 

compensated as set out in Section C hereof. 

 
7. The ENGINEER will attend the bid opening and tabulate the bid proposal, make an analysis of the 

bids (including review of analytical review of the bid prices, as well as Bidder’s Qualifications and 

reference checks for the apparent low bidder), and make recommendations for awarding contracts 

for construction. 

 
8. The ENGINEER further agrees to obtain and maintain, at the ENGINEER’s expense, such 

insurance as will protect the ENGINEER from claims under the Workman’s Compensation Act 

and such comprehensive general liability insurance as will protect the OWNER and the 

ENGINEER from all claims for bodily injury, death, or property damage which may arise from 

the performance by the ENGINEER or by the ENGINEER’s employees of the ENGINEER’s 

functions and services required under this Agreement. 

 
9. The ENGINEER will complete the final plans, specifications and contract documents and submit 

for approval of the OWNER, and all State regulatory agencies to meet the project schedule(s) as 

summarized in Attachment D: Anticipated Project Schedule. 
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SECTION B – COMPENSATION FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
 

1. The OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER for professional engineering services in the 

amount of Nineteen Thousand Eight Hundred Sixty-Eight Dollars – Fixed Fee (FF) ($19,868.00 

FF) as summarized on Attachment C: “Estimate of Level of Effort and Associated Cost for 

Professional Engineering Lead Service Line Replacement Program – LSL Inventory”. 

 

(a) The compensation for the professional engineering services shall be payable as follows: 
 
 

(1) A sum which does not exceed ninety percent (90%) of the total compensation 

payable under Section B-1 shall be paid in monthly increments for work actually 

completed and invoiced, for grant administration and for the preparation and 

submission to the OWNER of the construction drawings, specifications, cost 

estimates and contract documents. 

 
(2) A sum which, together with the compensation paid pursuant to Section B-1(a)(1) 

above, equals one hundred percent (100%) of the total compensation due and 

payable in accord with Section B-1 above, shall be due after receipt of the invoice 

in accordance with the Illinois Prompt Payment Act. 

 
2. The OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER for direct expenses as identified in the contract 

and as noted in the attachments at the actual cost or hourly cost for the work completed. 

 
(1) A sum which equals any charges for work actually completed and invoiced shall be paid 

at least once per month. 

 
3. The compensation for any additional engineering services authorized by the OWNER pursuant to 

Section C shall be payable as follows: 

 
(a) A sum which equals any charges for work actually completed and invoiced shall be paid 

at least once per month. 
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SECTION C – ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
 
In addition to the foregoing being performed, the following services may be provided UPON PRIOR 

WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF THE OWNER. 

 
1. Site surveys outside of the project limits and other similar special surveys as may be required. 

 
 
2. Laboratory tests, well tests, borings, specialized geological soils hydraulic, or other studies 

recommended by the ENGINEER that are not already included in the scope. 

 
3. Property surveys, detailed description of sites, maps, drawings, or estimates related thereto; 

assistance in negotiating for land and easement rights. 

 
4. Necessary data and filing maps for litigation, such as condemnation. 

 
 
5. Redesigns ordered by the OWNER after final plans have been accepted by the OWNER and 

IEPA. 

 
6. Appearances before courts or boards on matters of litigation or hearings related to the project. 

 
 
7. Preparation of environmental impact assessments or environmental impact statements. 

 
 
8. Making drawings from field measurements of existing facilities when required for planning 

additions or alterations thereto. 

 
9. Services due to changes in the scope of the Project or its design, including but not limited to, 

changes in size, complexity, schedule or character of construction. 

 
10. Revising studies or reports which have previously been approved by the OWNER, or when 

revisions are due to cases beyond the control of the ENGINEER. 
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11. Preparation of design documents for alternate bids where major changes require additional 

documents. 

 
12. Preparation of detailed renderings, exhibits or scale models for the Project. 

 
 
13. Providing special analysis of the OWNER’s needs such as owning and operating analysis, plan for 

operation and maintenance, OWNER’s special operating drawings or charts, and any other similar 

analysis.  Further information on the details of the operation and maintenance document will be 

provided in a separate Construction Engineering Agreement.  

 
14. The preparation of feasibility studies, appraisals and evaluations, detailed quantity surveys of 

material and labor, and material audits or inventories by the OWNER. 

 
15. Additional or extended services during construction made necessary by (1) work damaged by fire 

or other cause during construction, (2) defective or incomplete work of the contractor, and/or 

(3) the contractor’s default on the Construction Contract due to delinquency or insolvency. 
 
 
16. Providing design services relating to future facilities, systems and equipment which are not 

intended to be constructed or operated as a part of the Project. 

 
17. Attachment B, Exhibit 2 includes further details of included and excluded work scope items. 

 
 
18. Providing other services not otherwise provided for in this Agreement, including services normally 

furnished by the OWNER as described in Section D – SPECIAL PROVISIONS – Owner’s 

Responsibilities. 

 
Payment for the services specified in this Section D shall be as agreed in writing between the OWNER 

and the ENGINEER prior to commencement of the work. The ENGINEER will render to OWNER for 

such services an itemized bill, separate from any other billing, once each month, for compensation for 

services performed hereunder during such period, the same to be due and payable by OWNER to the 

ENGINEER in accordance with the Illinois Prompt Payment Act. Payment for services noted in D shall 

be at Actual Cost (AC), Fixed Fee (FF) or Hourly (HR). 
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SECTION D - SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
 
1. OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
 

(a) Provide to the ENGINEER all criteria, design and construction standards and full 

information as to the OWNER’s requirements for the Project. 

 
(b) Designate a person authorized to act as the OWNER’s representative. The OWNER or his 

representative shall receive and examine documents submitted by the ENGINEER, 

interpret and define the OWNER’s policies and render decisions and authorizations in 

writing promptly to prevent unreasonable delay in the progress of the ENGINEER’s 

services. 

 
(c) Furnish laboratory tests, air and water pollution tests, reports and inspections of samples, 

materials or other items required by law or by governmental authorities having jurisdiction 

over this Project, or as recommended by the ENGINEER. 

 
(d) Provide legal, accounting, right-of-way acquisition and insurance counseling services 

necessary for the Project, legal review of the construction Contract Documents, and such 

auditing services as the OWNER may require to account for expenditures of sums paid to 

the contractor. 

 
(e) Furnish above services at the OWNER’s expense and in such manner that the ENGINEER 

may rely upon them in the performance of his services under this Agreement and in 

accordance with the Project timetable. 

 
(f) Guarantee full and free access for the ENGINEER to enter upon all property required for 

the performance of the ENGINEER’s services under this Agreement. 

 
(g) Give prompt written notice to the ENGINEER whenever the OWNER observes or 

otherwise becomes aware of any defect in the Project or other event which may 

substantially affect the ENGINEER’s performance of services under this Agreement. 
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(h) Protect and preserve all survey stakes and markers placed at the project site prior to the 

assumption of this responsibility by the contractor and bear all costs of replacing stakes or 

markers damaged or removed during said time interval. 

 
2. Delegation of Duties - Neither the OWNER nor the ENGINEER shall delegate his duties under 

this Agreement without the written consent of the other. 

 
3. The ENGINEER has not been retained or compensated to provide design services relating to the 

contractor’s safety precautions or to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures 

required by the contractor to perform his work but not relating to the final or  completed structure. 

Omitted services include but are not limited to shoring, scaffolding, underpinning, temporary 

retainment of excavations and any erection methods and temporary bracing. 

 
4. The ENGINEER intends to render his services under this Agreement in accordance with generally 

accepted professional practices for the intended use of the Project. 

 
5. Since the ENGINEER has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or services 

furnished by others, or over the contractor(s) methods of determining prices, or over competitive 

bidding or market conditions, his opinions of probable Project Costs and Construction Costs 

provided for herein are to be made on the basis of his experience and qualifications and represent 

his best judgment as an experienced and qualified professional engineer, familiar with the 

construction industry. The ENGINEER cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or 

actual project or construction cost will not vary from opinions of probable cost prepared by him. 

If prior to the bidding or negotiating phase OWNER wishes greater assurance as to project or 

construction costs he shall employ an independent cost-estimator. 
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ATTACHMENT B: SCOPE OF SERVICES 

EXHIBIT 2 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL DESCRIPTION OF SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
On August 27, 2021, Governor Pritzker signed the Lead Service Line Replacement and Notification Act. 

The Act becomes effective January 1, 2022.  This Act has specific requirements and timelines for fully 

identifying all water service line materials in a communities’ water system with the end goal of identifying 

all lead service lines (between the water main and water meter) and all galvanized service lines that are/were 

downstream of lead service line components.  There are subsequent future requirements for the replacement 

of all lead services and galvanized services downstream of lead.  This project scope includes an efficient and 

effective methodology for the Village to identify lead/galvanized services in preparation for future 

replacement work. 

The team will work with the Village to develop a Lead Service Line Replacement (LSLR) Program – 

LSL Inventory. This will be accomplished through the following tasks: 

(1) Set Up Survey Questionnaire For Resident Data Request 

(2) Assist With Postcard to Residents (Includes QR Code Directing Residents to Online Survey) 

(3) Setup and Manage Database for Accumulating the Survey Responses 

(4) Setup and Manage Surveys and Databases for Village Staff to Complete During Exterior & Interior 

Inspections 

The project team will also provide status updates via email to Village Staff throughout the project – one 

status update per month for a maximum of four months.  Four months is the estimated timeline for the project, 

but is highly dependent of a number of variables, including Village resident response rate/speed, number of 

lead/galvanized services identified, as well as scheduling and timing of Village Staff exterior/interior home 

inspections. 

 

Task 1. Set Up Survey Questionnaire For Resident Data Request 

This task will include setting up the Questionnaire using the Survey Monkey website or ESRI (GIS) that 

will be utilized for the residents to enter feedback about their water services.  The subscription/management 

of Survey Monkey/ESRI will be absorbed by EEI and will not be a separate expense to the Village.  A 

template of the survey will be submitted to Village Staff for review/approval prior to its activation for use 

by residents.  The survey will include detailed instructions to assist the resident, and will include an 

opportunity for the resident to take/upload photos of the water service, which will greatly assist the 
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confirmation/analysis component of the inventory process for the Village. 

 

Task 2. Assist With Postcard to Residents (Includes QR Code Directing Residents to Online 

Survey) 

EEI will assist the Village in creating verbiage for including on a postcard that will be sent to residents 

that are suspected of having lead or galvanized water services.  A QR Code will be created by EEI for the 

Village to add to the postcards that will direct the residents to the Questionnaire.  The Village will be 

responsible for preparing the database of recipient addresses, printing the postcards, and sending the 

postcards (including postage).  This step may require 3-4 rounds of postcards to elicit optimal response rate 

to the survey.  After the first round, subsequent rounds of postcards may include a modified statement that 

the resident can contact Village personnel to perform the inspection.  The goal is to have 80% of the residents 

complete the online survey prior to Village inspections. 

 

Task 3. Setup and Manage Database for Accumulating the Survey Responses 

This task will include creation and management of a digital database for accumulating and organizing 

the survey responses.  The data output from the survey responses will automatically be imported into the 

database that EEI will manage.  Data will be continuously reviewed and organized to identify gaps and 

inconsistencies.  Data will also be analyzed to identify the suspected lead and galvanized services and 

strategize regarding the next steps for Village Staff inspections (see Task 4). 

 

Task 4. Setup and Manage Surveys and Databases for Village Staff to Complete During Exterior 

& Interior Inspections 

After lead/galvanized services are identified in Tasks 1 – 3, Village Staff will be responsible for 

conducting follow up inspections to confirm the service material and pertinent details regarding the service 

that will impact the construction scope for replacements.  To assist with this process, EEI will prepare Survey 

Monkey or ESRI/GIS surveys for Village Staff to utilize when conducting inspections both inside and 

outside the facility.  The data from these surveys will be utilized in a future phase of the lead service line 

replacement process, namely the creation of a design Project Manual for bidding and construction of the 

lead/galvanized service replacements.  The scope of this project does not include EEI staff performing field 

surveys. 

 

The above scope summarizes the work items that will be completed for this contract.  Additional work 
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items shall be considered outside the scope of the base contract and will be billed in accordance with the 

current Standard Schedule of Charges at the time the work occurs. 

 



ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC. DATE: 9/29/2021
CONSULTING ENGINEERS ENTERED BY: KMM/STD

ESTIMATED LEVEL OF EFFORT AND ASSOCIATED COST
Lead Service Line Replacement (LSLR) Program - LSL Inventory

Village of Hampshire, Illinois
ENTITY: TOTAL

PRINCIPAL SENIOR SENIOR WORK COST
IN PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT ITEM PER

WORK CHARGE MANAGER ENGINEER II ENGINEER TECHNICIAN ADMIN. HOUR ITEM
ITEM HOURLY RATE: $209 $203 $172 $145 $133 $70 SUMM.
NO. WORK ITEM RESOURCE:

PROJECT ADMINISTRATION
0.1 Project Management 2 2 406$                            
0.2 Project Status Updates to Village Staff (1 Per Month for 4 Months) 2 2 4 8 1,330$                         

Project Administration Subtotal: 0 4 2 4 0 0 10 1,736$                         

1.1 Set Up Survey Monkey Questionnaire For Resident Data Request 1 4 16 21 3,211$                         
1.2 Assist With Postcard to Residents (Includes QR Code Directing Residents to Online Survey) 1 2 4 7 1,127$                         
1.3 Setup and Manage Database for Accumulating the Survey Responses 2 12 40 54 8,270$                         
1.4 Setup and Manage Surveys and Databases for Village Staff to Complete During Exterior & Interior Inspections 2 8 24 34 5,262$                         

Preliminary Engineering Subtotal: 0 6 26 84 0 0 116 17,870$                       

PROJECT TOTAL: 0 10 28 88 0 0 126 19,606$                       

Notes: DIRECT EXPENSES LABOR EXPENSES
 - See Exhibit A - Attachment A for Detailed Scope of Services and Exclusions Printing = -$                  Engineering Expenses (EEI) = 19,606$                       
 - Based on a maximum of 713  services (Current Sum of "Unknown", "Lead", and "Galvanized" Service Materials on IEPA LSL Database) Drafting Expenses = -$                             

Administrative Expenses = -$                             
DIRECT EXPENSES = -$                  TOTAL LABOR EXPENSES = 19,606$                       

TOTAL COSTS = 19,606$                
G:\Public\Hampshire\2021\HA2114-V LSLR Engineering\Project Management\[Attachment C - Level of Effort.xlsx]Fees-Detailed

ATTACHMENT C

EEI

PROJECT ROLE:

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING



ATTACHMENT D:
PROJECT SCHEDULE

Lead Service Line Replacement (LSLR) Program - LSL Inventory
Village of Hampshire, IL

10/6/2021

WORK

ITEM

NO. 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 33 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27

LSLR INVENTORY WORK ITEMS

0.1 Project Management

0.2 Project Status Updates to Village Staff (1 Per Month for 4 Months)

1.1 Set Up Survey Monkey Questionnaire For Resident Data Request

1.2 Assist With Postcard to Residents (Includes QR Code Directing Residents to Online Survey)

1.3 Setup and Manage Database for Accumulating the Survey Responses*

1.4 Setup and Manage Surveys and Databases for Village Staff to Complete During Exterior & Interior Inspections*
  ering\Project Management\[Attachment D - Schedule - LSLR Inventory - 2021-10-06.xls]Schedule 11-08-2

Legend

Administrative Work Items
Progress Updates
Survey Creation/Management Items

* Schedule for Items 1.3 and 1.4 is Highly Contingent on Expediency and Rate of Responses to Resident Surveys

December January February March April WORK ITEM May

20222021

October November June 

ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.
CONSULTING ENGINEERS
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November 8, 2021 
 
 
 
Mr. Bryan Mroch  
Planning and Zoning Commission,  
Village of Hampshire  
234 South State Street 
Hampshire, IL. 60140 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Re:  Final Plat of Subdivision for Oakstead -- area of new CUSD-300 school site. 
At the Planning and Zoning Commission’s regularly scheduled meeting on April 26th, 2021, the following 
matters was submitted to the Plan Commission for its consideration:   

 
1. Review and recommendation of Final Plat of Subdivision for Oakstead -- area of new CUSD-

300 school site 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission determined, by unanimous vote on this agenda item, to recommend 
approval of: Final Plat of Subdivision for Oakstead -- area of new CUSD-300 school site 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Bryan Mroch 
Chairman 
Hampshire Planning and Zoning Commission 
May 27, 2021. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

  PAGE 2 

 

VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Commissioners’ comment and discussion as follows:   
 
Mr. Paulson (of EEI) provided further information indicating CUSD 300 had presented their 

engineering plans earlier in spring 2021. These plans were approved as part of Crown’s 

preliminary development plans for the Oakstead Subdivision. 

He explained that at that time, the remaining outstanding item required of CUSD 300 was to 

provide a final plat for the school., as well as rights-of-way for utilities. A 60-foot right-of-way 

with 10-foot utility easement on the north side of Magnussen Way was requested and has been 

added to the revised plat and received by the village. Additional easements were established to 

Kane County on Big Timber and Ridgecrest Roads. 

 

Mr. Hoffman inquired as to the planned beginning of construction. Mr. Paulson responded that 

construction has already been completed on the public improvements: water, sewer, retention 

basin, Ridgecrest Rd (south of Big Timber), Magnussen Way and that the school building is 

currently being worked on. 

 

 



 

 

 No. 21 -       
 

A RESOLUTION  
APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT OF SUBDIVISION  
FOR THE OAKSTEAD NEIGHBORHOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL AREA OF THE 

OAKSTEAD DEVELOPMENT IN THE VILLAGE   
(Hampshire West LLC --  Oakstead Development) 

 
WHEREAS, the Village has previously approved an Amended Preliminary 

Development Plan for the Oakstead Development in the Village, by Resolution No. 21-
04, enacted on March 18, 2021; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Owner has submitted a Final Development Plan and a Plat of 

Subdivision for a portion of the Oakstead Development, designated as “Final Plat of 
Subdivision for the Oakstead Neighborhood Middle School,” prepared by Cemcon, Ltd. 
and dated “revised 11-04-21”; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Village Planning & Zoning Commission reviewed said Final Plan 

and Plat of Subdivision, and found it to be in substantial compliance with the Amended 
Preliminary Development Plan for the Oakstead Development; and,  has recommended 
approval of the Amended Preliminary Development Plan for the Oakstead 
Development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have reviewed the Final Plan and Plat of 

Subdivision for the Oakstead Neighborhood Middle School, together with the comments 
of the Village Engineer, and the recommendation of the Planning & Zoning Commission,   
Commission, and have determined that the Final Development Plan and the Plat of 
Subdivision are in substantial conformity with the Amended Preliminary Development 
Plan previously approved, and that the amendment presents a good and acceptable 
plan for development of the property in question, and ought to be approved.  

 
   NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. The Final Plan and Plat of Subdivision for the Oakstead 
Neighborhood Middle School, prepared by Cemcon, Ltd. and dated “revised 11-04-21”  
shall be and hereby is approved, and the Village President and Village Clerk are hereby 
authorized to execute same on behalf of the Village.  
 
 Section 2. Any motion, order, resolution or ordinance in conflict with the 
provisions of this Resolution is to the extent of such conflict hereby superseded and 
waived. 
 



 

 

Section 3.   If any section, subdivision, sentence or phrase of this Resolution is 
for any reason held to be void, invalid, or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portion of this Resolution. 
 

Section 4.   This Resolution shall take full force and effect upon its passage and 
approval as provided by law. 
 

ADOPTED THIS            DAY OF                                           , 2021. 

AYES:         _____________________________________      

NAYS: __________________________________________ 

ABSENT: __________________________________________  

ABSTAIN: __________________________________________  

APPROVED THIS            DAY OF                                           , 2021. 

 
                                                                                        

 Michael J. Reid, Jr.  
 Village President 
 
 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Linda Vasquez 
Village Clerk      











Village of Hampshire 
234 S. State Street, Hampshire IL 60140 

Phone: 847-683-2181 www.hampshireil.org 
 

Agenda Supplement 

TO:    President Reid; Board of Trustees 
FROM:   Josh Wray, Assistant to the Village Manager 
FOR:   Village Board Meeting on November 18, 2021 
RE:    Recreational Zoning District 

Background: In recent months, Village staff has been approached by several potential 

commercial developments related to recreational activities. Staff discovered that, while 

some recreational uses are permitted in some zoning districts, the current provisions 

provide neither comprehensive regulations regarding recreational uses nor the ability to 

effectively plan for or implement future recreational areas in the Village. Specifically, Brier 

Hill Ventures, owners of the Midwest Companies recycling center being built on Brier Hill 

Rd., is in the process of planning the annexation and development of the additional ~85 

acres purchased west of their current site to include a campground for high-end coaches. 

Analysis: Several recreational uses are already permitted in the Village, including 

community centers, museums, parks/playgrounds, theme parks, country clubs, and gyms. 

However, these uses are scattered throughout many estate, residential, commercial, and 

industrial zoning districts, and staff believes these provisions do not encompass all the 

potential uses the Village will see in the near and far future. 

The attached regulations for consideration create a new zoning district that not only meets 

the near-term needs of Brier Hill Ventures but also provides a broad framework for 

recreational uses in the Village that can be incorporated into comprehensive planning and 

modified over time as needed. The Planning and Zoning Commission voted to recommend 

this text amendment unanimously. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Village Board approve the attached text 

amendment creating the Recreational Zoning District. 
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VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE 
 PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IN RE: 

 

PETITION OF ZONING ADMINISTRATOR FOR TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE 

ZONING REGULATIONS TO ADOPT REGULATIONS GOVERNING A NEW 

ZONING DISTRICT, REC-RECREATIONAL ZONING DISTRICT IN THE 

VILLAGE.    

 

 FINDINGS OF FACT  

 
In regard to the Petition of the Village of Hampshire for Text Amendment, to provide for for 

regulations governing a proposed new zoning district in the Village, to wit:  REC-Recreational 

Zoning District, the Planning & Zoning Commission having considered the application, and the 

testimony and evidence submitted at a public hearing, the Planning & Zoning Commission  FINDS 

as follows: 

  

1.  A Petition for Text Amendment, to provide for regulations to govern a proposed new 

zoning district in the Village, to wit: REC-Recreational Zoning District, has been filed with the 

Village Clerk by the Village Zoning Administrator.   

 

2.  Notice of Public Hearing on the proposed text amendment was published in the Daily 

Herald newspaper on October 8, 2021, a date not less than fifteen (15) days prior to said Public 

Hearing.   

 

3.  Pursuant to said Petition, certain regulations, including permitted uses, special uses, and 

bulk restrictions, would be adopted to govern recreational uses in the Village.     

 

4. At the public hearing, Josh Wray, assistant to the Village Manager, made a presentation 

concerning the Petition. No members of the public appeared to comment on the proposed 

amendment.   

 

5. The proposed amendment is recommended by Village staff.  

 

6. The draft regulations are attached to this Recommendation.  

 

7. Additional Findings by the Zoning Board of Appeals:  

 

 a)    Cemeteries might be added as a permitted use in this District. 

 

 b)     Dog parks might be added as a special use in this District. 
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ACTION(S) 

 

On motion by L. Rapach, seconded by A. Neal, to approve the Petition for Zoning 

Amendment to add to the Village Zoning Regulations provisions governing a new zoning district, 

REC-Recreational Zoning District,  the vote was  4 ayes, 0 nay.  Motion passed.  

 

     Aye  Nay 

     

R. Frillman   _ __  ____    Abs. 

H. Hoffman      x      ____  

A. Neal     x      ____ 

L. Rapach     x       ____   

W. Rossetti     x      ____ 

T. Wetzel            ____     Abs. 

 

B. Mroch (Chair)                       

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is accordingly the recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals that the Petition for Text 

Amendment be   X      approved   /              denied. 

 

Dated:  November 1st, 2021. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE  

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  

 

By: ______________________________________ 

Bryan Mroch 

Chair 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Bryan G. Mroch
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 No. 21 - ___ 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING THE VILLAGE CODE, CHAPTER 6: ZONING REGULATIONS  
TO ADD REGULATIONS GOVERNING A NEW ZONING DISTRICT, REC-

RECREATIONAL ZONING DISTRICT, IN THE VILLAGE 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village has previously adopted certain zoning regulations, codified 
in Chapter 6 of the Village Code; and  
 
 WHEREAS, said regulations currently provide for various categories of use, 
including residential, business, and industrial uses; and    
 
 WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator filed with the Village Clerk a petition for 
consideration of regulations to govern a new zoning district, REC-Recreational Zoning 
District, to allow for various recreational uses in the Village; and  
 
 WHEREAS, after a public hearing on the petition, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission has recommended to the Corporate Authorities that it adopt such 
regulations; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities, having considered the recommendation of 
the Planning & Zoning Commission, and the best interests of the Village, deem it 
necessary and advisable to amend the Village’s zoning regulations to include regulations 
governing such new zoning district.   
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF HAMPSHIRE, KANE COUNTY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  The Hampshire Municipal Code of 1985, as previously amended, 
shall be and hereby is further amended in regard to Chapter 6: Zoning Regulations, 
Section 8: Business Districts, to add certain regulations governing a new zoning district, 
REC-Recreational Zoning District, in words and figures as follows: 
 

SEE ATTACHED TEXT OF THE AMENDMENT 
 

Section 2.    Any and all ordinances, resolutions, motions, or parts thereof, in 
conflict with this Ordinance, are to the extent of such conflict hereby superseded and 
waived. 

 
Section 3.  If any section, sentence, subdivision, or phrase of this Ordinance, 

shall be held to be void, invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 4   This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval, according to law. 
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ADOPTED THIS          DAY OF        ________         , 2021, pursuant to roll call 
vote as follows: 
 
AYES:           ________________________________________       
   
NAYS:  _________        _______________________________    
    
ABSTAIN: _____________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: _____________________________________________ 
 
APPROVED THIS           DAY OF                   _________  , 2021. 
 
 

            ____                                                       
   Michael J. Reid, Jr.  

       Village President 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________  
Linda Vasquez 
Village Clerk 
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CHAPTER 6   ZONING REGULATIONS 
 
ARTICLE VIII   BUSINESS DISTRICTS 
 
SECTION 6-8-9    REC - RECREATIONAL DISTRICT: 

 
A.   Purpose: The purpose of the REC-Recreational District is to provide for various recreational 
uses not otherwise allowed in the Village of Hampshire, and to encourage the development of 
recreational uses at designated locations in the Village having access to public highways and/or 
arterial roadways. 

B.   Land Use Regulations: 

1.   General Standards: Uses permitted in the REC District are subject to the following 
standards: 

a. All business activity and servicing shall take place within completely enclosed buildings 
unless otherwise specified. All storage of property, except of motor vehicles in operable 
condition, shall be in completely enclosed buildings or structures. 

b. All outdoor uses, except for public uses, must be effectively screened from any abutting 
residential property with appropriate landscaping. 

c. Outdoor Lighting: 

a. All outdoor lighting shall be arranged so as not to direct or reflect light directly 
into adjacent residential districts and streets and shall be extinguished no later 
than thirty (30) minutes after the close of the business or the use being served. 

b. All outdoor lighting must be no more than thirty (30) feel tall at the highest point 
from ground level. 

c. Exemptions from or modifications to these provisions for a use occupying all or 
any part of the property in question may be approved upon request to and 
approval by the Village. 

d. Off Street Loading and Parking: 

a. Off street loading and parking facilities may be unenclosed throughout the REC 
District. Such unenclosed areas shall be effectively screened by a solid wall or 
fence (including solid entrance and exit gates) not less than six feet (6') nor more 
than eight feet (8') in height, or a landscaped buffer planted to effectively screen 
such parking and loading areas. 

b. The number of parking spaces required for any permitted use in the District shall 
be set in accordance with the requirements of Section 6-11-2 of this Code, or, 
for any particular use not identified therein, one (1) space per four (4) persons in 
designed capacity or one (1) space per one thousand (1,000) square feet of lot 
area, whichever is greater; or for any special use, by the special use review and 
approval process. 
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C.   Permitted Uses: In the REC District, the only permitted uses shall be as follows: 

Auditoriums, exhibition halls, banquet facilities, and meeting rooms. 

Country clubs 

Cemeteries 

Fitness centers / health spas 

Libraries 

Movie theaters and playhouses - indoor  

Museums 

Open space – public or private – including but not limited to bicycle paths, hiking trails, 
interpretive trails, or passive open space. 

Parks and recreation areas - publicly owned and/or operated.   

Playgrounds – with suitable play equipment; and including tot lots 

Skating rinks 

Studios for professional work or teaching of any form of the arts, including but not limited 
to photography, music, drama, dance, cooking, karate, computer use, yoga, and other 
similar uses 

Swimming pools - Indoor and outdoor  

Wedding venues - Indoor and outdoor wedding venues 

Accessory uses to permitted uses or approved special uses, including but not limited to 
administrative structures, restroom facilities, concession facilities, activity buildings, boat 
ramps and docks, club houses, and other similar uses. 

D.   Special Uses: In a REC District, the following may be allowed as special uses: 

Dog parks 

Horseback riding stables and trails 

Other indoor and outdoor event venues, including but not limited to stadiums, 
amphitheaters, and bandshells. 

Outdoor amusement establishments, water parks, miniature golf courses, kiddie parks, 
and similar amusement centers. 

Recreational camping for temporary use only, including motor coach parks 

Solar Energy Systems, as defined in and subject to the restrictions set forth in chapter 
5, article XVIII of this Code 

Sports and athletic facilities – indoor and outdoor – including but not limited to fields for 
baseball, football, or soccer; basketball courts; tennis courts, and other similar uses. 

Wind energy systems, as defined in and subject to the restrictions set forth in chapter 5, 
article XVII of this Code 
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Other recreational uses deemed by the Planning and Zoning Commission to be of the 
same general character as those listed herein. 

E.   Lot Area, Yard, and Bulk Requirements: 

1. Minimum lot area     25,000 square feet 

2. Minimum lot width     150 feet 

3. Minimum lot depth     150 feet 

4. Minimum yard setback: 

a. Adjacent to a street or road:   100 feet 

b. Abutting an adjoining property:  25 feet 

5. Maximum lot coverage    50 percent 

6. Maximum impervious surface coverage  70 percent 

7. Floor area ratio     0.25 

8. Height of principal use    Lesser of 3 stories or 50 feet 

9. Height of accessory use    Lesser of 1 story or 15 feet 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Village of Hampshire
Snow & Salt 
Operations
Dave Starrett, Streets Supervisor

Prepared for the Village Board Meeting
on November 18, 2021



Basic 
Policies

 Hard to be standardized – every storm is different

 Constant contact with drivers to monitor activities 
and conditions

 Generally, try to keep stop-intersections salted –
can’t salt everything

 Snow will cover it too fast

 Low traffic roads won’t melt as well

 Typical 1”-2” storm, we will salt both directions on 
streets

 Plowing priorities: downtown, arterial road, streets 
with curves/slopes



Salt Purchasing and Use
 State of Illinois consolidated purchasing program

 Make contract order in the summer (later this year)

 Can actually purchase up to 20% more or less than 
the contract depending on use throughout the 
season

 Price per ton varies: FY21 - $99+, FY22 - $62.39

 Our trucks can use 45-50 tons per run, equal to about 
$3,100

 Total usage in one year

 FY21: 2,000 tons, $200,000 (80% of contract)

 FY22: 2,000, $125,000 (100% of contract)

 Orders supposed to arrive on trucks within 7 business 
days of individual requests – not always fulfilled on 
time





Equipment

 8 plows and 1 pick-up truck

 Radios in each truck for constant 
contact

 Combination backhoe-loader to 
load salt

 Takes 45 minutes to prepare

 2 salt bins storing up to 700-800 
tons



Routes and Manpower

 9 routes – 5 Streets employees and 4 Utilities 
employees

 Mandatory breaks at certain points, typically 
overnight, when

 other units aren’t plowing,

 traffic is low, and/or

 the dept has been plowing for several hours

 Try to keep moral up by grilling and other activities



1 (blue)

2 (pink)
4 (green)

3 (yellow)

5 (orange)

7 (navy)

9 (not shown)
Alleys/parking lots

6 (red)

8 (purple)



Other Programs

Mailbox Replacement
 Will replace mailboxes 

damaged by plowing only

 Allows up to $45 of 
reimbursement

 Guidelines for placement of 
new mailbox – 6’-8’ from curb

 Contact Streets Dept. directly

Ride-along
 Residents may apply to ride-

along with one of our 
snowplows during a winter 
storm.

 18+ years old

 Application available online
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AGENDA SUPPLEMENT 

 
TO:  President Reid, Village Board and Village Administrator Hedges 

   

FROM: Lori Lyons, Finance Director 

 

FOR:  November 18, 2021 Village Board Meeting  

 

RE: Introducing the Levies and Assessment of Taxes in 2021 for collection in 

2022 in and for the Village of Hampshire Special Service Areas. 

 
Background. Several subdivisions or business parks within the Village of Hampshire have 

Special Service Areas designed to generate sufficient funds to maintain certain improvements 

specific to the given territory that lies within the SSA. The originating ordinance for each 

maintenance SSA may specify the maximum amount that can be levied to generate these funds. 

Each year, the Village must determine the cost to provide this special maintenance service and 

levy a tax against the properties in the SSA. 

 

The Village also has two active Special Services Areas that were established to finance certain 

infrastructure within two subdivisions in the Village. Discussion of the infrastructure SSAs will 

be completed at a subsequent meeting. 

 

Analysis. Over time, the Village has established or reserved for 29 Special Services Areas. They 

are as follows (this includes all SSA types):  

 

SSA # Description Notes 

SSA 1 Hampshire Spring Farms Dissolved 

SSA 2 Old Mill 

 
SSA 3 Panama Street 

 
SSA 4 Sterling Oaks Inactive 

SSA 5 US 20/I-90  (infrastructure) Dissolved 

SSA 6 Hampshire Prairie 

 
SSA 7 Hampshire Hills 

 
SSA 8 Hampshire Fields 

 
SSA 9 US 20 Water Tower (infrastructure) Final Year 

SSA 10 White Oak Ponds 

 
SSA 11 Hampshire Highlands 

 
SSA 12 Hampshire Meadows 

 
SSA 13 Tuscany Woods (infrastructure) 

 
SSA 14 Lakewood (infrastructure) 

 
SSA 15 Lakewood (backup) 

 
SSA 16 Prairie Ridge West (infrastructure) Dissolved 

SSA 17 Oakstead (infrastructure) Dissolved 
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SSA # Description Notes 

SSA 18 Tamms Farm (infrastructure) Dissolved 

SSA 19 Prairie Ridge East (infrastructure) Dissolved 

SSA 20 Prairie Ridge Inactive 

SSA 21 Oakstead Inactive 

SSA 22 Tamms Farm Inactive 

SSA 23 Tuscany Woods 

 
SSA 24 Lakewood Ryland (infrastructure) Reserved but unused 

SSA 25 Hampshire Woods (backup) Reserved but unused at this time 

SSA 26 Love’s/Metric (backup) Inactive 

SSA 27 Hampshire Corporate Center (backup) Inactive 

SSA 28 Stanley Storage Facility (backup) Reserved but unused at this time 

SSA 29 TRZ & NCI Property (backup) Proposed 

 
Levying for special service areas is quite a bit different than the Village of Hampshire’s levy that 

was discussed at the November 4
th
 meeting. For the SSAs, the Village Board must levy the 

amounts specified the properties in the SSA to be able to fund the services provided to the areas. 

An increase of more than 5% requires a public hearing but the only notice required is given in 

accordance with the Open Meetings Act versus the newspaper publication requirement of the 

Village’s levy. The SSAs to be discussed this evening are mainly stormwater drainage related, but 

they also may include landscape maintenance such as mowing and weed control. The actual levy 

amounts are to accommodate the costs incurred in maintaining the applicable area. The 2020 levy 

amounts and the proposed 2021 levy amounts are provided below: 
 

SSA # Description 

 

2020 Levy 

Proposed 2021 

Levy 

 

2 Old Mill Manor 2,600 2,730 
 

3 Panama                   300                    310  
 

4 Sterling Oaks 0 0 
 

6 Hampshire Prairie 6,220  6,500  
 

7 Hampshire Hills 1,050  10,000  
** 

8 Hampshire Fields             5,100             4,000 
 

10 White Oak Ponds 9,240 13,860 
** 

11 Hampshire Highlands 15,000 10,000 
 

12 Hampshire Meadows 4,180  5,700  
** 

15 Lakewood Crossings 13,125  0  
 

20 Prairie Ridge 0 0 
 

21 Oakstead 0 0 
 

22 Tamms Farm 0 0 
 

23 Tuscany Woods 0  0  
 

26 Loves/Metrix 0 0 
 

27 Hampshire Corporate Center 0 0 
 

 

Total  $     56,815            $     53,100           

 

 
 ** - Levy Request is greater than 5% and will require a public hearing. 
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Staff continues to work to establish an appropriate maintenance schedule for each of the SSAs. 

The attached document shows the projected levy and maintenance schedule for each of the active 

SSAs. 

 

Further comment will be provided in a presentation on the levy for the maintenance SSAs. 

 

Recommendation.  No action is required at this time. 



SSA #2

Old Mill Manor

# # # # # #

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Starting Fund Balance (1,285.13)                 754.64                     1,424.97                  2,030.97                  2,562.97                  2,999.97                  3,328.97                  

Levy 5,198.43                  2,600.10                  2,730.00                  2,870.00                  3,010.00                  3,160.00                  3,320.00                  

Percentage Increase -50% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%

Interest 5.36                          

Wages & Benefits 879.56                     1,536.77                  1,691.00                  1,861.00                  2,048.00                  2,253.00                  2,479.00                  

Expenses 2,284.46                  393.00                     433.00                     477.00                     525.00                     578.00                     636.00                     

Pond Maintenance

   Spray -                            

   Clear

   Burn

  Machine Rental -                            

Spring 22

Ending Fund Balance 754.64                     1,424.97                  2,030.97                  2,562.97                  2,999.97                  3,328.97                  3,533.97                  

Annual Levy Cost to $250K FMV 

owner occupied homeowner & 29.59                       14.80                       15.54                       16.34                       17.13                       17.99                       18.90                       

2020 Net Taxable Value 13,588,195             13,588,195             13,588,195             13,588,195             13,588,195             13,588,195             13,588,195             

  Rate 0.0003826 0.0001913 0.0002009 0.0002112 0.000222 0.000233 0.000244

T/M/L

# - Expenses Estimated

& - Assumes flat EAV



SSA #3

Panama

# # # # # #

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Starting Fund Balance 2,434.69                  2,807.66                  2,817.66                  2,787.65                  2,717.65                  2,607.64                  2,457.64                  

Levy 599.99                     300.00                     310.00                     319.00                     329.00                     339.00                     349.00                     

Percentage Increase -50% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Interest 4.15                          

Wages 175.08                     306.00                     340.00                     370.00                     410.00                     450.00                     500.00                     

Expenses 68.95                        240.00                     260.00                     290.00                     320.00                     350.00                     390.00                     

Pond Maintenance

   Spray -                            

   Clear

   Burn

Spring 22

Ending Fund Balance 3,140.81                  3,173.66                  3,207.66                  3,186.65                  3,136.65                  3,046.64                  2,916.64                  

Annual Levy Cost to $250K FMV 

owner occupied homeowner & 33.30                       16.65                       17.20                       17.70                       18.26                       18.81                       19.37                       

2020 Net Taxable Value 1,393,760                1,393,760                1,393,760                1,393,760                1,393,760                1,393,760                1,393,760                

  Rate 0.0004305               0.0002152               0.0002224               0.0002289               0.0002361               0.0002432               0.0002504               

T/M/L

# - Expenses Estimated

& - Assumes flat EAV



SSA #6

Hampshire Prairie

# # # # # #

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Starting Fund Balance 3,732.23                  11,324.71                10,979.11                10,249.11                9,129.11                  7,549.11                  5,449.11                  

Levy 12,484.45                6,220.00                  6,500.00                  6,830.00                  7,170.00                  7,530.00                  7,910.00                  

Percentage Increase -50% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%

Interest 22.16                        3.50                          

Wages 3,340.37                  5,836.33                  6,420.00                  7,060.00                  7,770.00                  8,550.00                  9,410.00                  

Expenses 1,573.76                  732.77                     810.00                     890.00                     980.00                     1,080.00                  1,190.00                  

Pond Maintenance

   Spray -                            

   Clear

   Burn

Spring 22

Ending Fund Balance 11,324.71                10,979.11                10,249.11                9,129.11                  7,549.11                  5,449.11                  2,759.11                  

Annual Levy Cost to $250K FMV 

owner occupied homeowner & 48.46                       23.39                       24.44                       25.68                       26.96                       27.55                       30.04                       

  2019 EAV 20,572,325             20,572,325             20,572,325             20,572,325             20,572,325             20,572,325             20,572,325             

  Rate 0.0006265               0.0003023 0.0003160 0.0003320 0.0003485 0.0003660 0.0003845

T/M/L

# - Expenses Estimated

& - Assumes flat EAV



SSA #7

Hampshire Hills

# # # # # #

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Starting Fund Balance 5,709.00                  (3,828.10)                 (15,316.47)              (10,991.47)              (12,451.72)              (3,247.98)                 (833.56)                    

Levy 999.37                     1,050.00                  10,000.00                12,500.00                15,630.00                17,970.00                20,670.00                

Percentage Increase 5% 852% 25% 25% 15% 15%

Interest 9.17                          

Wages & Benefits 528.01                     922.55                     1,020.00                  1,130.00                  1,250.00                  1,380.00                  1,520.00                  

Expenses 217.63                     315.82                     350.00                     390.00                     430.00                     480.00                     530.00                     

Pond Maintenance

   Spray -                            4,100.00                  4,305.00                  4,520.25                  4,746.26                  4,983.58                  5,232.75                  

   Clear 9,800.00                  12,250.00                

   Burn 7,200.00                  7,920.00                  8,712.00                  

Spring 22

Ending Fund Balance (3,828.10)                 (15,316.47)              (10,991.47)              (12,451.72)              (3,247.98)                 (833.56)                    303.69                     

Annual Levy Cost to $250K FMV 

owner occupied homeowner & 9.75                          10.24                       97.52                       121.90                     152.43                     175.25                     201.58                     

  2021 EAV 7,931,488                7,931,488                7,931,488                7,931,488                7,931,488                7,931,488                7,931,488                

  Rate 0.0001260 0.0001324 0.0012608 0.0015760 0.001971 0.002266 0.002606

T/M/L

# - Expenses Estimated

& - Assumes flat EAV



SSA #8

Hampshire Fields

# # # # # #

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Starting Fund Balance (4,959.88)                 (2,022.26)                 801.52                     2,291.52                  3,021.52                  3,461.52                  3,591.52                  

Levy 6,498.75                  5,100.00                  4,000.00                  3,500.00                  3,500.00                  3,500.00                  3,500.00                  

Percentage Increase -22% -22% -13% 0% 0% 0%

Interest 2.10                          0.53                          

Wages & Benefits 1,056.02                  1,845.10                  2,030.00                  2,240.00                  2,470.00                  2,720.00                  3,000.00                  

Expenses 2,507.21                  431.65                     480.00                     530.00                     590.00                     650.00                     720.00                     

Pond Maintenance

   Spray -                            

   Clear -                            

   Burn

Spring 22

Ending Fund Balance (2,022.26)                 801.52                     2,291.52                  3,021.52                  3,461.52                  3,591.52                  3,371.52                  

Annual Levy Cost to $250K FMV 

owner occupied homeowner & 105.40                     82.71                       64.87                       56.76                       56.76                       56.76                       56.76                       

  2021 EAV 4,769,406                4,769,406                4,769,406                4,769,406                4,769,406                4,769,406                4,769,406                

  Rate 0.0013626 0.0010693 0.0008387 0.0007338 0.000734 0.000734 0.000734

T/M/L

# - Expenses Estimated

& - Assumes flat EAV



SSA #10

White Oak Ponds

# # # # # #

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Starting Fund Balance (9,090.98)                 (15,791.81)              (18,131.52)              (11,461.52)              (10,474.02)              (1,771.65)                 912.35                     

Levy 8,791.26                  9,240.00                  * 13,860.00                15,250.00                16,780.00                18,460.00                20,310.00                

Percentage Increase 5% 50% 10% 10% 10% 10%

Interest

Wages & Benefits 879.56                     1,536.77                  1,700.00                  1,870.00                  1,970.00                  2,070.00                  2,180.00                  

Expenses 362.53                     392.94                     440.00                     490.00                     540.00                     600.00                     660.00                     

Pond Maintenance

   Spray 4,250.00                  650.00                     5,050.00                  5,302.50                  5,567.63                  5,846.01                  6,138.31                  

   Clear 1, 2, 3 10,000.00                -                            -                            -                            -                            12,500.00                

   Clear 3 & 8 7,600.00                  

   Burn 2 -                            6,000.00                  6,600.00                  7,260.00                  

   Burn 3 1,200.00                  1,320.00                  1,452.00                  

   Burn 8 1,470.00                  1,617.00                  

Spring 22 -                            3,000.00                  

Ending Fund Balance (15,791.81)              (18,131.52)              (11,461.52)              (10,474.02)              (1,771.65)                 912.35                     (255.96)                    

Levy Cost to 250K owner occupied 

homeowner & 49.88                       52.37                       78.56                       86.44                       95.11                       104.64                     115.12                     

  2021 EAV 13,646,298             13,646,298             13,646,298             13,646,298             13,646,298             13,646,298             13,646,298             

Rate 0.0006449               0.0006771 0.0010157 0.0011175 0.001230 0.001353 0.001488

T/M/L

# - Expenses Estimated

& - Assumes flat EAV



SSA #11

Hampshire Highlands

# # # # # #

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Starting Fund Balance 3,032.48                  7,832.15                  13,402.38                17,082.38                16,502.38                19,322.38                4,677.38                  

Levy 18,269.65                15,000.00                10,000.00                10,000.00                10,000.00                10,000.00                10,000.00                

Percentage Increase -18% -33% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Interest 29.11                        

Wages & Benefits 4,221.65                  1,536.77                  1,700.00                  1,870.00                  2,060.00                  2,270.00                  2,500.00                  

Expenses 1,777.44                  393.00                     420.00                     450.00                     480.00                     510.00                     540.00                     

Pond Maintenance

   Spray 7,500.00                  4,000.00                  4,200.00                  4,410.00                  4,640.00                  4,880.00                  5,130.00                  

   Clear -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            12,750.00                -                            

   Burn 3,500.00                  3,850.00                  4,235.00                  

Spring 22

Ending Fund Balance 7,832.15                  13,402.38                17,082.38                16,502.38                19,322.38                4,677.38                  6,507.38                  

7,832.15                  

Levy Cost to 250K owner occupied 

homeowner & 74.05                       60.80                       40.53                       40.53                       40.53                       40.53                       40.53                       

2021 EAV 19,083,159             19,083,159             19,083,159             19,083,159             19,083,159             19,083,159             19,083,159             

Rate 0.0009574               0.0007860               0.0005240               0.0005240               0.0005240               0.0005240               0.0005240               

T/M/L

# - Expenses Estimated

& - Assumes flat EAV



SSA #12

Hampshire Meadows

# # # # # #

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Starting Fund Balance (1,388.34)                 5,430.14                  3,873.98                  3,293.98                  2,398.98                  1,153.23                  (488.31)                    

Levy 10,977.77                4,180.00                  5,700.00                  5,985.00                  6,284.25                  6,598.46                  6,928.39                  

Percentage Increase -62% 36% 5% 5% 5% 5%

Interest 13.11                        

Wages & Benefits 2,815.14                  4,918.64                  5,420.00                  5,970.00                  6,570.00                  7,230.00                  7,960.00                  

Expenses 1,357.26                  817.52                     860.00                     910.00                     960.00                     1,010.00                  1,070.00                  

Pond Maintenance

   Spray

   Clear

   Burn

  Machine Rental -                            

Spring 22

Ending Fund Balance 5,430.14                  3,873.98                  3,293.98                  2,398.98                  1,153.23                  (488.31)                    (2,589.92)                 

Annual Levy Cost to $250K FMV 

owner occupied homeowner & 79.32                       30.14                       41.10                       43.16                       45.32                       47.58                       49.96                       

  2021 EAV 10,726,310             10,726,310             10,726,310             10,726,310             10,726,310             10,726,310             10,726,310             

  Rate 0.0010255 0.0003897 0.0005314 0.0005580 0.000586 0.000615 0.000646

T/M/L

# - Expenses Estimated

& - Assumes flat EAV



SSA #15

Lakewood Crossings

# # # # # #

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Starting Fund Balance (5,407.20)                6,973.89                 19,898.89               19,898.89               19,898.89               19,898.89          19,898.89          

Levy 12,481.67               13,125.00               -                           -                           -                           -                      -                      

Percentage Increase 5% -100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Interest 9.67                         3.10                         

Wages & Benefits

Expenses 110.25                    200.00                    

Pond Maintenance

   Spray

   Clear

   Burn

  Machine Rental -                           

Spring 22

Ending Fund Balance 6,973.89                 19,898.89               19,898.89               19,898.89               19,898.89               19,898.89          19,898.89          

Annual Levy Cost to $250K FMV 

owner occupied homeowner & 28.44                      29.90                      -                           -                           -                           -                      -                      

  2021 EAV 33,951,289            33,951,289            33,951,289            33,951,289            33,951,289            33,951,289        33,951,289        

  Rate 0.0003676              0.0003866              -                           -                           -                           -                      -                      

T/M/L

# - Expenses Estimated

& - Assumes flat EAV



 

 

AGENDA SUPPLEMENT 

 

TO:  President Reid, Village Board and Village Manager Hedges 

   

FROM: Lori Lyons, Finance Director 

 

FOR:  November 18, 2021 Village Board Meeting  

 

RE: Treasurer’s Report as of October 31, 2021 

 

 

Background. The Village Finance Director will supply a monthly treasurer’s report for review. 

Following this agenda supplement is the report for the 6 months ending October 31, 2021 

(50.0%). 

 

Analysis. Discussion will be centered around the Village’s main operating funds: General Fund 

(01) and Water Fund (30) and Sewer Fund (31). 

 

The following General Fund revenue accounts are monitored closely to assure we are on track to 

meet budgetary needs for the fiscal year: 

 

State Municipal Share Revenues 

Description FY22 Budget Through October 2021 Percent Received 

Sales Tax           786,826                          550,368 69.9% 

Income Tax          678,275                          413,884  61.0% 

Use Tax          272,166                   99,282 36.4% 

Video Gaming          106,000                            83,598  78.8% 

 

Other Tax & Fee Revenue 

Description FY22 Budget Through October 2021 Percent Received 

Utility Taxes          357,660                          191,918  46.3% 

Places for Eating          225,000                          105,690  46.9% 

Building Permits          144,000                            73,377  49.0% 

Fines, Fees, & Reports            75,000                            29,383  39.1% 

Towing Fees            15,000                            13,250  88.3% 

Public Use Transition Fees            43,120                           11,767 27.7% 

 

 



 

 

Staff projected and included 55 new home permits in the FY22 budget. As of October 31, 

seventeen new home permits have been issued (30.9%). There were two new home permits 

issued in October. 

 

As of October 31, 2021, the Village has received seven distributions of property tax from the 

Kane County Treasurer’s office, and has received 101% of the budget revenue. The County’s tax 

sale occurred earlier month a small, final distribution of property tax is expected to be distributed 

on November 17. 

 

On a monthly basis, there will be accounts in which expenditures make the percentage expended 

seem abnormal. These are the account categories for the month of October, 2021: 

 

Description FY22 Budget Through October 2021 Percent Expended 

Maintenance Building         30,000 27,683 92.2% 

Admin Meals & Travel 1,000    867 86.6% 

Admin 
Print/Advertising/Forms  5,100   7,469 142.0% 

Admin Capital Outlay   6,825    6,701 98.1% 

Admin Computer 
Software/Lic         10,480    8,405 80.2% 

911 Services       102,509                  102,509 100.0% 

Police Legal Services         12,000   8,641 72.0% 

Police Other Prof Services         59,557  43,546 73.1% 

Street Division – 
Maintenance – Equipment         10,000 8,544 85.4% 

Street Division – Tree 
Removal         20,000   15,150 75.7% 

Street Capital Outlay       139,513 253,563 181.7% 

 

- Maintenance Building – exterior improvements to Village Hall 

- Admin Meals & Travel – additional meals, conferences, etc. 

- Admin Printing/Advertising/Forms – additional expenses due to rebranding, newsletter 

- Admin Capital Outlay – includes boardroom branding which was unbudgeted. 

- Admin Software/License – annual ERP license fee paid. 

- Police 911 Services – annual dispatch fee paid to Kane County paid. 

- Police Legal Services – labor and other legal services required. 

- Police Other Prof Services – annual licenses fees paid. 

- Street Equipment Maintenance – equipment repair & maintenance 

- Street Tree Removal – lots of dangerous trees discovered in the parkway 

- Street Capital Outlay – cash basis timing & recording due to purchase and financing of the 

Street Sweeper. 

 

The following water and sewer revenue accounts are monitored closely to assure we are on track 

to meet budgetary needs for the fiscal year: 



 

 

 

Description FY22 Budget Through October 2021 Percent Received 

Water Sales 1,038,115 563,097 54.2% 

Sewerage Service 1,348,429 701,094 52.0% 

 

Much of the variance from month to month in these categories can be attributed to the timing of 

the Village’s bi-monthly billing cycle. At October 31, we remain on track after July reflected 

revenues below expectation. 

 

As with the General Fund and on a monthly basis, there will be accounts in which expenditures 

make the percentage expended seem abnormal. These are the account categories for the month of 

October 2021: 

 

 
Description FY22 Budget Through August 2021 Percent Expended 

Water – Maintenance 
Utility System         117,500 145,317 123.6% 

Water Engineering Services           55,000 50,937 92.6% 

Water – Other Professional 
Services   9,765    6,226 63.7% 

Sewer Gasoline – Oil    3,000      3,525 117.41% 

 

- Water Maintenance Utility System – Includes the installation of an 8” main on Cameron 

Drive 

- Water Engineering – Projects related to connecting the north and south water system 

(corrosion study, preliminary engineering), Risk & Resiliency, Route 72 water main 

replacement 

- Water – Other Professional Services – testing of drinking water to IEPA standards 

- Sewer Gasoline – Oil -  purchase of fuel for vehicles was budgeted but periodic machine oil 

purchase was not 

 

Recommendation. For informational purposes only; no action required. 



Village of Hampshire

Budget Versus Actual Report Overview

Six Months Ended October 31, 2021

% of Budget

2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $  DELTA % TOT BUDGET

Revenue 2,407,457         3,125,297         717,840             30% 4,814,914         65%

Expenditures/Expense 2,411,625         1,996,751         (414,874)           -17% 4,823,246         41%

YTD Surplus/(Deficit) (4,168)                1,128,546         1,132,714         (8,332)                

Revenue 427,460             436,961             9,501                 2% 854,915             51%

Expenditures/Expense 735,120             192,553             (542,567)           -74% 1,470,235         13%

YTD Surplus/(Deficit) (307,660)           244,408             552,068             (615,320)           

Revenue 607,997             39,978               (568,019)           -93% 1,215,989         3%

Expenditures/Expense 755,100             40,172               (714,928)           -95% 1,510,200         3%

YTD Surplus/(Deficit) (147,103)           (194)                   146,909             (294,211)           

Revenue 1,924,208         1,961,413         37,205               2% 3,848,858         51%

Expenditures/Expense 2,027,849         1,015,482         (1,012,367)        -50% 4,055,696         25%

YTD Surplus/(Deficit) (103,641)           945,931             1,049,572         (206,838)           

Revenue 5,367,122         5,563,649         196,527             4% 10,734,676       52%

Expenditures/Expense 5,929,694         3,244,958         (2,684,736)        -45% 11,859,377       27%

YTD Surplus/(Deficit) (562,572)           2,318,691         2,881,263         (1,124,701)        

2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $  DELTA % TOT BUDGET

Revenue 720,445             1,231,271         510,826             71% 1,440,888         85%

Expenditures/Expense 740,534             485,030             (255,504)           -35% 1,481,064         33%

YTD Surplus/(Deficit) (20,089)              746,241             766,330             (40,176)              

2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $  DELTA % TOT BUDGET

Revenue 385,886             52,219               (333,667)           -86% 771,771             7%

Expenditures/Expense 37,464               92,356               54,892               147% 74,928               123%

YTD Surplus/(Deficit) 348,422             (40,137)              (388,559)           696,843             

General Fund (01)

Special Revenue Funds

Capital Project Funds

Enterprise Funds

Total Village

6 MONTHS ENDED

6 MONTHS ENDED

Agency Funds

Pension Trust Fund

6 MONTHS ENDED
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Village of Hampshire

Budget Versus Actual Report - General Fund Summary

Six Months Ended October 31, 2021

2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $  DELTA % TOT BUDGET

GENERAL FUND REVENUE

  Property Tax 667,766         1,119,832      452,066     68% 1,108,223      

  Intergovernmental 1,060,359      1,283,487      223,128     21% 2,120,719      

  Service Fees 36,520            40,437            3,917          11% 73,040            

  Investment Income 2,500              1,407              (1,093)         -44% 5,000              

  Reimburseable 92,325            85,472            (6,853)         -7% 184,650         

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees 160,008         152,230         (7,778)         -5% 320,015         

  Other Income 225,819         442,432         216,613     96% 451,637         

  Transfers In 275,815         -                       (275,815)    -100% 551,630         

    TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE 2,407,457      3,125,297      717,840     30% 4,814,914      

GENERAL FUND EXPENSE 2021-2022  

ADMINISTRATION YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $  DELTA % TOT BUDGET

  Personal Services 293,874         278,223         (15,651)      -5% 587,747         

  Contractual Services 241,140         179,950         (61,190)      -25% 482,279         

  Commodities 12,540            13,575            1,035          8% 25,080            

  Other Expenses 46,339            915                 (45,424)      -98% 92,677            

  Capital Outlay 3,413              6,701              3,288          96% 6,825              

  Transfers -                       -                       -                   0% -                       

    TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 597,304         479,364         (117,940)    -20% 1,194,608      

POLICE

  Personal Services 1,086,596      724,837         (361,759)    -33% 2,173,193      

  Contractual Services 140,423         199,249         58,826        42% 280,846         

  Commodities 32,050            25,117            (6,933)         -22% 64,100            

  Capital Outlay 66,160            4,596              (61,564)      -93% 132,320         

    TOTAL POLICE 1,325,230      953,799         (371,431)    -28% 2,650,459      

STREET DEPARTMENT

  Personal Services 238,216         198,888         (39,328)      -17% 476,430         

  Contractual Services 127,320         81,195            (46,125)      -36% 254,640         

  Commodities 29,750            24,519            (5,231)         -18% 59,500            

  Other Expenses 17,891            3,862              (14,029)      -78% 35,782            

  Capital Outlay 69,757            253,563         183,806     263% 139,513         

    TOTAL STREET DEPARTMENT 482,933         562,027         79,094        16% 965,865         

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT

  Personal Services 598                 592                 (6)                 -1% 1,195              

    TOTAL PLANNING AND ZONING DEPT. 598                 592                 (6)                 -1% 1,195              

POLICE COMMISSION

  Personal Services 485                 969                 484             100% 969                 

  Contractual Services 5,049              -                       (5,049)         -100% 10,100            

  Other Expenses -                       -                       -                   0% -                       

  Commodities 25                    -                       (25)              -100% 50                    

    TOTAL POLICE COMMISSION 5,560              969                 (4,591)         -83% 11,119            

    TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSE 2,411,625      1,996,751      (414,874)    -17% 4,823,246      

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (4,168)             1,128,546      1,132,714  -27176% (8,332)             

6 MONTHS ENDED

General Fund Revenues (01)

General Fund Expenses (01)

6 MONTHS ENDED
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Village of Hampshire

Budget Versus Actual Report - Special Revenue Fund Summary

Six Months Ended October 31, 2021

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Property Tax 26,604           54,181           27,577        104% 53,208           -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Intergovernmental -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Investment Income 5                     2                     (3)                -60% 10                   13                   3                     (10)              -77% 25                   

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees -                      -                      -                   0% -                      6,000              16,701           10,701        178% 12,000           

  Other Income -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Transfers 12,501           -                      (12,501)      -100% 25,000           -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

    TOTAL REVENUE 39,109           54,183           15,074        39% 78,218           6,013              16,704           10,691        178% 12,025           

EXPENSE

  Contractual Services 1,250              707                 (543)            -43% 2,500              9,500              626                 (8,874)        -93% 19,000           

  Commodities -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Other Expenses 30,552           17,845           (12,707)      -42% 61,103           15,501           35,000           19,499        126% 31,000           

    TOTAL EXPENSE 31,802           18,552           (13,250)      -42% 63,603           25,000           35,626           10,626        43% 50,000           

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 7,307              35,631           28,324        388% 14,615           (18,987)          (18,922)          65               0% (37,975)          

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Property Tax 58,245           117,766         59,521        102% 116,492         -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Intergovernmental -                      -                      -                   0% -                      204,135         131,071         (73,064)      -36% 408,269         

  Investment Income 3                     4                     1                  33% 5                     420                 106                 (314)            -75% 840                 

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Other Income -                      -                      -                   0% -                      91,656           61,104           (30,552)      -33% 183,312         

    TOTAL REVENUE 58,249           117,770         59,521        102% 116,497         296,211         192,281         (103,930)    -35% 592,421         

EXPENSE

  Contractual Services 125,037         75,343           (49,694)      -40% 250,074         162,318         -                      (162,318)    -100% 324,635         

  Commodities -                      -                      -                   0% -                      125,000         40,275           (84,725)      -68% 250,000         

  Other Expenses -                      -                      -                   0% -                      238,215         -                      (238,215)    -100% 476,430         

    TOTAL EXPENSE 125,037         75,343           (49,694)      -40% 250,074         525,533         40,275           (485,258)    -92% 1,051,065      

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (66,788)          42,427           109,215     -164% (133,577)        (229,322)        152,006         381,328     -166% (458,644)        

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Property Tax 27,840           56,004           28,164        101% 55,679           112,689         227,951         115,262     102% 225,379         

  Intergovernmental -                      -                      -                   0% -                      204,135         131,071         (73,064)      -36% 408,269         

  Investment Income 38                   19                   (19)              -50% 75                   479                 134                 (345)            -72% 955                 

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees -                      -                      -                   0% -                      6,000              16,701           10,701        178% 12,000           

  Other Income -                      -                      -                   0% -                      91,656           61,104           (30,552)      -33% 183,312         

  Transfers -                      -                      -                   0% -                      12,501           -                      (12,501)      -100% 25,000           

    TOTAL REVENUE 27,877           56,023           28,146        101% 55,754           427,460         436,961         9,501          2% 854,915         

EXPENSE

  Personal Services 9,375              15,359           5,984          64% 18,750           9,375              15,359           5,984          64% 18,750           

  Contractual Services -                      -                      -                   0% -                      298,105         76,676           (221,429)    -74% 596,209         

  Commodities -                      -                      -                   0% -                      125,000         40,275           (84,725)      -68% 250,000         

  Other Expenses 18,372           7,398              (10,974)      -60% 36,743           302,640         60,243           (242,397)    -80% 605,276         

    TOTAL EXPENSE 27,747           22,757           (4,990)        -18% 55,493           735,120         192,553         (542,567)    -74% 1,470,235      

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 130                 33,266           33,136        25489% 261                 (307,660)        244,408         552,068     -179% (615,320)        

6 MONTHS ENDED 6 MONTHS ENDED

6 MONTHS ENDED

Tax Increment Financing (05) Hotel/Motel Tax (07)

Road and Bridge (10) Motor Fuel Tax (15)

SSA #2-26 (52) Total Special Revenue Funds

6 MONTHS ENDED 6 MONTHS ENDED

6 MONTHS ENDED
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Village of Hampshire

Budget Versus Actual Report - Capital Project Fund Summary

Six Months Ended October 31, 2021

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Investment Income 8                     10                   2                 25% 15                   10                   2                     (8)                -80% 20                   

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Grant Income -                      -                      -                  0% -                      515,218         -                      (515,218)    -100% 1,030,435      

  Other Income -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Transfer from Capital Improv. 15,000           -                      (15,000)      -100% 30,000           -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

    TOTAL REVENUE 15,008           10                   (14,998)      -100% 30,015           515,228         2                     (515,226)    -100% 1,030,455      

EXPENSE

  Contractual Services -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      180                180             100% -                      

  Other Expenses -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Capital Outlay 70,000           -                      (70,000)      -100% 140,000         530,500         39,992           (490,508)    -92% 1,061,000      

  Transfer to General Fund -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

    TOTAL EXPENSE 70,000           -                      (70,000)      -100% 140,000         530,500         40,172           (490,328)    -92% 1,061,000      

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (54,992)          10                   55,002       -100% (109,985)        (15,272)          (40,170)          (24,898)      163% (30,545)          

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Investment Income 50                   40                   (10)              -20% 100                -                      10                   10               100% -                      

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees 19,581           12,104           (7,477)        -38% 39,160           -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Other Income -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Transfers -                      -                      -                  0% -                      13,140           -                      (13,140)      -100% 26,279           

    TOTAL REVENUE 19,630           12,144           (7,486)        -38% 39,260           13,140           10                   (13,130)      -100% 26,279           

EXPENSE

  Contractual Services 34,500           -                      (34,500)      -100% 69,000           -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Other Expenses -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Capital Outlay -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Transfers Out 12,500           -                      (12,500)      -100% 25,000           70,000           -                      (70,000)      -100% 140,000         

    TOTAL EXPENSE 47,000           -                      (47,000)      -100% 94,000           70,000           -                      (70,000)      -100% 140,000         

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (27,370)          12,144           39,514       -144% (54,740)          (56,860)          10                   56,870       -100% (113,721)        

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Investment Income -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees 44,990           27,812           (17,178)      -38% 89,980           -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Other Income -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

    TOTAL REVENUE 44,990           27,812           (17,178)      -38% 89,980           -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

EXPENSE

  Contractual Services -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Other Expenses -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Capital Outlay -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Transfer to General 37,600           -                      (37,600)      -100% 75,200           -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

    TOTAL EXPENSE 37,600           -                      (37,600)      -100% 75,200           -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 7,390             27,812           20,422       276% 14,780           -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Investment Income -                      -                      -                  0% -                      68                   62                   (6)                -9% 135                

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees -                      -                      -                  0% -                      64,571           39,916           (24,655)      -38% 129,140         

  Grant Income -                      -                      -                  0% -                      515,218         -                      (515,218)    -100% 1,030,435      

  Other Income -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Transfers -                      -                      -                  0% -                      28,140           -                      (28,140)      -100% 56,279           

    TOTAL REVENUE -                      -                      -                  0% -                      607,997         39,978           (568,019)    -93% 1,215,989      

EXPENSE

  Contractual Services -                      -                      -                  0% -                      34,500           180                (34,320)      -99% 69,000           

  Other Expenses -                      -                      -                  0% -                      -                      -                      -                  0% -                      

  Capital Outlay -                      -                      -                  0% -                      600,500         39,992           (560,508)    -93% 1,201,000      

  Transfers -                      -                      -                  0% -                      120,100         -                      (120,100)    -100% 240,200         

    TOTAL EXPENSE -                      -                      -                  0% -                      755,100         40,172           (714,928)    -95% 1,510,200      

-                  0%

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -                      -                      -                  0% -                      (147,103)        (194)               146,909     -100% (294,211)        

6 MONTHS ENDED 6 MONTHS ENDED

Capital Improvement (70) Total Capital Project Funds

Equipment Replacement (03) Capital Improvement (04)

Public Use Fees (06) Capital Projects/Debt Service (33)

Transportation Impact Fees (64) Early Warning (65)

6 MONTHS ENDED 6 MONTHS ENDED

6 MONTHS ENDED 6 MONTHS ENDED

6 MONTHS ENDED 6 MONTHS ENDED
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Village of Hampshire

Budget Versus Actual Report - Enterprise Fund Summary

Six Months Ended October 31, 2021

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Service Fees 172,186         147,616         (24,570)      -14% 344,372         437,000         280,070         (156,930)    -36% 874,000         

  Investment Income -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees 1,111              2,030              919             83% 2,667              6,102              6,506              404             7% 12,203           

  Other Income -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

    TOTAL REVENUE 173,520         149,646         (23,874)      -14% 347,039         443,102         286,576         (156,526)    -35% 886,203         

EXPENSE

  Personal Services -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Contractual Services -                      -                      -                   0% -                      437,200         278,604         (158,596)    -36% 874,400         

  Commodities -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      22                   22               100% -                      

  Other Expenses -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Capital Outlay -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Transfers 282,259         -                      (282,259)    -100% 564,518         5,900              4,917              (983)            -17% 11,800           

    TOTAL EXPENSE 282,259         -                      (282,259)    -100% 564,518         443,100         283,543         (159,557)    -36% 886,200         

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (108,739)        149,646         258,385     -238% (217,479)        2                     3,033              3,031          151550% 3                     

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Service Fees 519,059         474,072         (44,987)      -9% 1,038,115      674,215         596,974         (77,241)      -11% 1,348,429      

  Investment Income 5                     2                     (3)                -60% 10                   -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees 16,508           20,238           3,730          23% 33,015           25,394           8,987              (16,407)      -65% 50,787           

  Other Income 70,125           -                      (70,125)      -100% 140,250         -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  GO Bond/Loan Proceeds -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

    TOTAL REVENUE 605,695         494,312         (111,383)    -18% 1,211,390      699,608         605,961         (93,647)      -13% 1,399,216      

EXPENSE

  Personal Services 120,564         95,986           (24,578)      -20% 241,128         122,359         92,661           (29,698)      -24% 244,718         

  Contractual Services 319,796         167,776         (152,020)    -48% 639,591         308,003         96,690           (211,313)    -69% 616,006         

  Commodities 73,000           48,542           (24,458)      -34% 146,000         56,295           37,319           (18,976)      -34% 112,590         

  Other Expenses 58,479           17,818           (40,661)      -70% 116,957         172,014         163,078         (8,936)        -5% 344,028         

  Capital Outlay 60,980           12,069           (48,911)      -80% 121,960         11,000           -                      (11,000)      -100% 22,000           

  Bond Issuance and Escrow Agent Costs -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

    TOTAL EXPENSE 632,818         342,191         (290,627)    -46% 1,265,636      669,671         389,748         (279,923)    -42% 1,339,342      

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (27,123)          152,121         179,244     -661% (54,246)          29,937           216,213         186,276     622% 59,874           

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Service Fees -                      -                      -                   0% -                      1,802,460      1,498,732      (303,728)    -17% 3,604,916      

  Investment Income 3                     24                   21               700% -                      8                     26                   18               225% 10                   

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees 2,500              -                      (2,500)        -100% 5,000              51,615           37,761           (13,854)      -27% 103,672         

  Other Income -                      -                      -                   0% 10                   70,125           -                      (70,125)      -100% 140,260         

  Grant Income -                      424,894         424,894     100% -                      -                      424,894         424,894     100% -                      

  GO Bond/Loan Proceeds -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

    TOTAL REVENUE 2,505              424,918         422,413     16863% 5,010              1,924,208      1,961,413      37,205        2% 3,848,858      

EXPENSE

  Personal Services -                      -                      -                   0% -                      242,923         188,647         (54,276)      -22% 485,846         

  Contractual Services -                      -                      -                   0% -                      1,064,999      543,070         (521,929)    -49% 2,129,997      

  Commodities -                      -                      -                   0% -                      129,295         85,883           (43,412)      -34% 258,590         

  Other Expenses -                      -                      -                   0% -                      230,493         180,896         (49,597)      -22% 460,985         

  Capital Outlay -                      -                      -                   0% -                      71,980           12,069           (59,911)      -83% 143,960         

  Transfers -                      -                      -                   0% -                      288,159         4,917              (283,242)    -98% 576,318         

  Bond Issuance and Escrow Agent Costs -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

    TOTAL EXPENSE -                      -                      -                   0% -                      2,027,849      1,015,482      (1,012,367) -50% 4,055,696      

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 2,505              424,918         422,413     16863% 5,010              (103,641)        945,931         1,049,572  -1013% (206,838)        

6 MONTHS ENDED 6 MONTHS ENDED

ARRA Loan Debt Serv Fund (28) Garbage (29)

Water (30) Sewer (31)

Water Construction (34) Total Enterprise Funds

6 MONTHS ENDED 6 MONTHS ENDED

6 MONTHS ENDED 6 MONTHS ENDED
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Village of Hampshire

Budget Versus Actual Report - Agency Fund Summary

Six Months Ended October 31, 2021

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Property Tax 384,009         766,968         382,959     100% 768,018         190,385         377,329         186,944     98% 380,770         

  Investment Income 2,000              40                   (1,960)        -98% 4,000              -                      93                   93               100% -                      

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Other Income -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

    TOTAL REVENUE 386,009         767,008         380,999     99% 772,018         190,385         377,422         187,037     98% 380,770         

EXPENSE

  Other Expenses 406,471         189,948         (216,523)    -53% 812,942         190,011         94,011           (96,000)      -51% 380,022         

    TOTAL EXPENSE 406,471         189,948         (216,523)    -53% 812,942         190,011         94,011           (96,000)      -51% 380,022         

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (20,462)          577,060         597,522     -2920% (40,924)          374                 283,411         283,037     75678% 748                 

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Property Tax -                      -                      -                   0% -                      -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

  Investment Income 3                     4                     1                  33% 5                     8                     18                   10               125% 15                   

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees 100,091         60,721           (39,370)      -39% 200,182         7,219              4,427              (2,792)        -39% 14,438           

    TOTAL REVENUE 100,094         60,725           (39,369)      -39% 200,187         7,227              4,445              (2,782)        -38% 14,453           

-                   

EXPENSE -                   

  Other Expenses 100,094         136,704         36,610        37% 200,187         7,227              6,538              (689)            -10% 14,453           

    TOTAL EXPENSE 100,094         136,704         36,610        37% 200,187         7,227              6,538              (689)            -10% 14,453           

-                   

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -                      (75,979)          (75,979)      -100% -                      -                      (2,093)            (2,093)        -100% -                      

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Investment Income 3                     1                     (2)                -67% 5                     3                     5                     2                  67% 5                     

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees 9,100              5,519              (3,581)        -39% 18,199           26,247           15,294           (10,953)      -42% 52,496           

    TOTAL REVENUE 9,102              5,520              (3,582)        -39% 18,204           26,251           15,299           (10,952)      -42% 52,501           

EXPENSE

  Other Expenses 9,102              19,159           10,057        110% 18,204           26,251           38,670           12,419        47% 52,501           

    TOTAL EXPENSE 9,102              19,159           10,057        110% 18,204           26,251           38,670           12,419        47% 52,501           

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -                      (13,639)          (13,639)      -100% -                      -                      (23,371)          (23,371)      -100% -                      

2021-2022  2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $ DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Property Tax -                      -                      -                   0% -                      574,394         1,144,297      569,903     99% 1,148,788      

  Investment Income 3                     2                     (1)                -33% 5                     2,020              163                 (1,857)        -92% 4,035              

  Licenses, Fines, Permits, Fees 1,374              850                 (524)            -38% 2,750              144,031         86,811           (57,220)      -40% 288,065         

    TOTAL REVENUE 1,378              852                 (526)            -38% 2,755              720,445         1,231,271      510,826     71% 1,440,888      

EXPENSE

  Other Expenses 1,378              -                      (1,378)        -100% 2,755              740,534         485,030         (255,504)    -35% 1,481,064      

    TOTAL EXPENSE 1,378              -                      (1,378)        -100% 2,755              740,534         485,030         (255,504)    -35% 1,481,064      

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -                      852                 852             100% -                      (20,089)          746,241         766,330     -3815% (40,176)          

6 MONTHS ENDED 6 MONTHS ENDED

Cemetary Impact Fees (66) Total Agency Funds

SSA#14 B&I (43) SSA#13 B&I (45)

School Impact Fees (60) Library Impact Fees (61)

Parks Impact Fees (62) Fire Impact Fees (63)

6 MONTHS ENDED

6 MONTHS ENDED 6 MONTHS ENDED

6 MONTHS ENDED

6 MONTHS ENDED 6 MONTHS ENDED
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Village of Hampshire

Budget Versus Actual Report - Pension Trust Summary

Six Months Ended October 31, 2021

2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $  DELTA % TOT BUDGET

REVENUE

  Investment Income 6,600              1,056              (5,544)         -84% 13,200            

  Member Contributions 55,410            51,163            (4,247)         -8% 110,819         

  Employer Contributions 323,876         -                      (323,876)    -100% 647,752         

  Miscellaneous Income -                      -                      -                   0% -                      

    TOTAL REVENUE 385,886         52,219            (333,667)    -86% 771,771         

2021-2022  

YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL DELTA $  DELTA % TOT BUDGET

EXPENSE

  Pension Payments 16,950                        16,780             (170) -1%             33,900 

  Refund of Contributions 9,464                          74,321         64,857 685%             18,928 

  Contractual Services 10,000            800                          (9,200) -92% 20,000            

  Other Expenses 1,050              455                             (595) -57% 2,100              

    TOTAL EXPENSE 37,464            92,356            54,892        147% 74,928            

    YEAR-TO-DATE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 348,422         (40,137)          (388,559)    -112% 696,843         

Pension Trust Fund Revenues (90)

Pension Trust Fund Expenses (90)

6 MONTHS ENDED

6 MONTHS ENDED
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Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
 

Memo 

To: Village President and Board of Trustees 
 
From: Timothy N. Paulson, P.E., CFM 
 Senior Project Manager  
 
Date: November 15, 2021  
 
Re: Monthly Engineering Update 
 
EEI Job #:  HA2100
  
 
All: 
 
Please find below a brief status report of current Village and development projects. 
 
Village Projects 
 
 Connection Water Main 

 IEPA permit received, and corrosion control study approved 
 Easement acquisition in process 
 KDOT permit in process 
 Bidding January 2022 

 
 Route 72 and State Street Village Utilities 

 Delayed to Spring of 2022 
 

 Route 72 Water Main Repair 
 Preconstruction Meeting 11/17 
 Construction start 11/22 

 
 Risk and Resiliency Assessment and Emergency Response Plan (RRA/ERP) 

 ERP work ongoing 
 

 Central Business District Streetscape Improvements 
 Project to be re-bid early 2022 

 
 Julie Lane Resurfacing 

 Construction complete 
 

 



 
 

 

 

Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
 

Memo 

Development Projects 
 
 D300 Elementary School at Oakstead 

 Construction Ongoing 
 Building Construction 

 
 Prairie Ridge K&L 

 Utility and Roadway construction complete 
 

 Tamms Farm 
 Utility construction ongoing 
 Roads to be constructed in northern section this fall 

 
 Stanley North – Self Storage 

 Grading permit 
 Final Engineering resubmittal reviewed 
 Plat of Subdivision requires Village approval 

 
 Brier Hill Ventures/Midwest 

 Grading and stormwater permit issued 
 Detention basin constructed 

 
 Freight Union (Lot 9 Hampshire Woods) 

 Waiting on construction bond 
 

 Love’s/Metrix 
 Working with developers to complete punch lists 

 
 Hampshire Corporate Center – RV Storage Addition 

 Working on project closeout 
 Review letter issued for site plan for additional storage buildings 

 
If you have any questions please contact me at tpaulson@eeiweb.com or (630) 466-6727. 
 
Pc:  Jay Hedges, Village Manager  
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